; P
— A

03037060

KMICROFICHE CONTROL LABEL

REGI;TRANT;S NAME \}()\J)«(‘)@/\_P NO’MW?/O Oﬁjdb

_*CURRENT ADDRESS .

RUAURA! 6 ‘m“'ﬁ

wo®

AT N
. _ HOMSOL
**FORMER NAME o ' é FRANCYL

**NEW ADDRESS

FILE NO. 2= 3¢H  rsea ver (g <3003
s Complete forhin‘al submissions only -** Please note mome and address changes o

_  INDICATE FORM TYPE TO BE USED FOR WORKLOAD ENTRY:

v

12G3-2B (INITIAL FILING) ‘ 'AR/S (ANNUAL REPORT) 1
12G32BR (REINSTATEMENT) \ SUPPL  (OTHER) |
) . e ’ v s.........}
DEF 14A (PROXY) !
{

OICF/BY: (Q/M A

on . YOS







Contents

Highlights 1
Chairman’s Report 2
Managing Director's Report 4
Shareholders "
Employees 12
Customers 16
Community 18
Responsible Gambling 18
Corporate Governance 20
Financial Statements and Reports 24
Board of Directors 24
Directors’ Report 25
Statement of Financial Performance 30
Statement of Financial Position 31
Statement of Cash Flows 32
Discussion and Analysis 33
Notes to the Concise Financial Report 34
Directors' Declaration 40
Independent Audit Report 40
Five Year Review 41
Shareholder Information 42
Investor Information 43
Market Disclosure 44
Company Directory Inside back cover

Notice of Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of TABCORP Holdings Limited will be held at the Grand Harbour Ballroom, Star City Hotel, 80 Pyrmont Street,
Pyrmont, Sydney, at 10.00am on Thursday 30 October 2003. A notice of meeting and proxy form is included with this Annual Report.

About this Annual Report

TABCORP's Annual Report consists of two documents — the Concise Annual Report (which incorporates the concise financial statements)
and the full financial statements. The concise financial statements included in the Concise Annual Report cannot be expected to provide as
full an understanding of TABCORP's performance, financial position and investing activities as provided by the full financial statements.

A copy of TABCORP's full financial statements is available, free of charge, on request or can be accessed via the company’s website at
www.tabcorp.com.au.

References to currency are in Australian dollars unless otherwise stated.

Copyright

Information in this repo-t has been prepared by TABCORE unless otherwise indicated. Information may be reproduced provided it is
reproduced accurately and not in a misleading context. Where the material is being published or issued to others, the sources and copyright
status should be acknowledged.
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

WE WERE ABLE TO DELIVER AN
NCREASE IN PROFITS AS WELL
AS A FOUR CENT INCREASE IN

-ULL YEAR DIVIDEND.

The past year represents a period
of significant change for TABCORP
In particular:

¢ Matthew Slatter has assumed the
position of Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Matthew
was formerly Chief Executive of the
Bank of Melbourne, as well as Chief
Finance Officer and a Director of
AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Limited.
His leadership skills, financial
discipline and experience in
acquisitions provides additional
strength to the successful
management team at TABCORP,;

* the company announced a proposed
merger with Jupiters Limited which
will consolidate its position as
Australia’s premier gambling and
entertainment group;

the gaming division has worked

hard to accommodate the needs of
customers who wish to smoke,
following the introduction of smaking
bans in Victorian gaming venues; and

TABCORP has undergone a significant
organisational restructure to position
itself to maximise operational
efficiency and take advantage of
opportunities that may arise in the
future,

Michael Robinson AO, Chairman




In such a challenging year, TABCORP
was able to deliver an increased

profit before non-recurring items of
$263.1 million as well as increase its full
year dividend from 63 cents per share
to 67 cents per share (fully franked).

TABCORP is & major employer and its
operations contributed $743 million
towards gambling taxes to Australian
State Governments as well as

$250 million to the Victorian racing
industry during the year. This is in
addition to the many causes that we
have directly supported, such as our
contribution towards raising $405,000
for the Victorian Bushfire Appeal and
donating $1.7 million over the last three
years towards the TABCORP Surf
Rescue Fund. All employees should be
proud of what has been achieved.

The proposed merger with Jupiters
Limited presents an exciting opportunity
for further growth and a new stage in
the development of this company.

It will resuit in TABCORP operating
approximately 18,000 gaming machines,
with four casino and hotel complexes

in Queensland and New South Wales,
wagering and sportsbetting operations
in Victoria, and Keno operations across
the east coast of Australia. The
company is expected to benefit from
synergies, increased scale, business
diversity and enhanced financial
strength resulting from this merger.

The issue of ‘corporate governance’ has
received considerable attention in recent
months. TABCORP closely monitors
developments in this important area

to ensure that it continues to follow
'best practice’. It is pleasing to see

the recognition that we have received
by being one of only 14 Australian
companies included in the Dow Jones

Sustainability Index and one of only

20 Australian companies included in the
FTSE4Good Index. TABCORP is the only
Australian gambling company included
in these indices and will continue to
strive towards achieving the best social,
environmental and economic outcomes
for the benefit of all stakeholders.

This year's annual report has adopted
the company’s vision as its theme.
TABCORP will work hard to consolidate
its position as Australia's premier
gambling and entertainment group.

In particular, we are committed to:

* achieving growth that provides
superior shareholder returns;

offering the best gambling and
entertainment experience for
customers;

» providing a great place to work; and

being respected as a responsible and
valued member of the community.

| believe that the company is in a sound
position to deliver each of these
objectives.

A s

Michael Robinson AQ
Chairman
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

VWE ARE COMMITTED TO ENSURING
THAT TABCORP REMAINS
AUSTRALIAS PREMIER GANMBLING
AND ENTERTAINMENT GROUR
DELIVERING SUPERIOR VALUE TO
OUR SHAREHOLDERS.




TABCORP's strength was evident

this year when we were able to achieve
an increase in underlying profit and
earnings per share in a challenging
marketplace.

Profit before non-recurring items
increased by 1.5% to $263.1 million

or 71.5 cents per share. An improved
performance from Star City — especially
in the second half of the year — boosted
the result, together with another sclid
performance from wagering. The
actions taken in conjunction with our
Tabaret venues to improve the amenity
for customers who smoke, helped to
alleviate the impact of the smoking bans
on our gaming division’s result,

| believe the improvement in the
underlying profit of the company
demonstrates the strength of our
businesses, as well as the company’s
disciplined approach to expense control
and sound financial management.

The strength of our businesses was
also reflected by Standard & Poors'’
reaffirmation of the company’s BBB+
investment grade rating after taking into
account the financing of the proposed
merger with Jupiters. The company's
strong cashflow enabled the buy back
of 11.3 million shares for $128.7 million.
TABCORP's debt to equity ratio of
49.0% and interest cover of 8.7 times
are further evidence of our balance
sheet strength and capacity.

TABCORP's net revenue declined by
1.7% to $1.9 billion for the year ended
30 June 2003. Reflecting the impact of
the bans on smoking in gaming rooms,
gaming division net revenue declined by
7.6% on the previous year, more than
offsetting the 4.4% and 3.2% revenue
growth rates achieved from the
wagering and Star City businesses
respectively.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Wagering

The wagering division increased net
operating revenue by 4.4% to

$421.3 million. Profit before interest,
tax and amortisation (PBITA) excluding
non-recurring items grew by 11.9% to
$68.4 million.

Each of the three racing codes
achieved revenue growth during the
year. Thoroughbred racing, which
accounts for approximately 70% of
racing revenue, grew by 3.4% buoyed
by a strong Spring Carnival and revenue
growth from Victorian provincial
meetings.

Harness racing and greyhound racing
both enjoyed strong revenue growth
from Victorian provincial races and
additional interstate meetings, achieving
4.7% and 7.4% growth respectively.

Sportsbetting revenue was down on the
previous year which included the World
Cup soccer. However the underlying
performance, excluding the impact of
the World Cup soccer, was a continuation
of strong growth with revenue ahead of
the previous year by 32.3%.

Net profit

after tax before
non-recurring items
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT conminueo
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Trackside's popularity continues to
grow. During the year the number of
Victorian TAB venues with Trackside
grew from 160 to 205. In Denmark the
number of sites increased from five to
36 and plans are underway for further
overseas expansion.

Improving service levels to our
customers continued to be a key focus
for the retail network where revenue
grew by 3.8% during the year. Seven
TAB agencies were refurbished, bringing
to 47% the proportion of the retail
network which has been refurbished
since the new concept store was
developed. To further improve service,

a new retail selling terminal is being
developed with deployment to
commence in the current year. This is

in addition to the self-service terminals
which have been intrcduced across

the retail network and to on-course tote
facilities. To improve service levels
across the PubTAB network, an
additional 350 self-service Easy Bet
terminals were purchased and are being
installed.

Account sales revenue grew strongly by
5.4% reflecting the increasing popularity
of self-service betting. These convenient
and low cost options include touch tone
telephone, natural language speech
recognition and the internet and
together they comprised 46% of all
account sales transactions last year.

[t was pleasing to note that, having
consistently declined since TABCORP
was listed, on-course turnover showed
promising growth during the year.
On-course revenue grew by 3.7%
during the year, with particularly strong
growth from provincial thoroughbred
races, 9.3% ahead of the previous year,
and Spring Carnival which was up by
7.6%. This improvement in performance
reflects the joint efforts of the Victorian
racing industry, individual race clubs, the
Victorian Government and TABCORP in
promoting interest and attendance at
race meetings. 't has been particularly
effective with thoroughbred racing at
feature metropolitan race meetings and
regional festivals, such as the
Wangaratta Jazz Festival which
incorporates racing.

Gaming

Gaming division revenue for 2003 was
$848.1 million which was 7.6% below
the previous year. PBITA excluding
non-recurring items was $213.0 million,
a decrease of 9.9% on the previous year.

The introduction of smoking bans

in Victorian gaming venues from

1 September 2002 has resulted in
customers who smoke either not
attending gaming venues or not staying
as long as they would have before the
bans were imposed. This has adversely
impacted revenue and profitability.

Allocation of net revenue for
2002/2003 total businesses managed

] State Government {gambling and other taxes/charges) $560.5m

’:l Federal Government (GST on gambling and income tax) $321.4m
Victorian racing industry $250.4m

B Shareholders (profit after tax) $252.6m

"] Agents & venue operators commission $369.4m

{7 Depreciation & amortisation $117.3m

B Netinterest expense $47.7m

B Service suppliers & employees $395.7m




In response to the division's feedback
from customers who smoke, TABCORP
in conjunction with its Tabaret venue
partners, acted to improve the amenity
for those customers. Venues have
endeavoured to provide smoking
facilities, where possible located close
to the gaming rooms, with ambience
and décor consistent with the overall
venue. A machine reservation system
has also been introduced so that players
can take a break from play and return to
their machine. Specialised customer
service training has also been provided
by TABCORP to all venues to improve
service levels to smokers.

While revenue levels are still down on
the comparable period last year, we
believe the improvement to the overall
amenity for all customers has reduced
the impact of the bans in the majority of
cases.

Other factors that have also impacted
revenue in the past year include loss of
24 hour trade at some venues, the
impact of regional caps, and the
requirement for social and economic
impact studies before opening new
venues or increasing the number of
gaming machines in existing venues.
In north-eastern Victoria, the severe
bushfires resulted in reduced tourism
and trade which impacted revenue
performance in that region.

In addition to working towards
accommodating the needs of

smokers, major refurbishments were
undertaken in 19 venues with a further
23 undergoing minor refurbishments.
Two new venues opened during the year,

The gaming division continues to invest
in the latest games and machines to
best meet customer needs. During the
year, 3,625 new games were introduced
to the network. The introduction of

one cent denomination machines
across the network in February proved
very popular with customers.

Reflecting the commitment to customer
service, scores from this year's Tabaret
Venue Performance System were the
highest ever achieved across the
Tabaret network. Participation in all
components of the program was
enthusiastic. As well as record scores
for customer service, venue staff
attended training in a variety of areas
including responsible service of
gambling.

Star City

Star City increased net operating
revenue by 3.2% to $631.3 million.
PBITA excluding non-recurring items
grew by 12.1% to $183.1 million.
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This was a good result, reflecting an
improved second half to the year
despite the impact of the SARS virus
and the war in Irag. The performance

of table games on the main gaming
floor was noteworthy, with custormners
responding favourably to changes in
product mix such as the introduction of
low limit double zero roulette in January
and the popular Rapid Roulette in April.



MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT conrinuen

Additional Even Money Baccarat Tables
were also introduced during the year.
Switching tables to Black Jack from
Pontoon late in the first half-year also
proved popular with customers.

Electronic gaming machine revenue
achieved solid growth during the year.
Refinements to the overall offering are
ongoing with new games continually
being introduced and food and
beverage facilities designed to best
suit our customers.

The new VIP lounge opened at the
beginning of June, with 158 gaming
machines. This follows the very
successful relocation of 28 machines
from the main gaming floor to the
private gaming room earlier in the year,

Table game revenue from the private
gaming room was below that of the
previous year but showed a marked
turnaround in the fourth quarter as it
recovered from the negative impacts
associated with the SARS virus and
war in lrag.
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Non gaming revenue grew strongly.
The hotel and apartments enjoyed a
record year with occupancy increasing
to 79.9% and the average room rate
increasing by 7.0%. The popularity of
Mamma Mia, which commenced in
September 2002 and played to near full
houses throughout the year, had flow on
benefits across the property, particularly
to the restaurants and bars which
enjoyed an excellent year. More than
half a million patrons have viewed the
show at Star City, bringing a number of
first time visitors to the complex and
lifting the overall awareness of the
entertainment that Star City has to offer.

On 30 June 2003, TABCORP acquired
the remaining 15% interest in the

Star City management agreement

from Leighton Properties Pty Limited.
The acquisition has simplified control of
Star City and will provide an opportunity
to extract additional synergies from the
proposed merger with Jupiters.

RESTRUCTURE

The restructure undertaken in June
more closely aligns TABCORP's
operating businesses with our customer
focus. Technical services consisting of
information technology, and operational
and field service areas have been
amalgamated and the new structure
will enable a smooth integration with
Jupiters.

2012

While we can drive growth through
controlling our businesses, we must also
address issues that impact our future
but which are externally controlled.

The company's Victorian wagering

and gaming licences expire in 2012.

ot our produss
| o KPMG audit

anages

o Critical component of Visnue
Performance Sysiem

°© Dedicaied mrsponsitle gambing

The Victorian Government has indicated
it wishes to resolve the re-licensing
arrangements within its current term.
TABCORP is committed to working with
the Victorian Government to seek an
outcome that is in the interests of all
stakeholders, and is ready and willing
to engage in any discussions,

RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING

More than ever, we are committed to
the responsible service of our products.
We have appointed a senior, dedicated
Responsible Gambling Manager and
KPMG has undertaken the first audit

of compliance with the TABCORP
Responsible Gambling Code.
Recommendations arising from this
audit will be implemented during 2004,
More information regarding our
commitment to responsible gambling
may be found on page 19 of this report.

JUPITERS

A balanced portfolio of businesses is an
advantage. This year, the performance
of our Victorian gaming business was
negatively impacted by specific
legislation, yet we were able to deliver
an increase in profits thanks to good
performances from our wagering and
casino operations.
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In March 2003, the TABCORP and
Jupiters Boards announced their
intention to merge the two companies.
The proposed merger with Jupiters,
which has three casinos and EGM
monitoring operations in Queensland,
as well as Keno operations in both
Queensland and New South Wales, will
further diversify TABCORP's operations,
both gecgraphically and by product.

The merger provides a number of
exciting opportunities to leverage off the
combined capabilities of both groups,
including positioning the company for
future growth by providing sufficient
scale from which to expand.

Provided all government and other
approvals are received, the merger
is expected to be effective by mid
November. Integration planning has
already commenced.

OUTLOOK

The merger with Jupiters will be a key
focus during the coming year. We will
utilise the experience of both
companies and build on the success
of our integration with Stat City.

However, we intend to maintain the
momentum in our existing businesses
and drive growth through a continued
focus on improved customer service
and product quality, hiring and retaining
the best people, encouraging innovation
and striving for excellence in product
delivery.

| believe the company is in great shape
and ready to move into a new growth
phase. We have a fantastic team and

| look forward to the coming year and
an exciting future for TABCORP

Matthew Slatter
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

|

3

o

SNAPSHOT

o Merger agreement signed

° Mergsr e@pectsd ‘e be implerment

i vevernber -
o Infegration planring has comment
o Exefing oppertunity for TABCOR
o Diversifies opsrmtions and provid
Comiined group will be fifth larges
germbling &nd SRieIta RIER! giow
i Yhe worie i

o

o Juptiers Iniegration
o Busiress as usual
o 2072 me~ipensing

° Rssponsibie gartibing




FFEm NG WALEEN@QS ANI OPpom ‘

-~ BEING RECOGNISED IY QUR CUSTOMERS i
GAMBLING AND EN IFLRTAANMENT EXP&R\ EN@E

o BEING AESPECTED AS A RESPONSIBLE AN l VALUE
COMMUNITIES IN WHICH WE OPERATE, ~ =

AND BALANCING THESE OBJECTIVES @\\/ER TUME -




25

22

Return on average equity
before non-recurring items
and goodwill

%

|

Star City acquired

98/99
99/00
00/01
01/02
02/03

DIVIDENDS

TABCORP has a history of paying
increasing dividends. Dividends are
typically paid twice per annum, in
March/April and September/October
and have always been fully franked.
This year, the total dividend paid to
shareholders was 67 cents per share,
up from 63 cents per share in the
previous year.

SHAREHOLDER BENEFITS SCHEME

A benefits scheme will be introduced
and available to all eligible shareholders.
tt will provide discounts on items such
as hotel rooms, merchandise, food and
beverages at the company's casinos.
The Board intends to send further
information to all shareholders early
next year.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (DRP)
A DRP was put in place when
TABCORP was floated in 1934,
however, the Board has never activated
the plan. The Board has decided to
adopt a new DRP to commence
operation for the next interim dividend.
Full details of the DRP will be provided
to shareholders in due course.

SUPERIOR BETURNS

1




Jeclde Preston - Hetel Front Desk, Star Clity

James Moynihan - Dezler, Star Ciy

Jackie is enjoying a thriving career at
Star City. She was awarded Star City’s
2002 Employee of the Year, which is
highly commendable given that this is
her first full time job.

As a key member of the Hotel Front
Desk team, Jackie is one of the many
front line staff servicing our Star City
customers. Jackie and her team are
highly customer focussed, committed
to offering the best experience to every
customer every day.

‘Communication fs an important part of my job, both
with our guests and also with other employees. We
have guest feedback forms which provide us with
valuable information used to monitor the department’s
performance and help improve our service.’

Star City offers many exciting
entertainment choices, at the casino,
theatres, restaurant dining, or enjoying
a stay at the hotel. With so much
happening it is important for Jackie and
her team to keep up to date with
everything that Star City is offering.

‘Guests use us as sounding boards about what to
see and do in Sydney, and we're only too happy to
recommend the activities at Star City. Qur business
guests have different needs and we aim to ensure
each guest gets exactly what they need.’

12

James knows when he’s had a
successful day at the office, typically
when a customer smiles and says
‘thank you' as they leave his table.
James is one of the 1,000 strong team
who work on the casino tables at Star
City, and believes it is his job to make
sure every customer is treated with
respect and care as well as making sure
they have an enjoyable time.

‘I have my regular customers and | also get to meet
many new people every day. Some don't even play
the tables, but come past to say hello and enjoy the
terrific surroundings. It's a very social place for
customers and | Jove to meet the variety of
personalities who walk through the casino.’

Working as a dealer requires many
hours of training, from responsible
service of gambling, to mastering the
various table games and quality
customer service.

‘Regular training and assessment helps me do

my job well and makes work more enjoyable.

It provides an opportunity o sit down and discuss
issues with my managers, away from the busy
work environment where you are so focussed

on your work.”

James commenced at Star City three
and a half years ago and believes the
broad range of skills he has learnt in his
role are invaluable.

The training and experience / receive as a dealer
at Star City means that | am well qualified to do the
best job possible. | have a /ot of furn and ook
forward to coming to work every day.’
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As Regional Operations Manager, Frank
is a key member of the company's

wagering division. He spends most Wagering on course

days ligising with people from the turnover
racing industry, setting up on-course $ Million
TAB operations at tracks across the 215

western region of Victoria, and making
sure that customers receive the best
wagering experience,

210 ’—
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205

Working closely with the racing 200
industry, Frank is able to ensure that 195
the services available meet the business
requirements of TABCORP the racing

industry and customers. 185

190

I believe that developing professional working 180
partnerships is a crucial aspect of my job together
with my event management skills. Depending on the
day, | could be setting up a team of two operators or
in excess of 100 operators. Through consultation and
careful planning we can ensure the efficient use of
every available resource.’
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After 14 years at TABCORP Frank has
benefited from TABCORP’s many
employee benefits, including study
assistance while undertaking a Diploma
of Business Management.

COMMITTED TO GROWTH

TABCORP is a supportive and flexible employer, so
not only do | enjoy my career, | am also encouraged
to take my development a step further all the time.

! receive a great feve! of support from my colleagues
and managers, which assists me to keep motivated
and up to date with the latest ideas in business and
management.’




Kete O'Sulliven - Generel Manager Regional Sales, Gaming

Darren Dalle Rive = Test Team Mernager Wagaring

Kate and her team of seven are
responsible for managing the
relationships with 136 Tabaret venues,
with 6,900 electronic gaming machines
across the eastern part of Victoria.
They focus on maximising returns
through amenity improvement,

product distribution and placement and
customer service, to ensure venues are
providing the best gaming experience for
patrons in a responsible manner.

Although I often travel long distances to some
venues, | find that meeting face to face with venue
managers, owners, staff and customers is a highly
rewarding aspect of my work. It really helps to visit
the venues to appreciate and understand the needs
of each venue and the needs of their customers.”

The gaming division operates the Venue
Performance System, which is a key
tool used to evaluate the delivery of
products and services.

‘We have to respond quickly to changing customer
demand and are always looking for new and
innovative solutions that improve both the customers’
experience and the performance of the business.’

Kate has been with TABCORP's Gaming
Division for over nine years. Not only
has she risen through the division’s
ranks, but Kate has also been able to
successfully raise a family.

‘I am fortunate to have an employer who provides
benefits and flexible working arrangements that
help me contribute as an employee while also
having time for my famity.’

14

Darren faces many challenges every
day in his job as Test Team Manager in
wagering. He manages a team of 25
staff who ensure the wagering
computer systems provide the around
the clock reliability that the TAB, sports
betting, on-course and telephone
betting departments require.

It is my team’s role to make sure that the system
offers the best possible reliability and accuracy for
our operators and ultimately the customers. I'm
proud of the record of excellence the team
maimniains.”

Having started at TABCORP eight years
ago as a tester in the department,
Darren can readily understand the
needs of his team and align their goals
with that of the business to achieve the
optimal result.

‘Meeting deadlines for testing software is a critical
aspect of our work, so we have to work smoothly
and efficiently as a team. Each year the Melbourne
Cup Carnival is @ major challenge and our
extensive planning and testing contributes to the
success of the event.’

Having worked exclusively in
Information Technology, Darren is
considering joining TABCORP's
Mentering Program to broaden his
professional development. The program
provides an opportunity for employees
to learn skills and knowledge from other
TABCORP leaders and offers the
chance to develop their career paths

in new and exciting ways.
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Nicole joined TABCORP four years ago

as a trainee in the Human Resources

department and has enjoyed a diverse Tabaret Network
and evolving career. After commencing in Service Performance
Human Resources she spent two years in %

the Information Technology Division then

went back into Human Resources.

Nicole's passion for her area, combined S g
with a supportive work environment, has N
allowed her to develop her skills and
progress her career at TABCORP

‘Four vears ago | was unsure about my future career
direction. By enrolling in a traineeship course and
being offered a position at TABCORP | now know the
type of work | want to do and am thrilled to be working
in Human Resources.’
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. N =] =] [=]
To assist her career Nicole has completed S =z g
a Professional Diploma in Human
; This Venue Performance
Resources by corre;pondence, whlch System graph shows the average
enabled her to continue to work full time performance of venues across
. . . . TABCORP's Victorian gaming network
whilst studying. Nicole believes that as experienced by mystery shoppers
working in different parts of the business and measured against a variety of

. : service standards.
has provided her with a more complete

appreciation of the needs of TABCORP
employees.

‘Being involved in the products and services that
TABCORP offers means / have a much greater
understanding of the business and its staff. It helps me

to remain focussed on supporting our internal customers,
so our employees can provide the best experience for
our wagering, gaming and Star City customers.”

OPPORTUNITIES, CHALLENGES

Nicole is excited about the future
possibilities for developing her long term
career at TABCORP

‘When your employer offers you great support and new
challenges in a company that is growing, ! believe the
opportunities are endfess.’

=y
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A significant part of TABCORP's success is a direct result of this company’s commitment to constantly reviewing and
improving the gambling and entertainment experience it provides to customers.

During the year, the Lyric Theatre at Star City was awarded the ‘Best Entertainment Venue' in the Australian Hotel
Association’s awards for excellence. Star City was also pleased to receive excellent reviews for its restaurants, which
experienced record revenue growth. The refurbishment of approximately 300 rooms at the five star hotel is well underway
and will complement enhancements made to restaurants such as ‘Trophies’ and ‘Fortunes’ as well as the introduction of
the popular and exclusive VIP Slots Lounge.

TABCORP also continues to focus on improving the amenities offered to customers at its wagering and gaming venues.
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Star City has recently introduced the Eye-Hi-Goodbye program to D
further promote friendly customer service, which is monitored
each month as part of the casino’s mystery shopper program. @

Eye - Did the staff member smile or make eye contact at the initfal
contact stage?

Hi - Did the staff member make a friendly welcoming comment?
Goodbye - Did the staff member provide a friendly departing comment?

Wagering agencies have progressively been refurbished over recent years, and now offer a brighter and more appealing
environment. There have also been significant changes made to gaming venues across the network as refurbishments
continue to improve the facilities provided for customers.

The gaming division operates the successful Venue Performance System which awards venues providing outstanding
customer service and amenities. The process of evaluating venues includés ‘mystery shoppers’ reviewing an extensive
list of criteria, including adherence to a number of responsible gambling initiatives such as signage and staff training.
An awards night is then held at which the results are announced and recognition given to our best venue partners.

Understanding and meeting the needs of customers is critical to our objective of being Australia’s premier gambling and
entertainment group.
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Helirmed One Al Ambulence Serviee

Each year TABCORP supports a range
of community initiatives through
partnerships involving our people, our
customers, in-kind support and financial
contributions.

Through such initiatives we aim
to recognise cur obligations as a
responsible member of the
communities in which we operate
and contribute to the long-term
well-being of society.

SPONSORSHIPS

TABCORP's program of sponsorships
focuses primarily or safety, health and
welfare support.

The company’s principal sponsorship
of Surf Life Saving Victoria commenced
in 1997 and since that time, thanks to
the efforts of TABCORP Professional
Lifeguards, joint surf safety educational
campaigns and equipment provided
through the TABCORP Surf Rescue
Fund, the number of instances of both
drownings and rescues have
significantly decreased at Victorian
beaches.

During early 2003, in the wake of
summer bushfires that devastated
much of regional Victoria, TABCORP
partnered with Tattersall's to conduct

a major appeal in a first for the Victorian
gaming industry, to support victims of
the fires. The appeal raised a total of
$405,000 for the Victorian Government
2003 Bushfire Appeal Recovery Fund.
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Through Star City Casino the company
also provided financial support for
Australia’s drought relief campaign,
Farmhand. These represent just a few
of the worthwhile causes supported
by TABCORP

TABARET COMMUNITY ASSISTANCE
PROGRAM

The Tabaret Community Assistance
Program is recognition by TABCORP
and its Tabaret venues of the
importance of partnering with local
community organisations.

Through the program a number of
major initiatives were able to be
undertaken thanks to the commitment
of Tabaret venue staff and our
customers. These included the raising
of significant funds for Helimed One Air
Ambulance Service in Gippsland and
the Victoria State Emergency Service
(SES).

Helimed One required support for the
purchase of four potentially life-saving
items of equipment, whilst the SES
was able to provide search and rescue
equipment for 25 SES units in north-
eastern Victoria.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT
TABCORP actively encourages and
supports employees engagement in
community-based philanthropic
activities.

During the year, through programs
such as SEAL Force (Skill Exchange
and Learning), the company was able
to provide and match employees with
selected not-for-profit organisations to
assist those organisations to address a
significant problem or issue. With such
partnerships, TABCORP employees
work with an organisation over a six-
month period to tackle the issue and
learn from each other.

TABCORP employees and their families
also gave their time to participate in
Walk for the Cure during the year, to
raise funds for research into a cure for
Juvenile Diabetes, and other important
activities such as the Williamson
Community Leadership Program and the
Brotherhood of St Laurence Christmas
Appeal.

Some of the many other initiatives we
supported during the year were:

* Sydney Breast Cancer Foundation;
¢ The Bionic Ear Institute;

* The Royal Women's Hospital Mothers
Day Appeal;

* The Melbourne Festival;

* The Lighthouse Foundation;

¢ The Geelong Hospital;

* NSW Rubgy League Charity Shield;

« Taralye Early Intervention Service; and

* Epworth Medical Foundation.
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING

TABCORP recognises that some
people may experience problems with
gambling and is committed to assisting
these persons. We launched the
TABCORP Responsible Gambling Code
in October 2001 and have worked with
our wagering, gaming, and casino
businesses together with our corporate
team to ensure all employees understand
the principles of responsible gambling.

This year, the company has appointed a
senior, dedicated Responsible Gambling
Manager and commissioned KPMG to
conduct the first independent review
of compliance with the TABCORP
Responsible Gambling Code. The
methodology involved a pilot study,
statistical selection of venues for
review, an independent field audit, self
assessment questionnaires, interviews
and review,

Preliminary results from the survey
reveal there is a strong sense of
awareness of, and commitment to,

the Code at TABCORP; overall relatively
high level of compliance with
requirements of the Code; together
with practical difficulties asscciated
with the operation of self-exclusion
programs.

The findings will link with a review of
the key components of the Code to
ensure they represent best practice and
recommendations will be implemented
during 2004. The Code is available on
the company’s website at
www.tabcorp.com.au

|
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RESPECTED AND RESPONSIBLE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TABCORP's Board strongly supports the
principles of corporate governance and
is committed to maintaining the highest
standards within the company.

The company’s policies and corporate
governance practices are reviewed
annually and will continue to be
developed and refined to meet the
needs of the company and best
practice.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board comprises six independent
non-executive directors, including the
Chairman, and one executive director,
being the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer. Each of the Board's
Committees is composed exclusively
of independent non-executive directors.
Detazils of the current directors and their
qualifications and experience are
contained within the Directors’ Report.

The company’s constitution requires
that at least one-third of the directors of
the company, other than a director who
is @ Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer, retire by rotation and
may stand for re-election at each Annual
General Meeting of the company. The
Board has the power to appoint any
person as a director, either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board, subject to receiving all necessary
regulatory approvals, but that person
must stand for election at the next
Annual General Meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD

The company’s Board Manual sets out
the roles and responsibilities of the
Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer, the Chairmar and directors, and
contains the terms of reference and
processes governing the Board and
each of its Committeses.

The Board has overall responsibility for
the corporate governance of the
company. Its role also includes:

* reviewing and approving the strategic
direction, budgets and business plans
prepared by management;
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* assuring itself of the effectiveness of
arrangements for the governance of
the company including:

—the quality of the Executive team;

— the appropriateness of
organisational arrangements and
structure;

~the adequacy of internal controls
and processes;

3

overseeing performance against
targets and objectives; and

overseeing reporting to shareholders
on the direction, governance and
performance of the company.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Board regularly assesses the
independence of each director. For
this purpose an independent director
is a non-executive director whom the
Board considers to be independent of
management and free of any business
or other relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise
of their unfettered and independent
judgement.

In addition to being required to conduct
themselves in accordance with the
ethical policies of the company,
directors are required to be meticulous
in their disclosure of any material
contract or relationship in accordance
with the Corporations Act and this
disclosure extends to the interests of
family companies and spouses.
Directors are required to adhere strictly
to the constraints on their participation
and voting in relation to matters in
which they may have an interest in
accordance with the Corporations Act
and the company'’s policies.

Some of the directors are involved with
other companies or professional firms,
which may from time to time have
dealings with the company. Details of
offices held by directors with other
organisations are set out in the
Directors’ Report. Full details of related
party dealings are set out in notes to the
company’s accounts as required by law.

All the current non-executive directors of
the company have been assessed as
independent directors. In reaching that
determination, the Board has taken into
account (in addition to the matters set
out above):

* the specific disclosures made by each
director as referred to above;

* where applicable, the related party
dealings referable to each director,
noting that those dealings are not
material under accounting standards;

that no director is, or is associated
directly with, a substantial shareholder
of the company;

that no non-executive director has
ever been employed by the company
or any of its subsidiaries;

that no director is, or is associated
with, a supplier, professional adviser,
consultant to or customer of the
company which is material under
accounting standards; and

that no non-executive director
personally carries on any role for the
company other than as a director of
the company.

The company does not consider that
term of service on the Board should

be considered as a factor affecting

a director’'s ability to act in the best
interests of the company. The Board has
established a policy that directors must
retire before reaching 70 vears of age.

The Board also has procedures in place
to ensure it operates independently of
management. Prior to every Board
meeting the non-executive directors
meet together in the absence of
executive directors and other executives
of the company.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Board and its Committees meet
regularly to discuss formally matters
relevant to the company. Any director
with a material personal interest in a
matter being considered by the Board
must not be present when the matter is
being considered and may not vote on
the matter.




COMMITTED TO BEST PRACTICE

The number of meetings and the
attendance of each director are set out
in the Directors’ Report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

To assist the Board in achieving

the highest standards of corporate
governance, the directors closely
involve themselves with the critical
areas of the company’s activities
through Board Committees with specific
responsibilities for audit, nominations/
succession planning, remuneration and
compliance. There are no executive
directors on any of these Committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has been
established to provide additional
assurance regarding the guality and
reliability of financial information used
by the Board and financial statements
issued by the company to its
shareholders. The Committee
oversees compliance with statutory
responsibilities relating to financial
disclosure, including related party
transactions.

The Committee reviews the activities
of both the independent internal and
external auditors and reviews their
performance on an annual basis. Both
auditors have direct access to the
Committee Chairman.

The annual internal audit program

and the scope of work to be performed
is set in consultation with the Audit
Committee of the Board. The
Committee approves the annual internal
audit proegram and reviews reports
made pursuant to that program.

The Committee is committed to
maintaining auditor independence and
supports the rotation of the lead audit
partner at least every five years and
engaging the auditor for only audit
related services, unless exceptional
circumstances necessitate the
involvement of the auditor. The external
auditor attends the company’s Annual
General Meeting and is available to
answer shareholder questions regarding
aspects of the audit and their report.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk
management policies and processes of
the company. Working closely with the
Compliance Committee, it also reviews
the risk exposures and controls with
respect to existing information
technology systems and those under
development.

Members of the Audit Committee
Chairman: Mr A.G. Hodgson
Members: Mr M.B. Robinson

Mr PH. Wade

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee is
responsible for monitoring business
processes and operations taking
reasonable steps designed to ensure
that the company complies with

its licences and other regulatory
requirements. The Committee places
particular emphasis on a proper
compliance program, systems and
culture being in place for the purpose
of providing confidence in the reliability
and integrity of the company’s
operations.

The company has put in place
procedures designed to ensure
communication and close cooperation
with all regulatory authorities responsible
for monitoring and overseeing its
businesses, including the Victorian
Casino and Gaming Authority, New
South Wales Casino Control Authority,
Queensland Office of Gaming
Regulation and the Tasmanian Gaming
Commission.

The company's Compliance Managers
and the Management Compliance
Committees monitor matters of
compliance and report regularly to the
Compliance Committee. Management
Compliance Committees, established

at Star City and in Melbourne for the
company's Victorian operations, oversee
the company's compliance program,
which exceeds Australian Standards.

KPMG is conducting an independent
audit of Star City's compliance program
1o ensure compliance is being met and
that systems and procedures exceed
best practice.

Members of the Compliance

Committee
Chairman: Mr WV, Wilson
Member:  Mr M.B. Robinson

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has
responsibility to consider matters
relating to the remuneration of senior
executives as well as the remuneration
policies and structure for the company
generally.

The Remuneration Committee has
responsibility to review and make
recommendations to the Board on
remuneration packages and policies
applicable to the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer, directors
and senior executives. This Committee
has responsibility for approving the
company's general remuneration
practices, including employee share
ownership and option schemes,
incentive performance packages,
superannuation entitiements, retirement
and termination entitlements.

The Board has decided to terminate
retirement benefits for all non-executive
directors, effactive 30 June 2003.

Details relating to the remuneration of
directors and officers of the company
are set out in the Directors’ Report,

Members of the Remuneration

Committee

Chairman: Mr PH. Wade

Members: Mr M.B. Robinson
Mr R.FE. Warburton

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The composition of the Board and

its Committees is the subject of
ongoing review by the directors and

the Nomination Committee has the
responsibility to make recommendations
to the Board on succession planning for
the Board. From time to time as the
company grows and its field of activities
changes. it may be appropriate to make
other changes to the composition of the
Board so that it includes the necessary
and desirable competencies of its
members and appropriate mix of
non-executive and executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conrnuep

All appointments to the Board are
subject to receiving all necessary
regulatory approvals. Upon appointment
each new director receives a letter of
appointment stating their obligations
and key terms and conditions of their
appointment. They undertake an
induction program and are provided
with a copy of the Board Manual and
other materials to assist in fulfilling their
obligations.

Members of the Nomination

Committee
Chairman: Mr M.B. Robinson
Members: Mr A.G. Hodgson

Mr R.FE. Warburton

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWQORK
The Board is resporssible for the
establishment and maintenance of
the internal control structure of the
company.

Financial reporting includes the annual
development of a five year strategic
plan and a detailed annual budget
which is subject to the approval of the
directors. Actual monthly and year to
date results for the company are
reported to the Board at every meeting
to enable it to monitor performance
against the annual budget.

Forecasts for the ccmpany and each
of the operating divisions are regularly
updated and reported to the Board
during the vyear.

The company has detailed procedural
guidelines for the approval of capital
expenditure including annual budgeting,
review and approval of individual
proposals and specific levels of authority
between the Board and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer.

The company maintains a field audit
program of its retail wagering outlets.

Processes for the investment of surplus
cash and management of debt have
been approved by the Board and are the
subject of ongoing reporting to the
Board.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The company's internal audit function
is conducted under contract by KPMG.
The interal auditors submit regular
reports to the Audit Committee and,
where appropriate, to the Board.

MANAGEMENT OF RISK

The company’s current operations are
conducted within Victoria pursuant to
the wagering and gaming licences
issued to it by the Victorian Government
under the Gaming and Betting Act 1994,
It is also the holder of a Monitoring
Operator’s Licence issued under the
Queensland Gaming Machine Act 1991
and a licence to permit online gaming
under the Tasmanian Gaming Control
Act 1993. In addition, TABCORP owns
the Star City Group which is the
operator of Sydney’s Star City Casino
and holder of a casine licence issued
under the New Scuth Wales Casino
Control Act 1992.

The company has in place policies and
procedures designed to manage the risk
associated with its operations. These
policies and procedures are and will be
further developed as the company's
existing operations develop and its
range of activities expands.

The implementation of these policies and
procedures is monitored by the Audit and
Compliance Committees of the Board.

The company has in place a detailed
policy for the management of liability
risk in respect of its expanding fixed

odds sportsbetting operation.

ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Board and executive officers
maintain the highest level of corporate
ethics. The company's policies as to the
conduct and integrity of its personnel
including the maintenance of ethical
standards are set out in the Human
Resources Policy Manual.

The company’s key personnel and all its
directors have undergone extensive
probity investigation and clearance by
the New South Wales Casino Control
Authority, Victorian Casino and Gaming
Authority, Tasmanian Gaming
Commission and the Queensland Office
of Gaming Regulation.

The company has established a
Responsible Gambling Code containing
comprehensive policies and guidelines
for its directors, staff, agents and venue
operators with respect to their use of
and training with the company's
gambling products. KPMG has
conducted an independent audit of the
Code to assess the whole organisation’s
compliance with the Code.

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL
ADVICE

An individua!l director who has concern
with respect to a particular matter
before the Board may, after discussion
with the Chairman, and advising the
Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer, obtain independent professional
advice at the company's expense. Such
advice is to be made available to all
other directors.

SHARE TRADING PQOLICY

The company has a policy that regulates
the sale or purchase of shares in the
company by directors, executive officers
and all employees.

Directors and employees with access to
information about TABCORP's financial
performance may only deal in
TABCORP's securities during the period
of one month following the company's
Annual General Meeting or the release
of the company's annuel and half yearly
results. Even during this trading
window, directors and employees must
ensure that they are not in possession
of price sensitive information that is not
generally available to the public.

Each director is required to obtain the
approval of the Chairman prior to the
sale or purchase by that director of
shares in the company, even during a
trading window. In the case of a
proposed transaction by the Chairman,
approval is required from the Deputy
Chairman. Executive officers are
required to obtain the prior approval
of the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer to a proposed
transaction,

The details of TABCORP shares held by
directors are available in the Directors’
Report.




LEADERSHIP AND INT=GHITY

CONTINUQUS DISCLOSURE

The Board has a disclosure policy and
procedures are in place designed to
ensure that information is reported to
the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX)

in accordance with the continuous
disclosure requirements of its Listing
Rules. The Board reviews the
company's compliance with its
continuous disclosure obligations at
each of its meetings. The company’s
Executive General Manager — Corporate,
Legal and Compliance, in his capacity as
Company Secretary, is responsible for
coordinating disclosure of information
to the ASX, Australian Securities and
Investrments Commission and
shareholders.

BOARD ASSESSMENT

In June 2003 Cameron Ralph Pty Ltd
completed a formal independent
assessment of the Board's
performance. Cameron Ralph Pty Ltd
concluded that there is a very low risk
of governance negatively impacting on
shareholder value *

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The company has been developing

a succession plan for members of its
Board and senior management. This
plan is intended to identify the best
candidates for leadership and
management roles and develop
potential successors that best meet
the organisation’'s needs.

GROUP STRATEGIC PLANNING

The company has a formal strategic
planning process whereby a five year
strategic plan is prepared and approved
by the Board each year. The intent of
the annual review is to consider a range
of strategies and provide management
with guidance on those strategies that
in the Board’s opinion will enhance
shareholder value in the medium term.

SUSTAINABILITY

TABCORP is committed to the long-term
sustainability of its operations and aims
to optimise the social, environmental
and economic impact of its operations
for the benefit of all stakeholders.

TABCORP’s commitment to responsible
gambling, its employees and
community well-being is discussed
earlier in this report.

Although the company’s operations
are considered to have minor impact
on the environment, TABCORP is
committed to protecting the
environment and minimising the impact
wherever appropriate. TABCORP's
environmental performance is set out
in the Directors’ Report.

TABCORP is one of only 14 Australian
companies included in the Dow Jones
Sustainability Index and one of only

20 Australian companies included in the
FTSE4Good Index.

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS

Directors are required continually to
evaluate the number of Boards on
which they serve to ensure that each
can be given the time and attention
required to fulfil their duties and
responsibilities. Directors are required
to seek approval from the Chairman
prior t¢ accepting an invitation to
become a director of any corporation,
and in the case of the Chairman, seek
approval from the Deputy Chairman.

COMMITMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS

it is the Board's intention that
shareholders aré informed of major
developments affecting the company.
This information is communicated to
shareholders through the Half Yearly and
Annual Reports, the Australian Stock
Exchange, the TABCORP website at
www.tabcorp.com.au and other means
where appropriate.

The company employs & dedicated
Shareholder Relations Manager to assist
in responding promptly to all
shareholder inquiries.

The company encourages the full
participation of shareholders at its
Annual General Meeting. Important
issues are presented to shareholders as
single resolutions and full discussion of
each item is encouraged. Explanatory
memoranda, where considered
appropriate, are included with the
Notice of Annual General Meeting in
respect of items to be voted on at the
meeting.

* Cameron Ralph Pty Ltd considers materials
provided by the company and interviews with
directors and others, to make this Board
performance evaluation solely of the corporate
governance risk with respect to this company
at the specified point in time. The rating
cannot, and does not, represent either a credit
assessment, or an assessment of the company's
suitability as an investment, or an assessment
with respect to its corporate governance risk at
any other time or in changed circumstances.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of TABCORP Holdings Limited has
pleasure in submitting the statement of financial position of
the company and the economic entity in respect of the
financial year ended 30 June 2003, and the related statement
of financial performance and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The names and details of the directors in office at the date of
this report are set out below.

M.B. Robinson AQ
Chairman and non-executive director since June 1994

Michael Robinson is a Partner of the law firm, Allens Arthur
Robinson. He was the Senior Partner of Arthur Robinson &
Hedderwicks 1996-2001 and was its Managing Partner
1980-1988. Mr Robinson is Chairman of the Bionic Ear
Institute, a Trustee of the Epworth Medical Foundation and a
director of the Asia Society AustralAsia Centre, the National
Australia Day Council, the State Orchestra of Victoria, Clough
Limited and the General Sir John Monash Foundation. He is
Chairman of the TABCORP Nomination Committee and is a
member of the TABCORP Audit, Remuneration and
Compliance Committees.

M.J. Slatter
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer since
October 2002

Matthew Slatter commenced as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer in October 2002. Mr Slatter was previously
Chief Finance Officer and director of AXA Asia Pacific
Holdings Limited since July 2000 and has over 20 years
experience in the financial services industry in Australia, New
Zealand and the United Kingdom. Immediately prior to joining
AXA, he was Chief Executive of the Bank of Melbourne,
responsible for its integration with Westpac, and has held
general management positions at Westpac, Lloyds TSB and
The National Bank of New Zealand.

A.G. Hodgson
Deputy Chairman and non-executive director since June 1994

Tony Hodgson was the co-founder and was formerly Senior
Partner of the chertered accounting firm Ferrier Hodgson and
is a Consultant to the firm. Mr Hodgson is Chairman of HSBC
Asset Management (Australia) Limited and Chairman of the
Advisory Board to the Victorian Rugby Union. Mr Hodgson

is also a director of Coles Myer Ltd, HSBC Bank Australia
Limited, Presidents Club Ltd and Collins Associates Ltd.

Mr Hodgson is Chairman of the TABCORP Audit Committee
and a member of the TABCORP Nomination Committee.

PG. Satre
Non-executive director since June 2000

Phil Satre is Chairman of Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., one of
the world's largest gambling companies. Mr Satre is also a
director of the Gaming Entertainment Research and Education
Foundations and the American Gaming Association. He is a
director of JDN Realty Company.

PH. Wade
Non-executive director since June 1894

Peter Wade was Managing Director of North Broken Hill Peko
Limited until his retirement in 1993. He is Chairman of CSL
Limited. Mr Wade is Chairman of the TABCORP
Remuneration Committee and the TABCORP Staff
Superannuation Fund. He is also a member of the TABCORP
Audit Committee.

R.FE. Warburton
Non-executive director since June 2000

Richard Warburton was formerly Chairman of Star City
Holdings Limited. He is currently Chairman of Caltex Australia
Limited and the Board of Taxation. Mr Warburton is also a
director of Southcorp Limited and Nufarm Limited. He is a
member of the TABCORP Remuneration and Nomination
Committees.

W.V. Wilson
Non-executive director since June 1994

Warren Wilson held senior posts at the South Australian and
Tasmanian Totalizator Agency Boards from 1967 until he
joined the Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club in 1978. In 1980

Mr Wilson became the executive director responsible for all
betting and lottery activity. He retired from the Club in January
1994. Mr Wilson is a Board member of the South Australian
Forestry Corporation, and a Partner in the Ramada Pier Hotel
at Glenelg in South Australia. He is Chairman of the TABCORP
Compliance Committee.

CHANGES TO THE BOARD’S COMPOSITION

Mr M.J. Slatter commenced as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer on 8 October 2002. Messrs .R. Wilson,
formerly Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, and
D.J. Simpson, formerly Finance Director, ceased as directors
on 31 August 2002 and 21 February 2003 respectively. All
other directors held their position as a director throughout the
entire financial year and continue to hold that position.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

At the date of this report, the relevant interests of the directors in the shares, options or other instruments of the companies within
the economic entity, as notified by the directors to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with Section 205G(1) of the

Corporations Act 2001, are:

-

SR ECORP Fioldings United |

Name Ordinary Shares Options
M.B. Robinscn 45,000 -
M.J. Slatter 500,000 2,500,000 2
A.G. Hodgson 100,000 -
PG. Satre 4,000 -
PH. Wade 30,000 -
R.EE. Warburton 12,500 -
WV Wilson 50,000 -

{'Mr M.J. Slatter was provided with a loan to acquire 500,000 ordinary shares on the terms and conditions set out in the rules of the TABCORP Senior

Executive Long Term incentive Plan previously approved by shareholders,

1212 500,000 options with an exercise price of $12.61 per share were issued to Mr M.J. Slatter (see Directors’ and Officers’ Remuneration section of this report).

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
During the year the company held 14 meetings of the Board of Directors. The attendances of the directors at meetings of the
Board and its Committees were:

Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
Name Attended possible  Attended pessible  Attended possible  Attended possible
M.B. Robinson 14 14 5 5 2 2 6 6
M.J. Slatter 11 1 - - - - - -
A.G. Hodgson 13 14 5 5 - - - -
PG. Satre 13 14 - - - - - -
PH. Wade 13 14 4 5 - - 8 6
R.EE. Warburton 14 14 - - - - 6 6
W.V. Wilson 13 14 - - 2 2 - -
D.J. Simpson 8 8 - - - - - -
I.R. Wilson 2 2 1 1 - - 1 1

In addition to the scheduled Board mestings, the Board meets as needs dictate.

The details of the functions and memberships of the Committees of the Board are presented in the Corporate Governance section

of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS REMUNERATION
Remuneration of directors and senior executives of the
company is determined by the Remuneration Committee.
Remuneration is determined as part of an annual performance
review, having regard to market factors, a performance
evaluation process and independent remuneration advice.

For executive directors and officers, remuneration packages
generally comprise salary, a performance based bonus and
superannuation. Exscutives are also provided with longer-term
incentives through the Senior Executive Long Term Incentive
Plan and the General Employee Share Plan, which act to align
the executives’ actions with the interests of the shareholders.
Non-executive directors are not entitled to performance based
bonuses.

At the 2002 Annual General Mesting, shareholders noted
that Mr M.J. Slatter had been granted 2,500,000 options to
acquire ordinary shares in TABCORP Holdings Limited with an
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exercise price of $12.61 per share. One miillion of these
options expire no later than 7 October 2010 and will vest only
if certain annual and cumulative benchmarks are achieved.
The remaining options vested immediately and will expire

on 7 October 2005.

During the financial year, Mr |.R. Wilson exercised 2,194,500
options to acquire fully paid ordinary shares in TABCORP
Holdings Limited at an exercise price of $10.18.

Mr LR, Wilson had 805,500 remaining options, which

could only be exercised if the company achieved specified
performance benchmarks for the period 1 July 1999 to

30 June 2003. As these benchmarks were not achieved, none
of these options could be exercised and have now lapsed.

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option,
to participate in any share issue of the company, other than
through exercise of the options.




The remuneration provided to directors and the five most highly remunerated officers of the company and the economic entity is
as follows:

Directors

M.B. Robinson 276,250 10,519 53,316 340,085 286,768
M.J. Slatter 778682 175000 76,125 1,331 1,253 1,615,04381 30,254 2,677,688 2,677,688
A.G. Hodgson 160,000 10,519 30,240 200,758 170,619
PG. Satre 109,000 71,060 180,060 109,000
PH. Wade 121,250 10,210 26,675 168,135 131,460
R.FE. Warburton 106,250 9,563 89,100 204913 115813
WV Wilson 112,500 998 21825 144,310 122,485
I.R. Wilson? 930,839 167,182 167,349 157,780 441,2898 119,051 1,983,490 1,983,490
D.J. Simpson® 261,794 76,692 26,945 27,555 18,332 411,318 411,318
Senior Executives — Economic Entity

D. Banks 590,099 65346 150,758 42178 39,817 24,600 912,798
PR. Broberg 379,879 27,925 92,525 34,733 35,422 19,269 589,753
D.E. EImslie 481,802 25,063 107,583 34660 35,362 31,388 695,848
M.J. Piggott 398,940 73,059 103,835 34,605 32,856 30,694 673,889
J.C. Read 302,012 24,300 80,516 35,342 33,527 12,203 487,900
Senior Executives - Company

PR. Broberg 379879 27,925 925625 34,733 35422 19,269 589,763
P H. Caillard 208,803 16,314 38,786 18874 18,932 14,830 316,532
DE. Eimslie 461,802 25,053 107,583 34,660 35,362 31,388 695,848
R.E. Preston 206,794 10,938 38,786 20,019 20,217 16,480 313,234
J.C. Read 302,012 24300 80,516 35,342 33,527 12,203 487,900

) Salaries for executive directors and senior executives include accruals for annual and long service Ieave.
2 Accrual for retirement benefits for non-executive directors approved by the company's shareholders on 10 November 1999.

3 Each option entitled the holder to purchase one ordinary share in the company.

4 Cost to company to provide low interest/interest free loan(s).
) Total excludes retirement benefits for non-executive directors.

& Mr M.J. Slatter was appointed on 8 October 2002. The estimated value ($1,615,043) disclosed above is calculated at the date of grant using the following
methodologies. 1,500,000 options expire on 7 October 2005 and were granted in consideration of contractual entittements Mr Slatter had with his previous
employer. The estimated value ($1,394,893) is calculated using a Standard Binomial model. 1,000,000 options expire no later than 7 October 2010. The
ability to exercise these options is conditional on the economic entity achieving certain performance hurdles. The estimated value ($220,150) is calculated

using a Monte Carlo Simulation-based model.

7 Mr LR, Wilson retired on 31 August 2002. Emolument includes salary paid to retirement, payment on retirement and annual leave accrued to cessation.
® These options have lapsed subsequent to 30 June 2003 as the performance hurdles relating to them have not been met. Estimated value disclosed above is

calculated at the date of grant using a Monte Carlo Simulation-based model.

© My D.J. Simpson retired on 21 February 2003.

SHARE OPTIONS

The only options on issue are the 2,500,000 options issued to
Mr M.J. Slatter {see the Directors’ and Officers’ Remuneration
section of this report above).

EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN

During the financial year, 477,700 shares were issued to
employees pursuant to the TABCORP General Employee
Share Plan ('the Plan’) previously approved by shareholders.
Employees who acquire shares under the Plan are provided
with an interest free loan to acquire the shares and are
obliged to repay the loan by way of deduction from their after
tax wage or salary in equal instalments over five years. The
company's security for each of these loans is limited to the
shares acquired with that particular loan under the Plan. The
company also operates a separate Senior Executive Long
Term Incentive Plan which is referred to in the Directors' and
Officers’ Remuneration section. During the financial year,
1,196,500 shares were issued to senior executives under this
plan (including the 500,000 shares to Mr M.J. Slatter referred
to above).

CORPORATE INFORMATION

TABCORP Holdings Limited is a company limited by shares
that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered
office of TABCORP Holdings Limited is & Bowen Crescent,
Melbourne, Victoria 3004, Australia.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the economic entity during the
financial year comprised the provision of leisure and
entertainment services (particularly in relation to gambling).
The principal activities remain unchanged from the previous
year.

RESULTS

Consolidated profit after income tax of the economic entity
for the financial year was $252.6 million which was 3.2%
below the previous financial year. The economic entity
generated profit before interest, taxation and amortisation
of goodwill of $438.7 million, which was 3.2% below the
previous financial year. It generated operating revenue of
$1,900.7 million, which was 1.7% below the operating
revenue achieved in the previous financial year.
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DIVIDENDS

The following dividends (including special dividends) have
been paid, declared or recommended since the end of the
preceding financial year by the parent entity:

$000

Final fully franked dividend for 2002 of 32.0 cents
per share on ordinary shares as declared by the
directors on 15 August 2002 and paid on

27 September 2002,

Interim fully franked dividend for 2003 of 33.0 cents
per share on ordinary shares as declared by the
directors on 19 February 2003 and paid on

2 April 2003.

Final fully franked dividend for 2003 of 34.0 cents
per share on ordinary shares as declared by the
directors on 13 August 2003 payable on

1 October 2003.

118,294

120,634

124,289

Further information regarding dividends may be found in
Note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The economic entity achieved profit after tax for the year of
$252.6 million which was 3.2% behind last year. During the
year, the economic entity’s total operating revenue fell by
1.7% to $1,900.7 million. Basic earnings per share were

68.7 cents, down 1.9% on the previous corresponding period.

A final dividend of 34 cents per ordinary share has been
declared. The dividend will be fully franked and payable on

1 October 2003 to shareholders registered on the books at

5 Septemnber 2003. This takes the full year dividend to

67 cents, an increase of 4 cents on the previous financial year.

WAGERING

The Wagering Division generated profit before interest,
taxation and amortisation of goodwill of $67.0 million’, which
was 0.4 % above the previous financial year. The Wagering
Division's total operating revenue increased by 4.4% to
$421.3 million. This strong result was partly attributable to
controlled operating expenses and another successful spring
racing carnival.

GAMING

The Gaming Division achieved profit before interest, taxation
and amortisation of goodwill of $208.2 million!, which was
11.9% below the previous financial year. The Gaming
Division's total operating revenue decreased by 7.6% to
$848.1 million. These results were adversely affected by the
introduction of smoking bans in Victorian gaming venues on
1 September 2002.

STAR CITY

Star City achieved a profit before interest, taxation and
amortisation of goodwill of $174.9 million?, which was 9.3%
above the previous financial year. Star City's total operating
revenue increased by 3.2% to $831.2 million.

() Based on segment resuilts as disclosed in Note 34 to the accounts
which excludes unallocated corporate revenue of $0.6 million and
expenses of $12.0 million.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

On 5 March 2003, the economic entity announced a proposal
to merge with Jupiters Limited by way of schemes of
arrangement under which the economic entity intends to
acquire all of the securities in Jupiters Limited.

The merged group will operate approximately 18,000
gaming machines with four casinos and hotel complexes in
Queensland and New South Wales, off-course wagering and
sportsbetting operations in Victoria as well as keno
operations across the east coast of Australia.

The merger is subject to approval by Jupiters Limited
shareholders as well as certain regulatory authorities. It is
currently anticipated that the merger will be implemented in
mid-November 2003.

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of
the economic entity that occurred during the year other than
as set out elsewhere in this Directors’ Report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

No matter or circumstance has arisen since the end of

the financial year which is not otherwise dealt with in this
report or in the consolidated financial statements, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations
of the economic entity, the results of those operations or

the state of affairs of the economic entity in subsequent
financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE RESULTS

The proposed merger with Jupiters Limited will, if
implemented, constitute a significant change to the
company’s operations and is expected to be completed in
mid-November 2003. Otherwise, the economic entity will
continue with the strategies in the year under review.

The directors have excluded from this report any further
information on the likely developments in the operations

of the economic entity and the expected results of those
operations in future financial years, as the directors have
reasonable grounds to believe that to include such
information will be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice
to the economic entity.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

At the company’s 2002 Annual General Meeting shareholders
approved the appointment of Ernst & Young as external
auditor, following the merger between Ernst & Young and
Arthur Andersen. The company's intermal auditors are KPMG,
More information relating to the auditors can be found in the
Corporate Governance statement of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The directors of the economic entity, or their director-related
entities, conduct transactions with entities within the
economic entity that occur within a normal employee,
customer or supplier relationship on terms and conditions
no more favourable than those with which it is reasonable
to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the
director or director-related entity at arm’s length in similar
circumstances. These transactions are described in further
detail in Note 38(d) of the economic entity's consolidated
financial statements.




ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE
No environmental breaches have been notified to the
economic entity by any government agency.

The consolidated entity’s environmental obligations and
waste discharge quotas are regulated under both state and
federal law. The consolidated entity has a record of at least
complying, but in most cases exceeding its environment
performance obligations. An independent audit of Star City's
compliance with environmental obligations was performed
by KPMG, which did not identify any areas of material
non-compliance.

Star City is a participant in the Federal Government's
‘Greenhouse Challenge Program'. In October 2002, the New
South Wales Minister for Energy awarded Star City with a
‘Silver Green Globe Award’ in recognition for initiatives
including lighting changes, improvements in efficiency in
operating the major mechanical plant and waste management.
The energy savings achieved by Star City to win this award
was over 8,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide {CO,) annually.

With the NSW Government's Sustainable Energy
Development Authority (SEDA), Star City is currently
investigating opportunities for co-generation of energy and
believes it is on target to achieve the 'Gold Green Globe Award'.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
TABCORP Holdings Limited has entered into a contract
insuring each of the directors of the company named earlier
in this report and each full-time executive officer, director and
secretary of group entities, against all liabilities and expenses
arising as a result of work performed in their respective
capacities, to the extent permitted by law. In accordance with
section 300(9) of the Corporations Act 2001 further details
have not been disclosed due to confidentiality provisions in
the insurance contracts.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The parent entity is a company of the kind specified in
Australian Securities and Investments Commission class
order 98/0100. In accordance with that class order, amounts
in the financial statements and the Directors’ Report have
been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless
specifically stated to be otherwise.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors of TABCORP Holdings Limited support and
adhere to the principles of corporate governance, recognising
the need for the highest standard of corporate behaviour and
accountability. A review of the company's corporate
governance practices was undertaken during the year. As a
result new practices were adopted and existing practices
optimised to reflect industry best practice. The Corporate
Governance statement is contained in the Annual Report.

This report has been signed in accordance with a resolution
of directors.

/éﬁfj ﬁ«/\’
(- -

M.B. Robinson AO

Chairman

Melbourne
13 August 2003
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

(

Consolickied

Note 2003 2002
$000 $'000
Total operating reveriues 3 1,900,681 1,933,052
Other revenues from ordinary activities 3 36,447 34,607
Revenues from ordinary activities 3 1,937,128 1,967,659
Government taxes and levies (589,823) (609,591)
Commissions and fees (415,861) (428,629)
Employee costs (224,448) (227,084)
Depreciation and amortisation (105,209) (108,522)
Property rentals, rates and maintenance (32,155) (23,024)
Computer costs 6,518) (6,902)
Advertising and prorotions (24,129) (26,013)
Written down value of non-current assets sold (13.364) (4,788)
Insurance costs {8,290) (6,463)
Stock exchange expenses (142) {(111)
Professional and coritract services (4,512) (3.961)
Audit and review services (572) {527)
Borrowing costs (52,629) (56,009)
Other expenses from ordinary activities (87,095) (82.,640)
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 372,281 383,395
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities (119,657) (122,436}
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 252,624 260,959
Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments attributable
to members of the parent entity and recognised directly in equity (305) -
Total changes in equity other than those resulting from transactions
with owners as owners attributable to members of the parent entity 252,319 260,952
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 5 68.7 70.0
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 5 68.5 69.4
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) (pre amortisation of goodwill) 5 735 74.8
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) {pre amortisation of goodwill) 5 73.3 74.2
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2003

L

Conselickl ‘

Note 2003 2002
$'000 $'000

Current assets
Cash assets 118,789 126,843
Receivables 9,762 9,605
Inventories 4,688 4,638
Other 25,141 21,431
Total current assets 158,380 162,417
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 759,212 802,313
Intangible assets — licences 831,201 833,905
Intangible assets - other 543,546 510,881
Deferred tax assets 33,968 21,9186
Other 73,194 82,246
Total non-current assets 2,241,121 2,251,261
TOTAL ASSETS 2,399,501 2,413,678
Current liabilities
Payables 167,831 115,735
Interest bearing liabilities 450,898 144,000
Current tax liabilities 34,899 28,252
Provisions 35,266 147,005
Other 200 291
Total current liabilities 689,094 436,283
Non-current liabilities
Payables - 2122
Interest bearing liabilities 315,000 632,898
Deferred tax liabilities 58,176 56,888
Provisions 16,450 38,016
Other 905 1,084
Total non-current liabilities 390,531 702,018
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,079,625 1,137.301
NET ASSETS 1,319,876 1,276,377
Equity
Contributed equity 1,137,766 1,226,366
Retained profits 6 182,110 50,011
TOTAL EQUITY 1,319,876 1,276,377




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

T C@nsoldted
2003 2002
$'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash receipts in the course of operations 1,935,489 1,975,264
Payments to suppliers, service providers and employees (832,640) (835,363)
Payment of Government levies, betting taxes and GST {550,292) (573,150}
Interest received 4,113 4,202
Borrowing costs paid (56,548) (567,730)
Income tax (paid)/received (121,755) (98,517)
Net operating cash flows 378,367 414,706

Cash flows from investing activities

Loans pursuant to employee share plan 12,688 6,039
Payment for property, plant and equipment (58,002) (46,817)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13,627 5,281

Payment of merger costs {2,229) -
Other 3,546 153
Net investing cash flows (30,470) (35,344)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 314,000 280,000
Repayment of borrowings {325,000) (442,133)
Dividends paid (239,628) (212,725)
Proceeds from issue of shares 22,340 -
Payment for share buy-back (127,663) {(1,195)
Net financing cash flows {355,951 (376,053)
Net increase in cash held (8,054) 3,309
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 126,843 123,634
Cash at the end of the financial year 118,789 126,843
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DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Financial Performance

Consolidated profit after tax {PAT) decreased by 3.2% in
2002/2003 to $252.6 million, from $261.0 million in 2001/2002.
During the vear, non-recurring items of $10.5 million unfavourable
were incurred, compared to $1.7 million favourable in 2001/2002.
Non-recurring items for 2002/2003 included surplus lease
provisions of $6.3 million, restructure costs of $2.7 million and
write-downs of assets within the Gaming Division's Queensland
operation of $1.5 million. On a pre non-recurring items basis, PAT
increased by 1.5% to $263.1 million.

The consolidated entity's total revenue decreased by 1.6%, from
$1,967.7 million in 2001/2002 to $1,937.1 million in 2002/2003.
Operating revenue fell by 1.7% to $1,900.7 million.

The decrease in operating revenue was due 1o:

* a 4.4% increase in Wagering Division revenue from
$403.8 million in 2001/2002 to $421.3 million in 2002/2003,
reflecting continued solid growth in the core racing business.

* a 7.8% decrease in Gaming Division revenue from $317.6 million
in 2001/2002 to $848.1 million in 2002/2003 due to the impact
of smoking bans introduced 1 September 2002.

* a 3.2% increase in Star City Division revenue from $611.9 million
in 2001/2002 to $631.3 million in 2002/2003, due to a 2.0%
increase in gaming revenue, combined with a 10.8% increase
in non-gaming revenue. ‘

Other revenues from ordinary activities rose by $1.8 million to
$36.4 million in 2002/2003. 2001/2002 included higher Supertab
commissions, with a $5.6 million penalty payment from the South
Australian TAB for exiting the Supertab arrangement following its
acguisition by UNITAB Limited. This was offset by an $8.2 million
increase in other revenue, primarily proceeds on the sale of
freehold land owned by Star City.

Consolidated profit before interest, taxation and amortisation of
goodwill (PBITA) decreased by 3.2% to $438.7 million in
2002/2003. The key factors in this performance were:

* a 0.4% increase in Wagering Division PBITA to $67.0 million,
Before non-recurring items of $1.4 million unfavourable in
2002/2003, and $5.6 million favourable in 2001/2002, Wagering
PBITA increased by 11.9% to $68.4 million.

* an 11.9% reduction in the Gaming Division PBITA to $208.2 mitlion,
principally due to a 7.6% decrease in operating revenue.
Adjusting for non-recurring items of $4.8 million unfavourable in
2002/2003, Gaming PBITA decreased by 9.8% to $213.0 million.

* a 9.3% increase in the Star City Division PBITA to $174.9 million,
reflecting an increase in operating revenue and continued
operating cost efficiencies. Before non-recurring items of
$8.2 million unfavourable in 2002/2003, and $3.2 million
unfavourable in 2001/2002, Star City PBITA increased by 12.1%
to $183.1 million.

Borrowing costs decreased by $3.4 million to $52.6 millicn as a
result of lower average net debt levels, partially offset by higher
interest rates.

The effective rate of income tax for the consolidated entity rose
from 31.9% to 32.1% in 2002/2003, primarily due to the non-
deductibility of the write-down of a property in Queensland during
2002/2003.

Statement of Financial Position

Changes in Assets

During the financial year the total assets of the consolidated entity

decreased by $14.2 million to $2,399.5 million at 30 June 2003.

This decrease was principally attributable to:

* a $43.1 million reduction in property, plant and equipment, with
depreciation offsetting capital expenditure during the year.

« a $9.1 million reduction in other non-current assets, primarily
due to the amortisation of rental in advance.

Offset by:

* a $32.7 million increase in intangible assets - other {goodwill
and rights to management agreement), principally as a result of
the purchase of the remaining 15% of the Leighton's
management agreement for $53.0 million.

* a $12.1 million increase in deferred tax assets, primarily due to
tax losses not utilised in 2002/2003.

Changes in Liabilities

Consolidated liabilities declined by $57.7 miltion in 2002/2003 to

$1,073.6 million at 30 June 2003. This decrease was principally

attributable to:

* a $119.4 million reduction in the provision for dividends, with a
zero provision at 30 June 2003, reflecting a change in the
accounting standards.

Offset by:

¢ 3 $55.4 million increase in creditors and accrued expenses,
largely attributable to the accrual for the payment of the
remaining 15% of the Leighton's management agreement.

* an $11.0 million drop in borrowings from $776.9 million at June
2002 to $765.9 million at June 2003,

The consolidated entity's net debt to equity ratio improved with a
reduction from 50.9% at 30 June 2002 to 49.0% at 30 June 2003.

Statement of Cash Flows
Cash assets decreased by $8.1 million during the financial year,
principally due to a reduction in cash flows from operating activities.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities provided $378.4 million in
2002/2003, which was $36.3 million lower than that achieved in
the previous financial year. The main features of this cash inflow
were:

* a decrease of $39.8 million in net cash receipts in the

course of operations, which was partially offset by a decrease
of $2.7 million in payments to suppliers, service providers and
employees and $22.9 million in the payment of state
government taxes and levies and GST.

net payments of interest decreased by $1.2 million due to the
reduction in debt levels during 2002/2003.

income tax payments, which rose by $23.2 million, primarily due
to commencement of Star City paying tax after utilising tax
losses during 2001/2002.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities declined by $4.9 million to

$30.5 million. The main features of this reduction were:

* a repayment increase of $10.1 million in employee and
executive loans.

* an $8.2 million increase in proceeds from the sale of property,
plant and eguipment, primarily the sale of the Goodman Fielder
site at Star City.

Offset by:

* an $11.2 million increase in payments for property, plant and
equipment.

* $2.2 million in Jupiters Limited merger costs.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
The cash outflow of $356.0 million for financing activities in
2002/2003 was lower than the cash outflow of $376.1 million in
the previous financial year. This resutlted from:
¢ g $22.3 million increase in share issue proceeds.
* a reduction in the net repayment of borrowings to

$11.0 million, down from $162.1 million in 2001/2002.

Offset by:

* a $26.9 million increase in dividend payments to
$239.6 million in 2002/2003.

* a $126.5 million increase in share buy-back payments.
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NOTES TO ANE FORMING PART OF THE CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NOTE éﬂ Accounting policies

This concise financial report has been prepared in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB
1039 ‘Concise Financial Reports’ and applicable Urgent Issues
Group Consensus Views. The financial statements and
specific disclosures required by AASB 1039 have been
derived from the consolidated entity's full financial report for
the financial year. Other information included in the concise
financial report is consistent with the consolidated entity’s

full financial report. The concise financial report does not, and
cannot be expected to, provide as full an understanding of the
financial performance, financial position and financing and

NOTE 2 Changes in accounting policies

investing activities of the consclidated entity as the full
financial report. It has been prepared on the basis of historical
costs and except where stated, does not take into account
changing money values or current valuations of non-current
assets. These accounting policies have been consistently
applied by each entity in the consolidated entity and, except
where there is a change in accounting policy, are consistent
with those of the previous year.

A full description of the accounting policies adopted by the
consolidated entity may be found in the consolidated entity's
full financial report.

The company has adopted the new Accounting Standard
AASB 1044 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’ which has resulted in a change in the accounting for
dividend provisions. Previously, the company recognised a
provision for dividend as a liability based on the amount that
was proposed or declared after the reporting date. In
accordance with the requirements of the new standard, a
provision for dividend will only be recognised at the reporting
date where the dividends are declared, determined or publicly
recommended prior to the reporting date. The effect of the
revised policy has been to increase consolidated retained
profits and decrease provisions at the beginning of the
financial year by $119.408 million. In accordance with the new
standard, no provision for dividend has been recognised for
the financial year ended 30 June 2003. The change in
accounting policy has had no effect on basic and diluted EPS.

The company has adopted the revised Accounting Standard

AASB 1028 'Employee Benefits’ which has resulted in a

change in the accounting for annual leave. In accordance with

the requirements of the revised standard, the liability for

annual leave is now calculated using the remuneration rates

the company expects to pay, including related on-costs when

the liability is expected to be settled. The effect of the revised

policy at the beginning of the financial year has been to:

* increase provision for employee benefits by $0.436 million
{company: $0.081 million);

* decrease opening retained profits by $0.305 million
{company: $0.057 million); and

¢ increase future income tax benefits by $0.131 million
(company: $0.024 million).

| Consolideed |
2003 2002
$000 $000
NOTE 3 Operating revenues
Profit from ordinary activities has been determined after crediting the following revenues:
Total operating revenues 1,900,681 1,933,052
Other revenues 36,447 34,607
Total revenues from ordinary activities 1,937,128 1,967,659
NOTE 4 Dividends
Dividends recognised in the current year by the economic entity are:
{a) an interim dividend of 33.0 cents per share, franked to 100% with Class C (30%;) franking
credits, was paid on 2 April 2003 (2002; 31.0 cents per share, franked to 100% with
Class C (30%) franking credits was paid on 28 March 2002) 120,634 115,707
{b) 2002 final dividend recognised when declared during the year of 32.0 cents per share,
franked to 100% with Class C (30%) franking credits was paid on on 27 September 2002 118,894 -
(c) (2002: a final dividend of 32.0 cents per share, franked to 100% with Class C (30%) franking
credits was provided for and payable 27 September 2002) - 119,408
(d) (2002: a final dividend for 30 June 2001 of 26.0 cents per share applicable to shares issued
on 30 August 2007 and 7 September 2001, franked to 100% with Class C (30%) franking
credits was paid on 28 September 2001) - 224
239,628 235,339
Since the end of the financial year, the directors declared the following dividend:
Final — 34.0 cents per share, franked to 100% with Class C (30%j) franking credits 124,289 -

The financial effect of this dividend has not been brought to account in the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2003 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports.
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Consolidaied |

2003 2002
$'000 $000
NOTE 5 Earnings per share
Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share:
Basic earnings
Profit from ordinary activities after related income tax expense 252,624 260,959
Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per share 252,624 260,959
Add goodwill amortisation 17,855 17,9562
Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per share (pre amortisation of goodwill) 270,579 278,911
Diluted earnings
Profit from ordinary activities after related income tax expense 252,624 260,959
Add aftertax effect of interest on potential ordinary shares 519 -
Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share 253,143 260,959
Add goodwill amortisation 17,955 17,952
Earnings used in calculating diluted eamings per share (pre amortisation of goodwill} 271,098 278,911

Conselickied

2003 2002
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator: Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share 367,957,969 373,051,931
Add potential ordinary shares, being options granted on 7 October 2002 (2002: 1 July 1999) 1,828,767 3,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the '
denominator in calculating diluted eamings per share 369,786,736 376,051,931
= Conseliceisd l
2003 2002
$'000 $000
NOTE 6 Retained profits
Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 50,011 24,391
Adjustment arising from adoption of new Accounting Standard
AASB 1044 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ 119,408 -
Adjustment arising from adoption of revised Accounting Standard
AASB 1028 'Employee Benefits’ (308) -
Dividend paid (239,628) (115,931)
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 252,624 260,859
Dividends provided - (119,408)
Retained profits at the end of the financial year 182,110 50,011
Retained profits are expected to be utilised as follows:
— Proposed dividend declared 124,289 -
- Retained 57,821 50,011
182,110 50,011
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NOTE 7 Segment information

The consolidated entity’s primary format of segment reporting is on a business segment basis.
The consolidated entity has three main business segments:
* Wagering  Totalizator and fixed odds betting on thoroughbred, hamness, greyhounds and sperting and other events.

* Gaming Gaming machine operations in licensed clubs and hotels.

» Star City Star City Casino operations, including a hotel, apartment complex, theatres, restaurants and bars.

The consolidated entity’s business segments are located in, and provide services to one geographical segment, Australia.
Wagering Gaming Ster Chy Totel Unelloesiise Ellminetions

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000

2003 Consolidated

Total operating revenues — external 421,302 848,137 631,242 1,900,681 1,900,681

Other revenues from ordinary

activities — external 12,747 2,145 16,831 31,723 4,724 36,447

Intersegment revenue - - -

Revenues from ordinary activities 434,049 850,282 648,073 1,932,404 4,724 - 1,937,128

Segment result (pre amortisation

of goodwill) 67,042 208,175 174,914 450,131 450,131

Segment resuit 66,935 208,175 157,066 432,176 - - 432,176

Unallocated interest revenue 4173 4,173

Unallocated other revenue 551 551

Unallocated interest expense (52,629) (52,629)

Unallocated expenses {11,990) (11,990)

Result from ordinary activities

before income tax expense 66,935 208,175 157,066 432,176 (59,895) - 372,281

Income tax expense (119,657)

Net profit attributable to members

of the parent entity 252,624

Depreciation and amortisation 11,637 26,574 66,820 105,031

Non cash expenses other

than depreciation

and amortisation 41,262 18,003 74,861 134,126

Segment assets 262,202 551,303 1,537,667 2,351,172 62,814 (14,485) 2,399,501

Segment liabilities 65,498 21,112 120,221 206,831 887,279 (14,485) 1,079,625

Acquisition of non-current assets 22,984 17,529 15,396 55,909 162 - 56,071
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NOTE 7 Segment information {continued)

‘ Segment
T Ster Cliy Ttz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
2002 Consolidated
Total operating revenues - external 403,610 917,569 611,873 1,933,052 1,933,052
Other revenues from ordinary
activities - external 19,763 4,901 5,383 30,047 4,560 34,607
Intersegment revenue 22 22 (22) -
Revenues from ordinary activities 423,373 922,470 617,278 1,963,121 4,560 (22) 1,967,659
Segment result (pre amortisation
of goodwill) 66,788 236,278 160,049 463,115 463,115
Segment result 66,689 236,278 142,196 445,163 - - 445,163
Unallocated interest revenue 4,103 4,103
Unallocated other revenue 457 457
Unallocated interest expense (56,009} (56,009)
Unallocated expenses (10,319) (10,319)
Result from ordinary activities before
income tax expense 66,689 236,278 142,196 445,163 {61,768) - 383,395
Inceme tax expense (122,436)
Net profit attributable to members
of the parent entity 260,959
Depreciation and amortisation 10,691 25,534 72,0086 108,131
Non cash expenses other than
depreciation and amortisation 39,254 14,717 53,271 107.242
Segment assets 211,902 624,919 1,529,246 2,366,067 52,659 (5,048) 2,413,678
Segment liabilities 63,744 21,589 52,264 137,597 1,004,752 (5,048) 1,137,301
Acquisition of non-current assets 19,403 17,087 10,227 48,717 - - 46,717

For comparison with previous years’ disclosure in which segment’s profit before interest and tax (PBIT) had been stated on a full
income and expense allocation basis excluding goodwill amortisation, the following segment result is disclosed:

= Ster Clity Consolideiad
Torl Amerisation
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2003 Consolidated
Segment result 62,331 202,896 173,465 438,692 (17,955) 420,737
2002 Consolidated
Segment result 63,946 230,835 158,472 453,253 (17,952) 435,301
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NOTE 8 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Details of contingent liabilities and contingent assets where
the probability of future payments/receipts is not considered
remote are set out below as well as details of contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, which although considered
remote, the directors consider should be disclosed.

The directors are of the opinion that provisions are not
required in respect of these matters, as it is not probable that
a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the
amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

Contingent liabilities

(a) Parent entity

The parent entity has entered into a deed of cross guarantee
in accordance with a class order issued by the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission. The parent entity,
and all the controlled entities which are a party to the deed,
have guaranteed the repayment of all current and future
creditors in the event any of these companies are wound-up.

{b) Charges

(i) CCA

Certain controlled entities have provided the NSW Casino
Control Authority (CCA) with a fixed and floating charge over
all of the assets and undertakings of each company to secure
payment of all monies and the performance of all obligations
which they have to the CCA. The charge has a value of

$1.5 billion and ranks second behind the Commonwealth
Bank of Australia charge under its facility agreement. Please
refer to Note 39(b)(l) of the annual financial statements for
further disclosure.

(if) Other

The controlled entity which is a participant in the joint venture
has entered into a deed of cross charge with its joint venture
partner to cover the non payment of a called sum in the event
of the joint venture incurring a loss. The charge is over
undistributed and future earnings of the joint venture to the
level of the unpaid call.

(¢} Guarantee and indemnity

Certain controlled enrtities have entered into a guarantee
and indemnity agreement in favour of the CCA whereby all
parties to the agreernent are jointly and severally liable for
the performance of the obligations and liabilities of each
company participating in the agreement with respect to
agreements entered into and guarantees given. Please refer
to Note 39(b)(l) of the annual financial statements for further
disclosure.

(d) Legal challenges

There are outstanding legal actions between controlled
entities and third parties as at 30 June 2003. The economic
entity has notified its insurance carrier of all litigation, and
believes that any damages (other than exemplary damages)
that may be awarded against the economic entity, in addition
to its costs incurred in connection with the action, will be
covered by its insurance policies where such policies are in
place. However, given the nature of insurance, no assurance
can be given that any such claims are not likely to have a
material adverse effect on the economic entity. In the case of
possible actions which, due to the demise of an underwriter
do not have insurance cover, the economic entity considers

that, on the balance of probability, no material losses will arise.

This position will be monitored and in the event that a loss
becomes probable, an appropriate provision will be made.
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(e} Banking facilities

A controlled entity has provided a bank guarantee to
WorkCover NSW for the amount of $11.766 million
(2002: $5.500 million) which is required under the entity’s
self-insurance licence.

(f) Tax audit

A controlled entity has been audited by the Australian

Taxation Office (ATO). The ATO has identified an issue which
relates to the deductibility of rent of $120 million prepaid in
December 1994 in relation to the Star City Casino site. The
primary tax in dispute in relation to deductions claimed to
date is approximately $33 million. Under current Australian
Accounting Standards, the current profit impact of the primary
tax in dispute would be approximately $13 million, the balance
having a statement of financial position impact only. On the
basis of external advice and its assessment of the issue,
TABCORP believes that the position taken in the income tax
returns which have been lodged is correct.

(g) Undertakings - insurance deductible

Under the Casino Taxes Agreement, Star City is required

to take out insurance in the name of the Casino Control
Authority in respect of anticipated Weekly Duty and
Community Benefit Levy arising out of partial or total loss

or destruction of the premises. The Agreement allows for a
$1 million deductible for each and every loss. Since the events
of 11 September 2001, Star City has only managed to secure
a 14-day loss deductible. Subseguent to 30 June 2003,
TABCORP Holdings Limited has provided the CCA with a
Deed of Undertaking to fund the shortfall of the difference
between the current 14-day deductible and the $1 million
required under the Casino Taxes Agreement. The directors
believe this undertaking would not exceed $3—4 million for
any one loss and believe such an event is remote.

(h) Jupiters Limited merger break costs

Under the terms of the Merger Implementation Agreement
with Jupiters Limited, the economic entity may be liable to
pay to Jupiters Limited break costs of $7.5 million as
compensation if the merger does not proceed in certain
circumstances. The economic entity considers such
circumstances to be remote. Refer Note 8(k).

(i) Interest rate option agreements

During the year a controlled entity entered into options to
enter into forward interest rate swap agreements. These
instruments were entered inte to provide the economic

entity with the certainty that the interest rate applicable to

a portion of the future debt associated with the proposed
merger of Jupiters Limited will be able to be fixed within a
known range of interest rates. The interest rate options expire
in December 2003.

Under the interest rate option agreements, should the

merger with Jupiters Limited not proceed, the agreements

to enter into forward interest rate swaps may not be required.
To the extent that the agreements are not entered into, the
economic entity may be required to pay costs associated with
closing out these agreements. Any amounts required to be
paid will depend on the level of forward swap interest rates at
that date.




NOTE 8 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Contingent assets

(i) Sale of land

During the year, a controlled entity disposed of land owned

at 50 Union Street, Pyrmant. Proceeds of $12.3 million were
received in February 2003. Part of the sale agreement includes
an additional amount which is dependent upon the purchaser
being able to seek an approved Development Application (DA)
from Planning NSW to develop to a specified net lettable rent
area. The additional payment cannot be reliably measured and
no such approval has been received to date.

NOTE 9 Events subseguent to reporting date

(k) Jupiters Limited merger break costs

Under the terms of the Merger Implementation Agreement
with Jupiters Limited, Jupiters Limited may be liable to pay
to the economic entity break costs of $12.2 million as
compensation if the merger does not proceed in certain
circumstances. The economic entity considers such
circumstances to be remote. Refer Note 8(h).

(a) Showboat Leighton Partnership

Following the purchase of the remaining 15% of Sydney
Casino Management (SCM) on 30 June 2003 from Leighton
Property Development Pty Limited, the Showboat Leighton
Partnership will be dissolved, subject to the approval of the
New South Wales Department of Gaming and Racing. Under
the Sale Agreement, once this approval has been granted, the
rights of SCM under the Casino Management Agreement will
be novated across to a controlled entity, Showboat Australia
Pty Limited.

{b) Deed of Undertaking to Casino Control Authority
Subsequent 1o 30 June 2003, TABCORP Holdings has
provided a Deed of Undentaking as denoted in Note 8(g).

{c) Dividends

Since 30 June 2003, the directors have declared a dividend

of 34 cents per ordinary share. This has the effect of reducing
retained earnings and increasing current liabilities by
$124,289 million (refer Note 4).
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

|

In the opinion of the directors of TABCORP Holdings Limited the accompanying concise financial report of the consolidated entity,
comprising TABCORP Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2003:

{a) has been derived from or is consistent with the full financial report for the financial year; and

{b) complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 'Concise Financial Reports'.

Made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

7z
%@ Tolon 2
(\ .
M.B. Robinson AO

Chairman

Melbourne, 13 August 2003

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO MEMBERS OF TABCORP HOLDINGS LIMITED

I

Scope

The concise financial report and directors’ responsibility
The concise financial report comprises the statement of
financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial
statements, and the directors’ declaration for TABCORP
Heldings Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity,
for the year ended 30 June 2003. The consolidated entity
comprises both the company and the entities it controlled
during the year.

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing

a concise financial report that complies with Accounting
Standard AASB 1039 ‘Concise Financial Reports’, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes
responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and
detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and
accounting estimates inherent in the concise financial report.

Audit Approach

We conducted an independent audit on the concise financial
report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of
the company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable
assurance as to whether the concise financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by
factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective
testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence.
Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material
misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material
respects the concise financial report is presented fairly in
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1039
‘Concise Financial Reports’.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these

procedures, which included:

* testing that the information in the concise financial report is
consistent with the full financial report, and

40

examining, on a test basis, information tc provide evidence
supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and other
disclosures in the concise financial report that were not
directly derived from the full financial report.

We have also performed an independent audit of the

full financial report of the company for the year ended

30 June 2003. Qur audit report on the full financial report
was signed on 13 August 2003, and was not subject to any
qualification. For a better understanding of our approach to
the audit of the full financial report, this report should be read
in conjunction with our audit report on the full financial report.

Independence

We are independent of the company, and have met the
independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001,

In addition to our audit of the full and concise financial
reports, we were engaged to undertake the services
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of the
full financial report. The provision of these services has not
impaired our independence.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the concise financial report of TABCORP
Holdings Limited complies with Accounting Standard
AASB 1038 ‘Concise Financial Reports’.

Rragh v ‘{o@

Ernst & Young

Moy 8 Qelde,

Mary B Waldron
Partner

Melbourne, 13 August 2003




FIVE YEAR REVIEW

L 2008 2002 2001 2000 1999 |
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Wagering, Gaming & Star City revenue 1,900,681 1,933,052 1,812,959 1,595,831 1,066,165
EBITDA 525,946 543,824 478,464 421,287 254,748
PBIT 420,737 435,301 365,067 326,219 220,135
Profit after income tax 252,624 260,959 187,682 174,780 143,341
Profit after income tax (pre goodwill) 270,579 278,811 205,775 187.476 143,341
Dividend 244,923 235,339 183,901 174,639 130,884
Cash and deposits 118,789 126,843 123,534 91,019 84,816
Other current assets 39,591 35,574 29,880 30,458 9,958
Licences/Management Agreement Rights 1,081,845 1,033,734 1,038,629 1,043,332 597,472
Goodwill 292,902 311,052 329,846 346,094 -
Other non-current assets 866,374 906,475 980,186 1,060,303 199,396
Total assets 2,399,501 2,413,678 2,501,975 2,571,207 891,642
Current interest-bearing liabilities 450,898 144,000 229,052 196,871 38,000
Other current liabilities 238,196 291,283 252,123 287,267 211,412
Non current interest-bearing liabilities 315,000 632,898 710,000 780,154 -
Other non-current liabilities 75,531 69,120 67,580 68,851 15,027
Total liabilities 1,079,625 1,137,301 1,258,765 1,333,143 264,439
Shareholders’ funds 1,319,876 1,276,377 1,243,210 1,238,064 627,203
Capital expenditure 56,436 47,230 46,672 67,715 97,101
cents cents cents cents cents
Earnings per share — pre goodwill 735 74.8 55.3 53.7 471
Earnings per share — post goodwill 68.7 70.0 504 50.1 471
Dividend per share 67.0 63.0 51.0 47.0 43.0
Operating cash flow per share 90.7 100.0 65.7 60.5 39.1
Return on shareholders’ funds {post goodwill} 18.8% 19.0% 14.1% 15.6% 18.8%
Net assets per share $3.81 $3.42 $3.34 $3.33 $2.06
Operating revenue $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Wagering 421,302 403,610 380,339 363,107 362,967
Gaming 848,137 917,569 846,343 794,348 713,188
Star City 631,242 611,873 586,271 438,376 -
Total 1,900,681 1,933,052 1,812,959 1,595,831 1,066,165

EBITDA - Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

PBIT - Profit before interest and tax
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AS AT 21 AUGUST 2003

{

Share capital
TABCORP has on issue 365,656,621 fully paid ordinary shares.

The company conducted an on market share buy-back
between 10 May 2002 and 17 December 2002, for which a
total of 11,278,081 shares were bought back and subsequently
cancelled for a total consideration of $128,729,792.87
{excluding brokerage calculated at 0.1%). The buy-back was
undertaken as part of TABCORP’s policy to maximise returns
to shareholders and formed part of the company's efficient
capital management strategy. There is not currently any share
buy-back in respect of the company’s shares.

Substantial shareholders

The following substantial shareholder notices have been
lodged in accordance with section 871B of the Corporations
Act 2001:

Number of % of
Date of ordinary issued
Name interest shares? capital2
Maple-Brown
Abbott Limited 31July 2003 30,308,972 828

Perpetual Trustees

Australia Limited 5 December 2002 30,073,434 8.16

UBS Nominees

Pty Ltd 16 June 2003 22513668 6.16

1 as disclosed in last notice lodged.
2 the percentage set out in the notice is calculated on the total issued share
capital of the company at the date of change in interest.

Distribution of shareholdings

Number of % of
Number of Number of % of ordinary issued
shares held holders holders shares capital
1-1,000 49,753 62.91 30,842,336 8.44
1,001 - 5,000 25919 32.77 60,204,584 1647
5,001 - 10,000 2,302 29N 17.397.417 476
10,001 - 100,000 990 1.25 23,729,305 6.49
100,001 and over 119 0.15 233,382,879 6384
Total 79,083 100.00 365,556,521 100.00

Voting rights

All shares issued by TABCORP Holdings Limited carry one
vote per share. Part 4 of the Gaming and Betting Act 1994 and
Rules 134 to 142 of the company’s Constitution contain certain
restrictions in relation to shareholding interests. Failure to
comply with certair provisions of the Gaming and Betting Act
or the Constitution can result in suspension of voting rights.
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Twenty largest shareholders*

Number of % of
ordinary issued

Name shares capital
J P Morgan Nominees
Australia Limited 39,796,277 10.88
National Nominees Limited 39,348,227 10.76
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 38,697,326 10.59
RBC Global Services Australia
Nominees Pty Limited 37,703,080 10.31
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 10,145,553 278
Commonwealth Custodial
Services Limited 8,050,048 220
Queensland Investment Corporation 7,220,987 1.88
ANZ Nominees Limited 5,367,929 1.47
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 5,131,953 1.40
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia)
Limited 4,769,851 1.30
AMP Life Limited 3,844,478 1.05
IOOF Investment Management Ltd 1,733,254 0.47
Invia Custodian Pty Limited 1,683,315 0.46
NRMA Nominees Pty Limited 1,656,162 0.45
UBS Warburg Private Clients 1,605,140 0.44
Merrill Lynch (Australia) Nominees
Pty Ltd 1,395,401 0.38
Australian United Investment
Co Limited 1,190,000 0.33
Perpetual Trustee Co Ltd {(Hunter) 1,059,844 0.29
PSS Board 1,048,470 0.29
Government Superannuation Office 1,036,170 0.28
Total of top twenty shareholders 212,483,485 58.13

* On a grouped hasis

Marketable Parcel

There were 114 shareholders holding less than a marketable
parcel ($500) based on a market price of $11.40 at the close
of trading on 21 August 2003.

Shareholding Restrictions

On 19 June 2002, Royal Assent was given to the Gaming
Legislation (Amendment)} Act, enabling TABCORP's individual
shareholder restriction to be increased from 5% to 10%, and
removing the previous 40% foreign ownership restriction.




INVESTOR INFORMATION

L

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Investors seeking information about their shareholding should
contact the company's Share Registry. Shareholders should
have their Shareholder Reference Number (SRN) available to
assist in responding to their enquiries.

TABCORP's Share Registry

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited

GPO Box 1736P Melbourne Vic 3001
Telephone: 03 9615 9939

Toll Free: 1300 665 661

Facsimile: 03 9615 9900

Facsimile: 03 9615 9744 (proxy forms only)
Email; registrars@asxperpetual.com.au
Website: www.asxperpetual com.au

SHARE REGISTRY ON-LINE AT www.asxperpetual.com.au
The Share Registry’s website allows shareholders to check
their current and previous holding balances. Shareholders can
also check and update their annual report election and Tax File
Number (TFN) or Australian Business Number (ABN). There
are also a number of forms that can be downloaded to advise
a change of address or change of direct credit details for
dividend payments.

GENERAL ENQUIRIES ABOUT TABCORP
If you would like more information about the company,
you are invited to contact:

TABCORP's Shareholder Relations Manager
Telephone: 03 9868 2779

Facsimile: 03 9868 2726

Email: investor@tabcorp.com.au

Website: www.tabcorp.com.au

TABCORP ON THE WEB AT www.tabcorp.com.au

Investor information is available on TABCORP's website.
This website includes key Australian Stock Exchange
announcements, Annual and Half-Yearly Reports and general
company information.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The company’s shares are listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange under the code 'TAH'. Trading information is
published in daily newspapers.

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS

The company’s shares are traded in sponsored American
Depositary Receipts (ADR) form in the United States of
America. ADR holders receive all information sent to
shareholders and receive their dividends in US dollars.
Each ADR represents 10 TABCORP ordinary shares.
Enquiries about ADRs should be made to:

Anita Sung

Assistant Vice President

The Bank of New York — ADR Division

101 Barclay Street, New York 10286 USA

Telephone: +212 815 8161

Telephone: 1 888 BNY ADRs {shareholder relations, US residents)
Telephone: +1 610 312 5315 (shareholder relations, non US residents)
Facsimile: +212 571 3050

Website: www.adrbny.com

REMOVAL FROM THE ANNUAL REPORT MAILING LIST
Shareholders who do not wish to receive the Annual Report
or Half-Yearly Report should advise the company’s Share
Registry in writing. The last six Annual Reports are currently
available from the company’s website. This report and future
reports will be made available on the website shortly after
being mailed to shareholders.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Shareholders should advise the Share Registry immediately in
writing as soon as there is a change to their address, or bank
account details if required for dividend payment purposes.
Broker sponsored shareholders should advise their
sponsoring broker.

DIRECT CREDIT OF DIVIDENDS

Dividend payments may be credited intc a nominated
account with a financial institution in Australia. You should
advise the Share Registry in writing of your details. Recent
dividend payments are detailed in the Directors’ Report.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (DRP)
TABCORP’s DRP has previously been inoperative, however a
new DRP will commence operation for the next interim dividend.

TAX FILE NUMBER (TFN)/AUSTRALIAN BUSINESS
NUMBER {ABN)

The company is obliged to deduct tax at the top marginal
rate plus Medicare levy from any unfranked or partially
franked dividends paid to Australian resident shareholders
who have not supplied their TEN, ABN or exemption details,
For those shareholders who have not provided this
information and would like to do so, please contact the
company’s Share Registry.

CONSOLIDATION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

If you have received more than one Annual Report for the
same shareholding, please contact the company’s Share
Registry to consolidate your details into a single shareholding.

PRIVACY

TABCORP respects the privacy of its stakeholders.
TABCORP’s Privacy Policy is available on our website at
www.tabcorp.com.au

INVESTMENT WARNING

Past performance of shares is not necessarily a guide to
future performance. The value of investments and any income
from them is not guaranteed and can fall as well as rise.
TABCORP strongly recommends investors seek independent
professional advice before making investment decisions.

KEY DATES

2003 Date
Annual General Meeting {at Star City, Sydney) 30 October

2004*

Half-year results announcement 19 February
Ex-dividend for interim dividend 25 February
Record date for interim dividend 2 March
Interim dividend payment 6 April

End of financial year 30 June
Full-year results announcement 12 August
Ex-dividend for final dividend 18 August
Record date for final dividend 24 August
Final dividend payment 30 September
Annual General Meeting 28 October

* These dates may change. See the company’s website for updates.

DISCLOSING INFORMATION
TABCORP immediately informs the Australian Stock Exchange
of anything that may affect the company’s share price.
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MARKET DISCLOSURE
L ]

WEBSITE

The company’s website guickly and conveniently keeps shareholders informed about TABCORP's activities and its performance.
The Annual and Helf Yearly reports to shareholders, interim and preliminary results, webcasts of results and AGM presentations,

major news releases and other company statements are available on the website. There is also a link to the on-line share registry
facility that enables shareholders to conduct standard enquiries and transactions.

% TABCORP www.tabcorp.com.au
Al

u About TABCORP SharelReqistny
n Responsible Gambling On-line Share Registry

Publications Click here to access the on-ine share registry facility.
vlnvestor Relations Shareholders can use the on-line share registry facility to conduct standard shareholding enquiries and transactions, including:

Shareholding balances

Dividenids
“Fpancial Summary. Annual report elections
2 T Dividend instructions and elect to receive payments by direct credit
; i Tax File Number / Australian Business Number notification
. Change of registered address

Share Registry Name correction request

. : I you are unsure about anything regarding your shareholding please contact the share registry.
i Help us save paper and costs

Profile. of Shareholder: P Ve pap

eont Shareholders are encouraged to use the on-line share registry facility to quickly and accurately update their details and reduce the impact on
ontacts the environment and cost assaciated with printing and sending annual reports, dividend cheques and other materials by mail,

Community Involvement
Annual Report

Career Opportunities X X X
Shareholders can elect not to receive a printed copy of the company'’s annual report and hatf yearly report. The annual repert and all major company
Website Information announcements are available on this website. All sharehalders will continue to receive notice of meetings, proxy forms and other

_ correspondence. Make your selection using the on-fine share registry facility.

MAJOR ANNOUNCEMENTS
Ali major company announcements can be found on the company's website at www.tabcorp.com.au following their release to
the Australian Stock Exchange. The major company announcements since the previous annual report are;

2003 Subject

13 August Full Year Results — net profit after tax (excluding non-recurring items) up 1.5% to $263.1 million
30 June TABCORP acquires Leighton's 15% interest in Star City Management Agreement

12 June Jupiters and TABCORP finalise merger terms

11 June Appointment of Mr Mohan Jesudason as Executive General Manager - Gaming

6 June Response to newspaper article in relation to possible extension of TABCORP'S Victorian licences
15 May Smoking bans will impact full year profits )

15 May Merger of Jupiters and TABCORP progress update

5 March Merger of Jupiters and TABCORP

19 February Half Year Results — net profit after tax (excluding non-recurring items) up 4.7% to $134.1 million
5 February TABCORP denies share placement rumour

10 January Merger discussions with Jupiters

2002

4 December TABCORP'S revenue growth impacted by smoking bans

2 December David Eimslie to replace Mr Simpscon as Chief Finance Officer

21 November  TABCORP responds to Australian Labor Party gambling policy

11 November  Victorians bet in record numbers on Melbourne Cup Carnival
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors of TABCORP Holdings Limited has
pleasure in submitting the statement of financial position of
the company and the economic entity in respect of the
financial year ended 30 June 2003, and the related statement
of financial performance and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The names and details of the directors in office at the date of
this report are set out below.

M.B. Robinson AO
Chairman and non-executive director since June 1994

Michael Robinson is a Partner of the law firm, Allens Arthur
Robinson. He was the Senicr Partner of Arthur Robinson &
Hedderwicks 1996-2001 and was its Managing Partner
1980-1988. Mr Robinson is Chairman of the Bionic Ear
Institute, a Trustee of the Epworth Medical Foundation and &
director of the Asia Scciety AustralAsia Centre, the National
Australia Day Council, the State Orchestra of Victoria, Clough
Limited and the Genera! Sir John Monash Foundation. He is
Chairman of the TABCORP Nomination Committee and is a
member of the TABCORP Audit, Remuneration and
Compliance Committees.

M.J. Slatter
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer since
October 2002

Matthew Slatter commenced as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer in October 2002. Mr Slatter was previously
Chief Finance Officer and director of AXA Asia Pacific Holdings
Limited since July 2000 and has over 20 years experience in
the financial services industry in Australia, New Zealand and
the United Kingdom. Immediately prior to joining AXA, he was
Chief Executive of the Bank of Melbourne, responsible for its
integration with Westpac, and has held general management
positions at Westpac, Lloyds TSB and The Naticnal Bank of
New Zealand.

A.G. Hodgson
Deputy Chairman and non-executive director since June 1994

Tony Hodgson was the co-founder and was formerly Senior
Partner of the chartered accounting firm Ferrier Hodgson and
is a Consultant to the firm. Mr Hodgson is Chairman of HSBC
Asset Management (Australia) Limited and Chairman of the
Advisory Board to the Victorian Rugby Union. Mr Hodgson

is also a director of Coles Myer Ltd, HSBC Bank Australia
Limited, Presidents Club Ltd and Collins Associates Ltd.

Mr Hodgson is Chairman of the TABCORP Audit Committee
and a member of the TABCORP Nomination Committee.

PG. Satre
Non-executive director since June 2000

Phil Satre is Chairman of Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., one of
the world's largest gambling companies. Mr Satre is also a
director of the Gaming Entertainment Research and Education
Foundations and the American Gaming Association. He is a
director of JON Realty Company.

PH. Wade
Non-executive director since June 1994

Peter Wade was Managing Director of North Broken Hill Peko
Limited until his retirement in 1993. He is Chairman of CSL
Limited. Mr Wade is Chairman of the TABCORP Remuneration
Committee and the TABCORP Staff Superannuation Fund, He
is also a member of the TABCORP Audit Committee.

R.FE. Warburton
Non-executive director since June 2000

Richard Warburton was formerly Chairman of Star City
Holdings Limited. He is currently Chairman of Caltex Australia
Limited and the Board of Taxation. Mr Warburton is also a
director of Southcerp Limited and Nufarm Limited. He is a
member of the TABCORP Remuneration and Nomination
Committees.

W.V. Wilson
Non-executive director since June 1924

Warren Wilson held senior posts at the Scuth Australian and
Tasmanian Totalizator Agency Boards from 1967 until he
joined the Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club in 1978. In 1980

Mr Wilson became the executive director responsible for all
betting and lottery activity. He retired from the Club in January
1994. Mr Wilson is a Board member of the South Australian
Forestry Corporation, and a Partner in the Ramada Pier Hotel
at Glenelg in South Australia. He is Chairman of the TABCORP
Compliance Committee.

CHANGES TO THE BOARD’'S COMPOSITION

Mr M.J. Slatter commenced as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer on 8 October 2002. Messrs |.R. Wilson,
formerly Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, and
D.J. Simpson, formerly Finance Director, ceased as directors
on 31 August 2002 and 21 February 2003 respectively. All
other directors held their position as a director throughout the
entire financial year and continue to hold that position.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
At the date of this report, the relevant interests of the directors in the shares, options or other instruments of the companies within
the economic entity, as notified by the directors to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with Section 205G(1) of the

Corporations Act 2001, are:

e | TABCORP Hoidings United
Name Ordinary Shares Options
M.B. Robinson 45,000 ~
M.J. Slatter 500,000"  2,500,0002
A.G. Hodgson 100,000 -
PG. Satre 4,000 -
PH. Wade 30,000 -
R.FE. Warburton 12,500 -
WV Wilson 50,000 -

(' Mr M.J. Slatter was provided with a loan to acquire 500,000 ordinary shares on the terms and conditions set out in the rules of the TABCORP Senior

Executive Long Term Incentive Plan previously appraved by shareholders.

12}2,500,000 options witf. an exercise price of $12.61 per share were issued to Mr M.J. Slatter (see Directors’ and Officers’ Remuneration section of this report).

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
During the year the Company held 14 meetings of the Board of Directors. The attendances of the Directors at meetings of the
Board and its Committees were:

; itfee

Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
Name Attended possible  Attended possible  Attended possible  Attended possible
M.B. Robinson 14 14 5 5 2 2 6 6
M.J. Slatter 1 11 - - - - - -
A.G, Hodgson 13 14 5 5 - - - -
PG. Satre 13 14 - - - - - -
PH. Wade 13 14 4 b - - 6 6
R.EE. Warburton 14 14 - - - - 6 6
WM Wilson 13 14 - - 2 2 - -
D.J. Simpson 8 8 - - - - - -
I.R. Wilson 2 2 1 1 - - 1 1

In addition to the scheduled Board meetings, the Board meets as needs dictate.

The details of the functions and memberships of the Committees of the Board are presented in the Corporate Governance section

of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' REMUNERATION
Remuneration of directors and senior executives of the
company is determined by the Remuneration Committee.
Remuneration is determined as part of an annual performance
review, having regard to market factors, a performance
evaluation process and independent remuneration advice.

For executive directors and officers, remuneration packages
generally comprise salary, a performance based bonus and
superannuation. Executives are also provided with longer-term
incentives through the Senior Executive Long Term Incentive
Plan and the General Employee Share Plan, which act to align
the executives’ actions with the interests of the shareholders.
Non-executive directors are not entitled to performance based
bonuses.

At the 2002 Annual General Meeting, shareholders noted
that Mr M.J. Slatter had been granted 2,500,000 options to
acquire ordinary shares in TABCORP Holdings Limited with an

exercise price of $12.61 per share. One million of these
options expire no fater than 7 October 2010 and will vest only
if certain annual and cumulative benchmarks are achieved.
The remaining options vested immediately and will expire

on 7 October 2005,

During the financial year, Mr |.R. Wilson exercised 2,194,500
options to acquire fully paid ordinary shares in TABCORP
Holdings Limited at an exercise price of $10.18.

Mr |.R. Wilson had 805,500 remaining options, which

could only be exercised if the company achieved specified
performance benchmarks for the period 1 July 1993 to

30 June 2003. As these benchmarks were not achieved, none
of these options could be exercised and have now lapsed.

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option,
to participate in any share issue of the company, other than
through exercise of the options.




The remuneration provided to directors and the five most highly remunerated officers of the company and the economic entity is
as follows:

Directors

M.B. Robinson 276,250 10,519 53,316 340,085 286,76S
M.J. Slatter 778682 175,000 76,125 1,331 1,253 1,615,043% 30,254 2,677,688 2,677,688
A.G. Hodgson 160,000 10,519 30,240 200,758 170,519
PG. Satre 109,000 71,060 180,060 108,000
PH. Wade 121,250 10,210 26,675 158,135 131,460
R.EE. Warburton 106,250 9563 89,100 204913 115813
WV, Wilson 112,500 9985 21,825 144,310 122485
LR. Wilson? 930,838 167,182 167,349 157,780 441,289 119,051 1,983.490 1,983.490
D.J. Simpson® 261,794 76,692 26,945 27555 18,332 411,318 411,318
Senior Executives — Economic Entity

D. Banks 590,099 85346 150,758 42178 39817 24,600 912,798
PR. Broberg 379879 279256 92,525 34,733 35422 18,269 589,753
D.E. Elmslie 461802 25053 107,583 34,660 35,362 31,388 695,848
M.J. Piggott 398,940 73,059 103,836 34605 32,856 30,594 673,883
J.C. Read 302,012 24300 80516 35,342 33,527 12,203 487,900
Senior Executives — Company

PR. Broberg 379879 27925 92,525 34733 35422 19,269 589,753
P H. Caillard 208803 16314 38,786 18874 18932 14,830 316,539
D.E. Emslie 461,802 25,053 107,583 34660 35362 31,388 695,848
R.E. Preston 206,794 10,938 38,785 20,019 20,217 16,480 313,234
J.C. Read 302,012 24300 80516 35342 33,8527 12,203 487,800

{0 Salaries for executive directors and senior executives include accruals for annual and long service leave.
2 Accrual for retirement benefits for non-executive directors approved by the company’s shareholders on 10 November 1999.

(3) Each option entitled the holder to purchase one ordinary share in the company.

@4 Cost to company to provide low interest/interest free loan(s).
(51 Total excludes retirement benefits for non-executive directors.

©® Mr M.J. Slatter was appointed on 8 October 2002. The estimated value ($1,615,043) disclosed above is calculated at the date of grant using the following
methodologies. 1,500,000 options expire on 7 October 2005 and were granted in consideration of contractual entitiements Mr Slatter had with his previous
employer. The estimated value {$1,334,893) is calculated using a Standard Binomial model. 1,000,000 options expire no later than 7 October 2010, The ability
to exercise these options is conditional on the economic entity achieving certain performance hurdles. The estimated value ($220,150) is calculated using a

Monte Carlo Simulation-based model.

7 Mr |.R. Wilson retired on 31 August 2002. Emolument includes salary paid to retirement, payment on retirement and annual leave accrued to cessation.
® These options have lapsed subsequent to 30 June 2003 as the performance hurdles relating to them have not been met. Estimated value disclosed above is

calculated at the date of grant using a Monte Carlo Simulation-based model.

8 Mr D.J. Simpson retired on 21 February 2003.

SHARE OPTIONS

The only options on issue are the 2,500,000 options issued 10
Mr M.J. Slatter (see the Directors’ and Officers’ Remuneration
section of this report above).

EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN

During the financial year, 477,700 shares were issued to
employees pursuant to the TABCORP General Employee
Share Plan {'the Plan’) previously approved by shareholders.
Employees who acquire shares under the Plan are provided
with an interest free loan to acquire the shares and are
obliged to repay the loan by way of deduction from their after
tax wage or salary in equal instalments over five years. The
company's security for each of these loans is limited to the
shares acquired with that particular loan under the Plan. The
company also operates a separate Senior Executive Long
Term Incentive Plan which is referred to in the Directors’ and
Officers’ Remuneration section. During the financial year,
1,198,500 shares were issued to senior executives under this
plan (including the 500,000 shares to Mr M.J. Slatter referred
10 abovel).

CORPORATE INFORMATION

TABCORP Holdings Limited is a company limited by shares
that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered
office of TABCORP Holdings Limited is 5 Bowen Crescent,
Melboume, Victoria 3004, Australia.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the economic entity during the
financial year comprised the provision of leisure and
entertainment services (particularly in relation to gambling).
The principal activities remain unchanged from the previous
year.

RESULTS

‘Consolidated profit after income tax of the economic entity for
the financial year was $252.6 million which was 3.2% below
the previous financial year. The economic entity generated
profit before interest, taxation and amortisation of goodwill of
$438.7 million, which was 3.2% below the previous financial
year. It generated operating revenue of $1,900.7 million, which
was 1.7% below the operating revenue achieved in the
previous financial year.
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DIVIDENDS

The following dividends (including special dividends) have
been paid, declared or recommended since the end of the
preceding financial year by the parent entity:

$'000

Final fully franked dividend for 2002 of 32.0 cents
per share on ordinary shares as declared by the
directors on 15 August 2002 and paid on

27 September 2002.

Interim fully franked dividend for 2003 of 33.0 cents
per share on ordinary shares as declared by the
directors on 19 February 2003 and paid on

2 April 2003.

Final fully franked dividend for 2003 of 34.0 cents
per share on ordinary shares as declared by the
directors on 13 August 2003 payable on

1 October 2003.

118,994

120,634

124,289

Further information regarding dividends may be found in
Note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The economic entity achieved profit after tax for the year of
$252.6 million which was 3.2% behind last year. During the
year, the economic entity’s total operating revenue fell by
1.7% to $1,900.7 million. Basic earnings per share were

68.7 cents, down 1.8% on the previous corresponding period.

A final dividend of 34 cents per ordinary share has been
declared. The dividend will be fully franked and payable on

1 October 2003 to shareholders registered on the books at

5 September 2003. This takes the full year dividend to

67 cents, an increase of 4 cents on the previous financial year.

WAGERING

The Wagering Division generated profit before interest,
taxation and amortisation of goodwill of $67.0 miftion?, which
was 0.4 % above the previous financial year. The Wagering
Division's total operating revenue increased by 4.4% to
$421.3 million. This strong result was partly attributable to
controlled operating expenses and another successful spring
racing carnival.

GAMING

The Gaming Divisicn achieved profit before interest, taxation
and amortisation of goodwill of $208.2 million’, which was
11.8% below the previous financial year. The Gaming
Division's totat operating revenue decreased by 7.6% to
$848.1 million. These results were adversely affected by the
introduction of smoking bans in Victorian gaming venues on
1 September 2002.

STAR CITY

Star City achieved a profit before interest, taxation and
amortisation of goodwill of $174.9 million, which was 9.3%
above the previous financial year. Star City’s total operating
revenue increased by 3.2% to $631.2 million.

{1} Based on segment results as disclosed in Note 34 to the accounts
which excludes unallocated corporate revenue of $0.6 million and
expenses of $12.0 milfion.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

On 5 March 2003, the economic entity announced a proposal
to merge with Jupiters Limited by way of schemes of
arrangement under which the economic entity intends to
acquire all of the securities in Jupiters Limited.

The merged group will operate approximately 18,000

gaming machines with four casinos and hotel complexes in
Queensland and New South Wales, off-course wagering and
sportsbetting operations in Victoria as well as keno operations
across the east coast of Australia.

The merger is subject to approval by Jupiters Limited
shareholders as well as certain regulatory autherities. It is
currently anticipated that the merger will be implemented in
mid-November 2003.

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the
economic entity that occurred during the year other than as
set out elsewhere in this Directors’ Report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

No matter or circumstance has arisen since the end of

the financial year which is not otherwise dealt with in this
report or in the consolidated financial statements, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations
of the economic entity, the results of those operations or

the state of affairs of the economic entity in subsequent
financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE RESULTS

The proposed merger with Jupiters Limited will, if
implemented, constitute a significant change to the
company’s operations and is expected to be completed in
mid-November 2003. Otherwise, the economic entity will
continue with the strategies in the year under review.

The directors have excluded from this report any further
information on the likely developments in the operations

of the economic entity and the expected results of those
operations in future financial years, as the directors have
reasonable grounds to believe that to include such
information will be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice
1o the economic entity.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

At the company’s 2002 Annual General Meeting shareholders
approved the appointment of Emst & Young as external
auditor, following the merger between Ernst & Young and
Arthur Andersen. The company's internal auditors are KPMG.
More information relating to the auditors can be found in the
Corporate Governance statement of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The directors of the economic entity, or their director-related
entities, conduct transactions with entities within the
economic entity that occur within a normal employee,
customer or supplier relationship on terms and conditions
no more favourable than those with which it is reasonable
to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the
director or directorrelated entity at arm’s length in similar
circumstances. These transactions are described in further
detail in Note 38(d) of the economic entity’'s consolidated
financial statements.




ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE
No environmental breaches have been notified to the
economic entity by any government agency.

The consolidated entity’s environmental obligations and waste
discharge quotas are regulated under both state and federal
law. The consolidated entity has a record of at least
complying, but in most cases exceeding its environment
performance obligations. An independent audit of Star City's
compliance with environmental obligations was performed

by KPMG, which did not identify any areas of material
non-compliance.

Star City is a participant in the Federal Government's
‘Greenhouse Challenge Program’. In October 2002, the New
South Wales Minister for Energy awarded Star City with a
‘Silver Green Globe Award' in recognition for initiatives
including lighting changes, improvements in efficiency in
operating the major mechanical plant and waste management.
The energy savings achieved by Star City to win this award
was over 8,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO,) annually.

With the NSW Government's Sustainable Energy
Development Authority (SEDA), Star City is currently
investigating cpportunities for co-generation of energy and
believes it is on target to achieve the 'Gold Green Globe Award'.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
TABCORP Holdings Limited has entered into a contract
insuring each of the directors of the company named earlier in
this report and each full-time executive officer, director and
secretary of group entities, against all ligbilities and expenses
arising as a result of work performed in their respective
capacities, to the extent permitted by law. In accordance with
section 300(3) of the Corporations Act 2001 further details
have not been disclosed due to confidentiality provisions in
the insurance contracts.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The parent entity is a company of the kind specified in
Australian Securities and Investments Commission class order
88/0100. In accordance with that class order, amounts in the
financial statements and the Directors’ Report have been
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless specifically
stated to be otherwise.

A s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors of TABCORP Holdings Limited support and
adhere to the principles of corporate governance, recognising
the need for the highest standard of corporate behaviour and
accountability. A review of the company's corporate
governance practices was undertaken during the year. As a
result new practices were adopted and existing practices
optimised to reflect industry best practice. The Corporate
Governance statement is contained in the Annual Report.

This report has been signed in accordance with a resofution
of directors.

M.B. Robinson AO
Chairman

Melbourne
13 August 2003




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

2003

2002

2003

2002

Note $°000 $000 $000 $000
Total operating revenues 2 1,900,681 1,933,052 23,078 22,654
Other revenues from ordinary activities 2 36,447 34,607 279,091 269,793
Revenues from ordinary activities 2 1,937,128 1,967,659 302,169 292,447
Government taxes and levies (589,823) (609,591) -
Commissions and fees (415,961} (428,629) (10,385} (10, 194)
Employee costs (224,448) (227,084) (20,135) (18,858)
Depreciation and amortisation (105,209) (108,622) (1.97%) (1,899}
Property rentals, rates and maintenance (32,185) (23,024) (2,896) (2,799)
Computer costs (6,518) (6,902) (855) (800)
Advertising and promaotions (24.129) (26,013) (2,703} (3,319)
Written down value of non-current assets sotd (13,364) (4,788) (226) (209)
Insurance costs (8,290) (6,463} (248) (326)
Stock exchange expenses (142} (111) (142) (11
Professional and contract services (4,512) (3,961) (1,422) (1,363)
Audit and review services (572) {(527) (263) (248)
Borrowing costs (52,629) (56,009) (7,.934) (5,144)
Other expenses from ordinary activities (87,095) (82,640) (4,503) (4,966)
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 372,281 383,395 248,486 242111
Income tax (expenselbenefit relating to ordinary activities 4 {119,657} {122,436) 6 (890)
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 252,624 260,958 248,492 241,221
Decrease in retained profits on adoption of revised
Accounting Standard AASB 1028 ‘Employee Benefits’ 30 (305) - (67) -
Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments
attributable to members of the parent entity and
recognised directly in equity {305} - (57) -
Total changes in equity other than those resulting from
transactions with owners as owners attributable to
members of the parent entity 252,319 260,959 248,435 241,221
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 6 68.7 70.0
Diluted earnings per share {cents per share) 6 68.5 69.4
Basic earnings per share {cents per share)
(pre amortisation of goodwill) 6 735 74.8
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share)
{(pre amortisation of goodwill) 6 73.3 74.2

The accompanying notes form an integra! part of this Statement of Financial Performance.




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2003

2003

2003

2002

Note $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Current assets
Cash assets 7 118,789 126,843 483 221
Receivables 8 9,762 9,505 143,048 278,726
Inventories g 4,688 4,638 - -
Other 10 25,147 21,431 3,210 3,861
Total current assets 158,380 162,417 146,747 282,808
Non-current assets
Receivables 11 - - 537,600 593,929
Other financial assets 12 - - 3,290 3.241
Property, plant and equipment 13 759,212 802,313 3,915 4,710
Intangible assets - licences 14 831,201 833,905 597,304 597,424
Intangible assets — other 15 543,546 510,881 - -
Deferred tax assets 16 33,968 21,916 3.078 2,888
Other 17 73,194 82,246 37133 35,976
Total non-current assets 2,241,121 2,251,261 1,242,320 1,238,266
TOTAL ASSETS 2,399,601 2,413,678 1,389,067 1,521,074
Current liabilities
Payables 18 167,831 115,735 201,495 142,285
Interest bearing liabilities 19 450,898 144,000 - -
Current tax liabilities 21 34,829 28,262 - -
Provisions 22 35,266 147,005 4128 121,679
Other 23 200 291 - -
Total current liabilities 689,094 435,283 205,623 263,964
Non-current liabilities
Payables 24 - 2122 28,522 23,644
Interest bearing liabilities 25 315,000 632,898 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 26 58,176 56,888 305 461
Provisions 27 16,450 9,016 746 549
Other 28 905 1,084 - -
Total non-current liabilities 390,531 702,018 29,573 24,654
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,079,625 1,137,301 235,196 288,618
NET ASSETS 1,319,876 1,276,377 1,163,871 1,232,456
Equity
Contributed equity 29 1,137,766 1,226,366 1,137,766 1,226,366
Retained profits 30 182,110 50,011 16,105 6,090
TOTAL EQUITY 1,319,876 1,276,377 1,163,871 1,232,456

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Statement of Financial Position.



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

DE e

2003 2002 2003 2002

Note $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash receipts in the course of operations 1,935,489 1,975,264 54,389 51,540
Payments to suppliers, service providers and employees (832,640) (835,363) (45,233) (37.936)
Payment of Government levies, betting taxes and GST (650,282) {573,150) (3,174) (2,080)
Dividends received - - 226,634 199,518
Interest received 4,113 4,202 602 717
Borrowing costs paid (56,548) (57,730) (1) M
Income tax {paid)/received {121,785) (98,617) (637) 370
Net operating. cash flows 33(b) 378,367 414,706 232,580 212,128
Cash flows from investing activities
Loans pursuant to employee share plan 12,688 6,039 12,688 6,039
Payment for property, plant and equipment (58,002) (46,817) (1,559) (2,867)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13,527 5,281 269 458
Payment of merger costs (2,229) - - -
Other 38(c) 3,546 153 3,302 153
Loans advanced to controlled entities - - (14,030) {6,500)
Loans repaid by controlied entities - - 31,497 166
Net investing cash flows (30,470) (35,344) 32,167 (2,551)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans from controlled entities - - 119,932 10,000
Repayment of loans from controlled entities - - (39,460) (9.425)
Proceeds from borrowings 314,000 280,000 - -
Repayment of borrowings {325,000) (442,133) - -
Dividends paid (239,628) (212,725} (239,628) (212,725)
Proceeds from issue of shares 22,340 - 22,340 -
Payment for share buy-back 29(a) (127,663) (1,195) (127,663) (1,195)
Net financing cash flows (365,951) (376,053) (264,479) (213,345)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (8,054) 3,309 268 (3,768)
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 126,843 123,634 221 3.983
Cash at the end of the financial year 33(a) 118,789 126,843 489 227

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Statement of Cash Flows.




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NOTE /ﬂ Statement of significant accounting policies

The significant policies which have been adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements are:

(a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been drawn up as a general
purpose financial report in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views
and the Corporations Act 2001. The accounting policies used
are consistent with those adopted in the previous year, except
where there is a change in accounting policy as set out in
Note 1{u). The financial statements have also been prepared
on the basis of historical costs and do not take into account
changing money values or, except where stated, current
valuations of non-current assets. The accounting policies
described below have been consistently applied by all entities
in the economic entity.

{b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the economic entity
include the financial statements of the parent entity, TABCORP
Holdings Limited, and its controlled entities, referred to
collectively throughout these financial statements as the
‘economic entity’. Where an entity began to be controfled
during the vear, the results are included only from the date
control commenced. The balances, and effects of
transactions, between controlled entities included in the
consolidated financial statements have been eliminated.

{c) Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the excess of the purchase
consideration plus incidental costs over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired on the acquisition of a
controlled entity, is amortised over the pericd of time during
which benefits are expected to arise.

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over 20 years.

The unamortised balance of goodwill is reviewed at least at
each reporting date. Where the balance exceeds the value of
expected future benefits, the difference is charged to the
statement of financial performance.

In establishing the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired, a liability for restructuring costs is only recognised at
the date of acquisition where there is a demonstrable
commitment and a detailed plan. The liability is only
recognised where there is little or no discretion to avoid
payment to other parties in settlement of costs of the
restructuring and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
liability as at the date of acquisition can be made.

{d) Revenue Recognition

Revenue

Wagering and Gaming revenue is recognised as the residual
value after deducting the statutory return to customers from
the Wagering and Gaming turnover. Casino revenue is the net
gaming win plus the retail sales of food, beverages,
accommodation and other services.

Revenues from ordinary operations include revenue derived
from monitoring operations which is recognised as earned.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues.

Asset Sales

The gross proceeds of asset sales are included as revenue of
the entity. The profit and loss on disposal of assets is brought
to account at the completion of the sale.

{e) Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Australian
currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Amounts receivable and payable in foreign
currencies at balance date are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling on that date. Exchange differences relating to
amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies are
brought to account as exchange gains or losses in the
statement of financial performance in the financial period in
which the exchange rates change.

{f) Taxation

The economic entity follows the policy of tax effect
accounting. The income tax expense in the statement of
financial performance represents the tax on pre-tax accounting
profit adjusted for income and expenses never to be assessed
or allowed for taxation purposes. The tax effect of timing
differences which arise from items being brought to account
in different periods for income tax and accounting purposes is
carried forward in the statement of financial position as a
future income tax benefit or a provision for deferred income
tax liability, calculated at the tax rates expected to apply when
the differences reverse. Future income tax benefits are not
brought to account unless realisation of such benefit is
assured beyond any reasonable doubt. Future income tax
benefits relating to entities with tax losses are only brought to
account when their realisation is virtually certain.

{g) Non-Current Assets

The carrying amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to
determine whether they are in excess of their recoverable
amount at balance date. if the carrying amount of a non-
current asset exceeds the recoverable amount, the asset is
written down to the lower amount. In assessing recoverable
amounts the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to
their present value.

(h} Financial Instruments
Trade accounts receivable generally settled within 60 days are
carried at amounts due, and are non interest bearing.

A provision is raised for any doubtful debts based on a review
of all outstanding amounts at balance date. Bad debts are
written off in the period in which they are identified. The
carrying amounts approximate fair value.

Cash, short-term deposits and bank accepted bills are carried
at cost. Interest revenue is recognised on an effective yield
basis. The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of
their short term to maturity.



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JLINE 2003

NOTE )ﬂ Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

Trade accounts payabile, including accruals not yet billed, are
recognised when the economic entity becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or
services. Trade accounts payable are generally settled within
30 days, and are non interest bearing. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value.

Bank overdraft and loans are carried at cost. Borrowing costs,
including interest, are expensed as incurred. The carrying
amounts approximate fair value because of the short term to
maturity of the amounts drawn.

Loans pursuant to the employee share plan are held at the
outstanding value applicable to the loan at balance date. The
carrying amounts approximate their fair value as the amounts
are based on the economic entities’ entitlement to all monies
outstanding.

Ordinary share capital bears no special terms or conditions
affecting income or capital entitlements of the shareholders.

Refer to Note 41(c) for details of interest rate swap
agreements and Note 41(d} for interest rate option
agreements.

{i) Property, Plant and Equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment excluding freehold land
are recorded at cost and depreciated by the straight line
method to write off the original cost over the estimated useful
lives. Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition.

The depreciation rates used for each class of asset are within
the following ranges:

1.05% t0 11.11%

1.05% to 20.00%

{2002: 1.05% to 25.00%)
5.26% to 33.33%
20.00% to 33.33%

Freehold land is recorded at the lower of cost and recoverable
amount and is not depreciated.

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and equipment
Consumables

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and
amortised over the life of the relevant lease, or where
ownership is likely to be obtained on expiration of the lease,
over the expected useful life of the asset. Lease payments are
allocated between interest expense and reduction in the lease
liability.

Operating lease assets are not capitalised and rental payments
are charged against profits in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term. Provision is
made for future operating lease payments in relation to surplus
lease space.

10

{j) Licences

The wagering and gaming licence has not been amortised as
the payment to be received by the parent entity under Section
21 of the Gaming and Betting Act 1984 at the end of the
licence period is currently expected to be not less than the
carrying value of the asset. The licence period expires in the
year 2012, The casino licence is amortised over the life of

the casino licence, being ninety-nine years from the date of
issue, 14 December 1994, Other licences are amortised over
the period of operation of the licences.

(k) Rights to Management Agreement

The rights to the Casino Complex Management Agreement in
relation to the operation, management and supervision of the
casino is being amortised over the life of the agreement,
which coincides with the term of the casino licence.

() Rental Expenditure

The payment made for rental in advance for the casino site
for 12 years has been deferred in the statement of financial
position at the nominal amount and is being amortised over
12 years commencing from the date of issue of the casino
licence, being 14 December 1894. The payment made for
rental in advance in respect of a property (switching station)
has been deferred in the statement of financial position at
the nominal amount and is being amortised over ninety-five
years commencing from the date of acquisition of the site,
being 5 December 1997,

{m) Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue comprises three elements, being an amount
representing an initial lease incentive period at the
commencement of a non-cancellable operating lease which is
being reduced on an imputed interest basis over the lease
term at the rate implicit in the lease, deferred revenue relating
to exclusivity contracts which is being reduced over the period
of the contracts, and third party contributions to a capital
project which is being reduced over five years.

(n) Investments

Investments in controlled entities are carried in the parent
entity’s financial statements at the lower of cost and
recoverable amount. Dividends and distributions are brought
to account in the statement of financial performance when
they are declared by the controlled entities.

{0) Inventories

Inventories include consumable stores, food and beverages,
finished goods and work in progress and are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned on a
weighted average basis.




NOTE ’H Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p} Employee Benefits

Wages, Salaries, and Annual Leave

Liabilities for employee benefits of salaries and wages
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date
and annual leave represent present obligations resulting from
employees’ services provided to reporting date, calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on remuneration rates the
company expects to pay, including related on-costs when the
liability is expected to be settled.

Long Service Leave

The liability for employee benefits to long service leave
represents the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made by the employer resulting from
employees’ services provided up to the balance date.
Liabilities for employee entitlements which are not expected to
be settled within 12 months are discounted using the interest
rate applicable to Commonwealth Government bonds at
balance date. In determining the liability for employee
entitlements, consideration has been given to future increases
in wage and salary rates. Related on-costs have also been
included in the liability.

Employee Share Plan

A TABCORP employee share plan has been established under
which shares in TABCORP Holdings Limited and loans to
acquire shares in the parent entity are made available to
eligible employees (refer Note 31).

Superannuation

TABCORP Holdings Limited and its controlled entities
contributed to a number of employee superannuation funds.
Contributions are charged against income as incurred (refer
Note 31).

Workers’ Compensation

Star City Holdings Limited self-insures in relation to workers’
compensation, and a provision has been brought to account
(refer Note 22).

{q) Provisions

Dividends

A provision for dividends payable is recognised in the reporting
period in which the dividends are declared, for the entire
undistributed amount, regardiess of the extent to which they
will be paid in cash.

Surplus Lease Space

Provision is made for nor-cancellable operating lease rentals
payable on surplus leased premises when it is determined
that no substantive future benefit will be obtained from its
occupancy and sub-lease rentals are less. The estimate is
calculated based on discounted net future cash flows, using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or an estimate thereof.

(r) Joint Venture Operation

The economic entity’s interest in an unincorporated joint
venture operation is brought to account by including the
following appropriate categories in the statement of financial
position and statement of financial performance:

* the economic entity’s interest in each of the individual
assets employed and liabilities incurred in the joint venture
operation; and

* the economic entity's share of product and expenses
relating to the joint venture operation {refer Note 37).

(s) Rounding of Amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in class order 98/0100,
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission, relating to the rounding off’ of amounts in the
financial report. Amounts in the financial report have been
rounded off in accordance with that class order to the nearest
thousand dollars.

{t} Comparative Information

Comparative information has been reclassified to achieve
consistency in disclosure with current financial year and other
disclosures, where necessary.

{u) Changes in Accounting Policy

The company has adopted the new Accounting Standard
AASB 1044 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’ which has resulted in a change in the accounting for
dividend provisions. Previously, the company recognised a
provision for dividend as a liability based on the amount that
was proposed or declared after the reporting date. In
accordance with the requirements of the new standard, a
provision for dividend will only be recognised at the reporting
date where the dividends are declared, determined or publicly
recommended prior to the reporting date. The effect of the
revised policy has been to increase consolidated retained
profits and decrease provisions at the beginning of the
financial year by $119.408 million. in accordance with the new
standard, no provision for dividend has been recognised for
the financial year ended 30 June 2003. The change in
accounting policy has had no effect on basic and diluted
earnings per share.

The company has adopted the revised Accounting Standard

AASB 1028 ‘Employee Benefits’ which has resulted in a

change in the accounting for annual leave. In accordance with

the requirements of the revised standard, the liability for

annual leave is now calculated using the remuneration rates

the company expects to pay. including related on-costs when

the liability is expected to be settled. The effect of the revised

policy at the beginning of the financial year has been to:

* increase provision for employee benefits by $0.436 million
(company: $0.081 million});

* decrease opening retained profits by $0.305 million
{company: $0.057 million); and

* increase future income tax benefits by $0.131 million
(company: $0.024 million).

1



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

2003

2002

TABCORE Hodings.

2003 2002

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
NOTE 2 Profit from ordinary activities
Profit from ordinary activities has been determined after
crediting the following revenues:
Total operating revenues 1,900,681 1,933,052 23,078 22,654
Other revenues:
Interest received or due and receivable from:
¢ wholly-owned group companies - - - S
¢ other than related parties 4173 4103 592 695
Dividends received or due and receivable from
wholly-owned group companies - - 243,700 240,200
Gross proceeds from sale of non-current assets (@ 13,628 5,281 269 458
Rental from properties 1,889 2,656 50 45
Net foreign exchange gain 1,992 2,039 - -
Other revenue items 14,865 20,628 28,480 28,389
Total other revenues 36,447 34,607 279,091 269,793
Total revenues from ordinary activities 1,937,128 1,967,659 302,169 292 447
® Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 164 492 43 249
Profit from ordinary activities has been determined after
charging the following expenses:
Depreciation of:
* buildings 5,752 5,709 - -
* leasehold improvements 2,370 2,087 - -
* plant and equipment 64,179 67,821 1,971 1,899
* consumables 74 185 - -
Total depreciation 72,375 75,782 1,971 1,899
Amortisation of:
¢ goodwill 17,955 17,952 - -
* casino licence 2584 2,584 - -
¢ other licences 119 26 - -
* rights to management agreement 2,185 2,185 - -
* leased assets capitalised - 2 - -
* rental in advance 9,997 9,991 - -
Total amortisation 32,834 32,740 - -
Other charges against assets:
* Net bad and doubtful debts expense 870 (915) - -
« Write-down of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount 907 - - -
Operating lease rentals:
* minimum lease payments 6,962 7,252 2,270 2,206
Borrowing costs:
* wholly-owned group companies - - 7.933 5,143
* other parties 52,629 56,008 1 1
» finance charges on capitalised leases - 1 - -
Amounts set aside to provisions for:
= employee entitlements 13,943 13,572 841 324
* inventory obsolescence 75 180 - -
Total amount set aside to provisions 14,018 13,7562 841 324
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NOTE 8 Auditors’ Remuneration

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by the auditors

of TABCORP Holdings Limited and its controlled entities in respect of:

¢ audit and review services 572 527 263 248
* other services - accounting advice 58 20 - -
NOTE 4 income Tax
Income Tax Expense
The difference between income tax expense/{benefit)
provided in the financial statements and the prima facie
income tax expense/{benefit) is reconciled as follows:
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 372,281 383,395 248,486 242,111
Prima facie tax thereon at 30% 111,684 115,018 74,546 72,633
Tax effect of permanent and other differences:
* dividends received - - (74,910) {72,080)
* amortisation of goodwill 5,386 5,386 - -
* amortisation of rights to management agreement 656 656 - -
* amortisation of licences 811 783 - -
* sundry items 1,164 744 356 222
* {over)under provision in prior year (44) {157) 2 95
Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit) 119,657 122,436 (8) 830
Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit) comprises movements in:
* provision for income tax — (increase) (130,290) {100,321) (218) (349)
* provision for deferred income tax - (increase)/decrease {1,288) (4,480) 156 49
* future income tax benefits — increase/{decrease) 11,921 {17,635) 68 {590)
Income tax (expense)/benefit (119,657) (122,436) 6 (890)
NOTE 5 Dividends
Dividends recognised in the current year by the economic
entity are:
(@) an interim dividend of 33.0 cents per share, franked

to 100% with Class C (30%) franking credits, was paid

on 2 April 2003 (2002: 31.0 cents per share; franked to

100% with Class C (30%) franking credits was paid on

28 March 2002) 120,634 115,707 120,834 115,707
(b) 2002 final dividend recognised when declared during

the year of 32.0 cents per share, franked to 100%

with Class C (30%) franking credits was paid on

27 September 2002 118,984 - 118,894 -
(c) (2002: a final dividend of 32.0 cents per share,

franked to 100% with Class C (30%) franking credits

was provided for and payable 27 September 2002) 22 - 119,408 - 112,408
(d) (2002: a final dividend for 30 June 2001 of 26.0 cents

per share applicable to shares issued on 30 August 2001

and 7 September 2001, franked to 100% with Class C

(30%) franking credits was paid on 28 September 2001) - 224 - 224

30 239,628 235,339 239,628 235,339
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

2003 2002 2003 2002
Note $000 $000 $'000 $'000
NOTE 5 Dividends (continued)
Since the end of the financial year, the directors declared the
following dividend:
Final — 34.0 cents per share, franked to 100% with Class C
(30%) franking credits 124,289 - 124,289 -

The financial effect of this dividend has not been brought to account in the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2003 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports.

Franking Credits

Franking credits available at the 30% corporate tax rate after allowing for tax payable provided

for in the financial statements, payment of dividends provided and receipt of dividends

receivable as at balance date — calculated under the tax paid basis 5,177 125

2003 2002
$000 $'000
NOTE 6 Earnings per share
Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share;
Basic earnings
Profit from ordinary activities after related income tax expense 252,624 260,959
Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per share 252,624 260,959
Add goodwill amortisation 17,955 17,952
Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per share {pre amortisation of goodwill) 270,579 278911
Diluted earnings
Profit from ordinary activities after related income tax expense 252,624 260,959
Add after-tax effect of interest on potential ordinary shares 519 -
Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share 253,143 260,959
Add goodwill amortisation 17,955 17,952
Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share (pre amortisation of goodwill) 271,098 278,911
2003 2002
Number Number
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share 367,957,963 373,051,931
Add potential ordinary shares, being opticns granted on 7 October 2002 (2002: 1 July 1999)
(refer Note 31) 1,828,767 3,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share - 369,786,736 376,051,931
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2002

2003

2003 2002
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
NOTE 7 Cash assets
Cash on hand and in banks 57,006 57,505 41 -
Short-term deposits, maturing within 30 days 50,624 69,338 448 221
Bank accepted bills, maturing within 30 days 11,159 - - -
33(a) 118,789 126,843 489 221
NOTE 8 Receivables {current)
Trade debtors 8,307 11,105 -~ -
Provision for doubtful debts (4,926) {4,340) - -
3,381 6,765 - -
Sundry debtors 6,138 2,557 681 132
Amounts receivable from controlled entities - - 142,360 278577
Accrued interest income 243 183 7 17
9,762 9,605 143,048 278,726
NOTE 9 Inventories (current)
Consumable stores at cost 5,233 5,143 - -
Provision for obsolescence (788) (776) - -
4,445 4,367 - -
Finished goods and stores at net realisable value 243 271 - -
4,688 4,638 - -
NOTE ,u @ Other assets (current)
Rental in advance 10,214 10,214 - -
Prepayments 8,036 7.805 470 526
Loans pursuant to employee share plan (@ 2,740 3,335 2,740 3,335
Merger costs () 4,076 - - _
Other 75 77 - -
25,141 21,431 3,210 3,861

@) |oans pursuant to employee share plan mature at either five years from the date of the loan or cessation of employment. Refer Note 31 for the terms of

these loans.

(o} Merger costs relate to the proposed merger with Jupiters Limited. This amount has been recognised as an asset as the costs are incidental to the merger
and will be included in the cost of the investment on the basis that the merger will proceed.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

2003 2002 2003 2002

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
NOTE /H 9] Receivables {non-current)
Amounts receivable from controlled entities - - 597,600 593,929
NOTE /H 2 Other financial assets (non-current)
Shares in controlled entities — at cost - - 3,290 3,241
NOTE 7} 3 Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings
Freehold land:
¢ atcost 1,466 15,994 - -
Freehold land and buildings:
* at recoverable amount 2,050 - - -
Buildings:
* at cost 478,383 475,808 - -
* accumulated depreciation (32,294) (26,544) - -
446,089 449,264 - -
Total land and buildings, net 449,605 465,258 - -
Capital works in progress:
* at cost 755 755 - -
Leasehold improvements:
* atcost 26,376 23,333 - -
* accumulated depreciation (15,168) (12,137) - -
Total leasehold improvements, net . 11,210 11,196 - -
Consumables:
* at cost 9813 9,789 - -
¢ accumulated depreciation (4,895) (4,821) - -
Total consumables, net 4918 4,968 - -
Plant and equipment:
*+ at cost 754,150 717,512 10,318 9,681
* accumulated depreciation (461,426) (397.376) (6,404) (4,971)
Total plant and equipment, net 292,724 320,136 3,915 4,710
759,212 802,313 3915 4,710

{a) Independent valuations of applicable freehold land and buildings were carried out as at 30 June 2001 and 31 December 2002 in
accordance with the economic entity’s policy of obtaining an independent valuation of land and buildings at least every three
years. These valuations are on the basis of the open market value of the properties concerned in either their existing use or
alternative use where the properties are identified as not long-term operational assets. The directors are of the opinion that these
bases provide a reasonable estimate of recoverable amount.

$'000 $000

The amount of the valuation as at 30 June 2001 is — Consolidated: 460,127 447 555
The amount of the valuation as at 31 December 2002 is - Consolidated: 2,050 2,050

(b} Refer to Note 20 for information on non-current assets pledged as security by the parent entity or its controlled entities.
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NOTE W 3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current

financial year are set out below.

$000 $000

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2003 - Consolidated
Carrying amount at beginning of year 15,994 - 449,264 11,196 4,968 755 320,136
Additions 221 - 3,207 3,105 24 - 49,514
Reclassification (2,328) 2,958 (630) - - - -
Disposalsfwrite-down {12,42%) {S08) - (38) - - (1,783)
Depreciation/amortisation expense - - (5,752) {3,053) (74) - (75,143)
Carrying amount at end of year 1,466 2,050 446,083 11,210 4918 755 292,724
2003 - TABCORP Holdings Limited
Carrying amount at beginning of year - - - - - - 4,710
Additions - - - - - - 1,402
Disposals - - - - - - (228)
Depreciation/Amortisation expense - - - - - - (1.971)
Carrying amount at end of year - - - - - - 3,815

2003

2003
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
NOTE /H 4 Intangible assets - licences

Wagering and Gaming licence at cost 1) 537,240 537,240 597,240 597,240

Casino licence:
* at cost 1)) 256,000 256,000 - -
¢ accumulated amortisation (22,103) (19.5619) - -
233,897 236,481 - -

Other licences:
* atcost 1() 280 280 280 280
* accumulated amortisation (216) (96) (216) (96)
64 184 B4 184
831.201 833,905 597,304 597.424

17



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

2003 2002 2003 2002

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
NOTE ,H 5 Intangible assets - other
Goodwill:
* at cost 369,598 359,793 - -
¢ accumulated amortisation (66,696) (48,741) - -
292,902 311,062 - -
Rights to Management Agreement:
* at cost 258,224 205,224 - -
¢ accumulated amortisation (7,580) (5,395} - -
250,644 199,829 - -
543,546 510,881 - -
NCTE w 6 Deferred tax assets
Future income tax benefits 33,968 21,916 3.078 2,986
Future income tax benefit comprises the estimated future
benefit at current incorne tax rates on the following items:
* tax losses carried forward 11,023 1,096 - -
*» timing differences 22,945 20,820 3,078 2,986
33,968 21,916 3,078 2,886
NQOTE /H 7 Other assets (non-current)
Rental in advance 35,999 46,204 - -
Loans to executive directors 38(c) 6.071 5,592 6,071 5,692
Loans pursuant to employee share plan 28,837 30,384 28,937 30,384
Loans - other 38(c) 2,125 - 2,125 -
Other 62 66 - -
73,194 82,246 37,133 35,976
Loans pursuant to employee share plan mature at either
five years from the date of the loan or cessation of
employment. Refer Note 31 for the terms of these loans,
W Q
NOTE | {0 Payables (current)
Trade creditors and accrued expenses — unsecured 167,831 115,735 1,676 4,377
Amounts due to contrclied entities - - 199,819 137,908
167,831 115,735 201,495 142,285
NOTE T} @ Interest bearing liabilities (current)
Bank loans — unsecured 20 282,898 44,000 - -
Bank loans - secured 20 168,000 100,000 - -
450,898 144,000 - -

Details of the security relating to the bank loans is disclosed in Note 20.
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Note $000 $000 $000 $'000

NOTE 2@ Financing arrangements

The economic entity has access to the following
financing facilities:

Total facilities available
General purpose 50,000 50,000 - -
Term debt/Revolving 1,200,000 1,000,000 - -

1,250,000 1,050,000 - -

Facilities utilised at balance date

General purpose 39(e) 18,282 12,016 - -~
Term debt/Revolving 19,25 765,898 776,898 - -
784,180 788,914 - -

Facilities not utilised at balance date

General purpose 31,718 37984 - -
Term debt/Revolving 434,102 223,102 - -
465,820 261,086 - -

The economic entity has two distinct sets of financing facilities. One to meet the general requirements of the group, and the other
established by Star City Holdings Limited and its controlled entities ('Star’).

General Requirements

The facilities consisted of:

* a $100 million (2002: $Nil) revolving facility expiring 31 December 2003;

* a $100 million (2002: $Nil) term facility expiring 30 June 2004;

* a 3200 million {2002: $200 million) revolving facility expiring 30 June 2004;
* a $100 million (2002: $100 million) term facility expiring 30 June 2005; and
¢ a $350 million (2002: $350 million) revolving facility expiring 30 June 2005.

Existing loans incur interest at the bank bill swap rate (BBSY) on the date of funding for the term equivalent to the funding period
plus an agreed margin.

Each of the above facilities is subject to a negative pledge agreement under which the economic entity undertakes to comply with
financial undertakings as to its tangible net worth, gearing and interest cover.

Star Facilities

Star has a facility as follows:

* a $100 million (2002: $100 million) revolving facility expiring 31 August 2003;

* a $250 million (2002: $250 million) revolving facility expiring 30 June 2004; and

* a $50 million {2002: $50 million) general purpose facility which is to be utilised for general corporate purposes and the Star City
Complex. This facility is renewable annually. The facility is made up of bank guarantees (Note 39(e)), encashment facilities and
general working capital.

Bank bills have an average maturity of 30 days.

Star was granted a Group Limit Facility on 10 May 1996 which enables certain of the controlled entities of Star to net the balances of
the bank accounts reguired as part of the working capital facility.

These facilities have been secured by charges over assets (as detailed below), undertakings and cash flows of Star.

2003 2002

$'000 $000
The carrying amount of non-current assets pledged as security are:
* Property, plant and equipment 631,887 663,289

Jupiters Limited Merger

During the year, a controlled entity entered into commitment letters to allow for the partial refinancing of existing debt as well as the
financing requirements associated with the proposed merger with Jupiters Limited. As at the date of this report the facility
agreements associated with this financing had not been finalised.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

Note $°000 $'000 $000 $'000
NOTE 2 /“ Current tax liabilities
Taxation 34,899 28,252 - -
NOTE 22 Provisions (current)
Dividends (a) 5 - 119,408 - 119,408
Employee benefits 31 22,336 18,280 4,128 2,244
Workers' compensation {b) 10,330 9,051 - -
Surplus lease space (c) 32(b) 2,600 226 - -
Other - 40 - 27
35,266 147,005 4128 121,679

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of
provision, except for employee benefits, at the end of the
current financial year are set out below.

(a) Dividends

Carrying amount at beginning of year 119,408 119,408
Adjustment on adoption of AASB 1044 ‘Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (119,408) (119,408)
Provisions made during the year:

« Final dividend 2002 118,994 118,894
* Interim dividend 2003 120,634 120,634
Payments made during the year (239,628) (239,628)

Carrying amount at the end of the year - -

(b) Workers’ compensation

Carrying amount at beginning of year 9,051 -
Provisions made during the year 5,242 -
Payments made during the year (3.963) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 10,330 -

(c) Surplus lease space - current

Carrying amount at beginning of year 226 -
Provisions made during the year 3.328 -
Payments made during the year (954) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 2,600 -

$'000 $'000 $000 $000

NOTE 2 3 Other liabilities (current)

Deferred revenue 200 291 - -
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2003
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
NOTE 24 Payables (non-current)
Trade creditors and accrued expenses — unsecured - 2,122 - 122
Amounts due to controlled entities - - 28,622 23,522
- 2,122 28,5622 23,644
NOTE 2 5 Interest bearing liabilities (non-current)
Bank loans — unsecured 20 315,000 472,898 - -
Bank loans — secured 20 - 160,000 - -
315,000 632,898 - -
Details of the security relating to the bank loans
is disclosed in Note 20.
NOTE 26 Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for deferred income tax - timing difference ' 58,176 56,888 305 461
NOTE 27 Provisions {non-current)
Employee benefits 31 9,172 7,322 746 549
Surplus lease space (a) 32(b) 7274 1,682 - -
Other 4 12 - -
16,450 9,016 746 549

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class
of provision, except for employee benefits, at the end
of the current financial year are set out below.

(a) Surplus lease space — non-current

Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,682 -
Provisions made during the year 5692 -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 7,274 -

2003

$000 $'000 $000 $000
NOTE 28 Other liabilities {non-current)
Deferred revenue 905 1,094 - ~




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2003

Comsolier ~ TABCORP Holdings |
2003 2002 2003 2002
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
NOTE 29 Contributed equity
Issued and paid up capital:
Ordinary shares, fully paid 1,137,766 1,226,366 1,137,766 1,226,366
{a) Movements in ordinary share capital ‘
Number of Issue
Date Details Shares Price $'000
1 July 2001 Opening balance 372,283,834 1,218,812
30 August 2001 Issue to employees under the Employee Share Plan ® 43,500 9.02 392
7 September 2001 Issue to employees under the Employee Share Plan () 818,000 9.02 7.378
28 September 2001 Issue to employees under the Employee Share Plan () 104,500 9.30 972
15 May 2002 Shares bought back i) {100,000) {1,195)
30 June 2002 Balance 373,149,834 1,226,366
28 August 2002 Options exercised 1,460,640 10.18 14,869
30 August 2002 Options exercised ’ 733,860 10.18 7.471
6 September 2002 Issue to employees under the Employee Share Plan ) 477,700 12.74 6,086
7 October 2002 Issue to employees under the Employee Share Plan (i} 500,000 12.15 6,075
28 November 2002 Issue to employees under the Employee Share Plan () 412,500 11.08 4,562
Various Shares bought back (i} (11,178,013) {127.663)
30 June 2003 Balance 365,566,621 1,137,766

(i) Refer Note 31 for details of the Employee Share Plan.

(ii) On 23 April 2002 the company announced plans to enter into an on-market share buy-back for up to 5% of the issued capital. Since 23 April 2002, the
company had purchased and cancelled 11,278,013 shares (30 June 2002: 100,000 shares). The total consideration of $128.858 million
{2002: $1.195 million} was all dehited to the Contributed Equity account.

(b) Ordinary shares

There is only one class of share {ordinary shares) on issue. These ordinary shares entitle the holder te participate in dividends and
proceeds on winding up of the company in proportion to the number and amounts paid on the shares held. On a show of hands
every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or proxy is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled
to one vote.

(c) Options
Note 31 provides details of options granted to certain directors and shares issued on exercise of options.

R  Commolidesd . TABCORP Holdings |
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note $000 $000 $000 $000

NOTE 3@ Retained profits

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 50,011 24,31 6,090 208
Adjustment arising from adoption of new Accounting
Standard AASB 1044 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets’ 119,408 - 1,208 -
Adjustment arising from adoption of revised Accounting
Standard AASB 1028 'Employee Benefits’ (305) - (57) -
Dividend paid 5 (239,628) {115,931) (239,628) (115,931)
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 252,624 260,959 248,492 241,221
Dividends provided 5 - (119,408) - (119,408}
Retained profits at the end of the financial year 182,110 50,011 16,105 6,090
Retained profits are expected to be utilised as follows:
¢ Proposed dividend declared 40(c) 124,289 - 124,289 -
* Proposed subsidiary dividend declared - - (118,200) -
* Retained 57,821 50,011 10,016 6,090
182,110 50,011 16,106 6,090
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2003 2002 2003 2002
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $000
NOTE 3 Aﬁ Employee benefits
Aggregate employee benefits, including on-costs
Included in trade creditors and accrued expenses - current 18 8,692 12,446 681 2,842
Provision for employee benefits — current 22 22,336 18,280 4128 2,244
Provision for employee benefits - non-current 27 9172 7.322 746 549
40,100 38,048 5,555 5,635
Employee Numbers
Number of employees at 30 June {full-time equivalent employees) 3,353 3,631 178 185

Equity-based Plans

Employee Share Plan

A TABCORP Employee Share Plan has been established and approved by shareholders under which shares in the parent entity and
loans to acquire shares in the parent entity are available to eligible employees. Eligible employees must be permanent with a .
minimum of six months’ continuous service as at the date of offer whilst the executive plan eligibility may vary according to their
service agreements. Other than shares applied for in the TABCORP float, the shares are issued at market price at the date of offer.
The maximum number of shares that can be outstanding at any time under the Plan is limited to 3% of the issued capital of the
parent entity.

Loans pursuant to the employee share plan mature at either five years from the date of the loan or cessation of employment.
Interest is charged on certain loans at the rate of 4% (2002: 5%}. Loans are either repaid via salary deductions or dividends.

Details of the employee share plan for the parent entity are as follows:

2003 ) 2003 b 20021 20020
Total number issued to employees during the year ('000) 1174 500 1,163 -
Total number issued to employees since commencement
of the plan ('000) 10,276 4,000 9,102 3,500
Total number that have become available for purchase since
commencement of the plan ('000) 29,483 4,000 24,496 3,500
Purchase entitlements not taken up by employees are not
available at balance date for purchase.
Total number of employees eligible to participate in this plan
at balance date 3,040 1 2,810 1
Total number of employees participating in this plan
at balance date 730 1 650 1
Total market value, at date of issue, of issues during the year ($'000) 14,037 6,075 10,487 -
Proceeds received from issues during the year ($'000) 14,171 6,075 10,586 -

(@ Sharss issued to employees.
(b) Shares issued to executive directors under service agreements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NCOTE 3 ;U Employee benefits (continued)

Options Granted under a Service Agreement
The parent entity has granted share options to certain executive directors under their Service Agreements to acguire ordinary shares

in TABCORP Holdings Limited.

These options become exercisable either befcre a due date or through the satisfaction of certain performance hurdles.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under Service Agreements.

Grant Date Expiry Date Note Number Number Number Number

Consolidated and TABCORP Holdings - 2003

1 July 1999 30 June 2004 $10.18 (a) 3,000,000 - 2,194,500 805,500
7 October 2002 7 October 2005 $12.61 {b)(d} - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
7 October 2002 7 October 2010 $12.61 {chd) - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000

3,000,000 2,600,000 2,194,500 3,305,500

Consolidated and TABCORP Holdings - 2002
1 July 1999 30 June 2004 $10.18 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000

(a) Subsequent to 30 June 2003, TABCORP Holdings Limited has obtained an independent report stating that the remaining
performance hurdles have not been met. As a result, the balance of these options has lapsed and were not considered potential
ordinary shares.

The options vested at reporting date and are considered potential ordinary shares.

These options can only be exercised if certain annual and cumulative benchmarks are achieved. At reporting date these options
had not vet vested, however are considered potential ordinary shares.

The weighted number of potential ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share in Note 6 is 1,828,767.

{b
(c

(d

Options exercised during the financial year and number of shares issued to executive directors on the exercise of options.

Fair Value of Shares 2003 2002 2003 2002

Exercise Date at Exercise Date Number Number Number Number
28 August 2002 $12.49 1,460,640 - 1,460,640 -
30 August 2002 $12.80 733,860 - 733,860 -

2,194,500 - 2,194,500 -

The fair value of shares issued on the exercise of options is the
closing price at which the company's shares were traded on the
Australian Stock Exchange on the day the options were exercised.

Options vested at the reporting date 1,500,000 2,194,500 1,500,000 2,194,500

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Aggregate proceeds received from executive directors on the
exercise of options and recognised as issued capital 22,340 - 22,340 -

Fair value of the shares issued to executive directors on the
exercise of options as at their issue date 27,637 - 27,637 -

Fair Value of Options

Of the options granted by the company during the vyear, only 1,500,000 are currently available to be exercised. These options expire
on 7 Qctober 2005 and sach option entitles the holder to purchase one ordinary share in the company. The options have been
independently valued at the date of being granted at $1,394,893 using a Standard Binomial model. The remaining 1,000,000 options
expire not later than 7 October 2010 and can only be exercised on the consolidated entity achieving certain performance hurdles.
These options have been independently valued at the date of being granted at $1,511,257 using a Monte Carlo simulation-based
model which also uses the Binomial Tree methodology.
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NQOTE 3 7] Employee benefits {(continued)

The following assumptions have been made for options granted on 7 October 2002.

2003

Share volatility 20.66%
Risk-free interest rate refer (a)
Dividend yield 5.20%
Expected life of options:  Options expiring 7 October 2006 1.5 years
Options expiring not later than 7 October 2010 . 4 years

The expected share volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends. The dividend yield
reflects the assumption that the current dividend payout ratio will continue with no anticipated increases. The expected life of the
options implies that the executive would on average exercise half-way through the option life.

(a) The rates used in the valuation are zero coupon interest rates derived from government bond market interest rates on the
valuation date and vary according to each maturity date.

Superannuation Funds
The economic entity maintains two superannuation funds covering all of its employees and the employees of controlled entities.

The TABCORP Superannuation Fund and the TABCORP Staff Superannuation Fund comprise:
(a) a defined benefit section (closed to new entrants): providing benefits based on salary and length of service; and
{(b) an accumulation section: providing benefits based on contributions accumulated with interest.

An additional section is included in the TABCORP Staff Superannuation Fund covering non-executive directors of TABCORP Holdings
Limited which provides benefits based on remuneration and period of service, as approved by shareholders. This section was closed
on 27 June 2003 with accrued benefits transferred to the accumulation section of the TABCORP Staff Superannuation Fund.

The most recent actuarial reviews of the TABCORP Superannuation Fund and the TABCORP Staff Superannuation Fund were carried
out effective at 1 July 2001 by Mr A, Sach, FIAA, of Mercer Human Resources Consulting Pty Ltd. The actuary’s investigation for
those reviews confirmed that both Funds held sufficient assets to meet any benefits that would have been vested under each Fund
in the event of termination of the Funds or the voluntary or compulsory termination of employment of each employee.

With effect from 1 July 2003, the TABCORP Superannuation Funds will merge. As a result the next actuarial review will be
undertaken as at 30 June 2003.

As at the date of this report, the results of this actuarial review had not been finalised.

TABCORP Holdings Limited and controlled entities are obliged to contribute to the Superannuation Funds as a consequence of
legislation or trust deeds; legal enforceability is dependent on the terms of the legislation and the trust deeds. The rate of payment
of contributions to the Funds is based on advice from the actuary.

The information disclosed at the last actuarial review of the TABCORP Superannuation Fund and the TABCORP Staff Superannuation
Fund is as follows:

$'600

At 30 June 2001

Fund assets at market value 40,252 55,952 96,204
Accrued benefits 26,413 41,573 67,986
Excess of fund assets over accrued benefits 13,839 14,379 28,218

Information disclosed in the most recent audited financial statements of both Funds is as follows:

At 30 June 2002
Fund assets at market value 39,344 54,982 94,326
Vested benefits 29,397 46,100 75,497
At 30 June 2001
Fund assets at market value 40,252 55,952 96,204
Vested benefits 23,812 37,609 61,421
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

| TABCORE
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
NOTE 32 Commitments
{a) Capital expenditure commitments
Contracted but not pravided for and payable not later than one year 12,685 7.481 571 774
(b) Operating lease commitments
Contracted but not provided for and payable:
Not later than one year 9,926 9,202 2,320 2,270
Later than one year but not later than five years 30,068 28,846 6,280 8615
Later than five years 28,468 30,169 - -
68,463 68,217 8,600 10,885
Non-cancellable sub-leases exist in relation to the operating lease
commitments disclosed above with the following future minimum
lease payments contracted to be received:
Not later than one year 799 1,670 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,703 2,882 - -
Later than five years 648 1,095 - -
3,150 5,647 - -
Surplus lease space exists in relation to operating lease
commitments disclosed above, in respect of which a liability has
been recognised in the financial statements as follows:
Current provisions 22 2,600 226 - -
Non-current provisions 27 7.274 1,682 - -
9,874 1,908 - _

The consolidated entity leases property under operating leases expiring from one year to ninety years. Leases generally provide the
consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments comprise a base amount plus
an incremental contingent rental. Contingent rentals are based on either movements in the Consumer Price Index or are subject to

market rate review.
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" BEse

2002

2003

Note $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
NOTE 83 Notes to the statement of cash flows
(a) Reconciliation of cash
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes
cash on hand and in banks, deposits at call and bank accepted
bills, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement
of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement
of financial position as follows:
Cash 7 118,789 126,843 4389 221
(b} Reconciliation of profit from ordinary activities after
income tax to net cash provided by operating activities
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 252,624 260,959 248,492 241,221
Add/less) items classified as investing/financing activities:
Profit on sale of non-current assets (164) (492) (43) {249)
Add/{less) non-cash income and expense items:
Depreciation expense 72,375 75,782 1,971 1,899
Amortisation expense 22,843 22,749 - -
Write-down of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount 907 - - -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 73 676 - 236
Net cash provided by operating activities before change in
assets and liabilities 348,658 369,674 250,420 243,107
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase)/decrease in;
* trade and sundry debtors 4,948 (1,955) (549) 2,314
* inventories (50) 286 - -
* prepayments 9,980 7.147 56 14
¢ accrued interest income (60) 83 10 7
* amounts receivable from controlled entities - - (3,121) (42,804)
* future income tax benefits (11,921) 17,635 (68) 590
(Decrease)fincrease in:
* trade creditors and accrued expenses 5,767 19,482 (2,644) 3,570
* amounts due to controlled entities - - (13.441) 5,143
* provisions 13,179 4,985 1,973 238
* provision for deferred income tax 1,288 4,480 (158) {49)
* provision for income tax 6.647 3.398 ~ -
« deferred revenue (69) (509) - -
Net cash provided by operating activities 378,367 414,706 232,580 212,128

(c) Non-cash financing and investing activities

During the year a controlled entity purchased the remaining rights to the management agreement from Leighton Property

Development Pty Limited for an amount of $53.0 million. This was settled on 15 July 2003,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NOTE 34 Segment information

The consolidated entity's primary format of segment reporting is on a business segment basis.

The consolidated entity has three main business segments:

Wagering

Totalizator and fixed odds betting on thoroughbred, harness, greyhounds and sporting and other events.
Gaming

Gaming machine operations in licensed clubs and hotels.

Star City
Star City Casino operations, including a hotel, apartment complex, theatres, restaurants and bars.

The consolidated entity's business segments are located in, and provide services to one geographical segment, Australia.
Intersegment pricing is determined on an arm’'s-length basis.

$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2003 Consolidated
Total operating revenues — external 421,302 848,137 631,242 1,900,681 1,900,681
Other revenues from ordinary
activities — external 12,747 2,145 16,831 31,723 4,724 36,447
Intersegment revenue ’
Revenues from ordinary activities 434,049 850,282 648,073 1,832,404 4,724 1,937,128
Segment result (pre amortisation
of goodwill) 67,042 208,175 174914 450,131 450,131
Segment result 66,935 208,175 157,066 432,176 432,176
Unallocated interest revenue 4173 4173
Unallocated other revenue 551 551
Unallocated interest expense (52,629) (62,629)
Unallocated expenses (11,990) (11,990)
Result from ordinary activities before
income tax expense 66,935 208,175 157.066 432,176 {59,895) - 372,281
Income tax expense (119,657}
Net profit attributable to members
of the parent entity 252,624
Depreciation and amortisation 11,637 26,674 66,820 105,031
Non cash expenses other than
depreciation and amortisation 41,262 18,003 74,861 134,126
Segment assets 262,202 551,303 1,637,667 2,351,172 62,814 (14,485) 2,399,501
Segment liabilities 65,498 21,112 120,221 206,831 887,279 (14,485) 1,079,625
Acquisition of non-current assets 22,984 17.529 16,396 55,909 162 - 56,071
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NOTE 34 Segment information (continued)

$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'0C0 $'000

2002 Consolidated

Total operating revenues — external 403,610 917,569 611,873 1,933,052 1,933,052
Other revenues from ordinary activities

—external 19,763 4,901 5,383 30,047 4,560 34,607
Intersegment revenue 22 22 (22) -
Revenues from ordinary activities 423373 922,470 617,278 1,963,121 4,560 (22) 1,967,659
Segment result {pre amortisation

of goodwill) 66,783 236,278 160,049 463,115 463,115
Segment result 66,689 236,278 142,196 445,163 - - 445,163
Unallocated interest revenue 4,103 4,103
Unallocated other revenue 457 457
Unallocated interest expense (56,009) (56,009
Unallocated expenses (10,319) {(10,319)
Resuit from ordinary activities

before income tax expense 66,683 236,278 142,196 445163 (61,768) - 383,395
Income tax expense (122,436)
Net profit attributable to members

of the parent entity 260,959
Depreciation and amortisation 10,591 25,534 72,006 108,131

Non cash expenses other than

depreciation and amortisation 39,254 14,717 53,271 107,242

Segment assets 211,902 624,919 1,529,246 2,366,067 52,659 (5,048) 2413678
Segment liabilities 63,744 21,689 52,264 137,697 1,004,752 (5,048) 1,137,301

Acquisition of non-current assets 19,403 17,087 10,227 48,717 - - 46,717

For comparison with previous years' disclosure in which segment’s profit before interest and tax (PBIT} had been stated on a full
income and expense allocation basis excluding goodwill amortisation, the following segment result is disclosed

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000

2003 Consolidated
Segment result 62,331 202,896 173,485 438,692 (17,955) 420,737
2002 Consolidated
Segment result 63,946 230,835 158,472 453,253 (17,952) 435,301
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

NOTE 35 Controlled entities

The following were controlled entities at 30 June 2003, and have been included in the consolidated financial statements.
The financial years of all controlled entities are the same as that of TABCORP Holdings Limited.

Note % %

TABCORP Holdings Limited (a) Australia - - -
TABCORP Assets Pty Ltd (a) Australia ordinary 100 100
TABCORP Manager Ptv Ltd (a)c) Australia ordinary 100 100
TABCORP Participant Fty Ltd (a) Australia ordinary 100 100
TABCORP (Queensland) Pty Ltd {aXc) Australia ordinary 100 100
TABCORP Investments Pty Ltd (b} Australia ordinary 100 100
TABCORP Online Pty Ltd (alc) Australia ordinary 100 100
TABCORP Issuer Pty Ltd (c)if) Australia ordinary 100 -
TABCORP Investments No. 2 Pty Ltd {cif) Australia ordinary 100 -
Star City Holdings Limited {(b){d) Australia ordinary 100 100
Star City Pty Ltd (bXd) Australia ordinary 100 100
Star City Entertainment Pty Ltd {(bi{d) Australia ordinary 100 100
Sydney Harbour Casino Properties Pty Ltd {b)d) Australia ordinary 100 100
Sydney Harbour Apartrents Pty Ltd {bXd) Australia ordinary 100 100
Star City Investments Pty Ltd (bXd) Australia ordinary 100 100
Showboat Australia Pty Ltd (b} Australia ordinary 100 100
Sydney Casino Management Pty Ltd (g) Australia ordinary 100 85
Structured Data Systems Pty Ltd {ac) Australia ordinary 100 100

(a)

{b

{f)
(g)

30

These companies have entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 8 June 1995 with TABCORP Holdings Limited which
provides that all parties to the deed will guarantee to each creditor payment in full of any debt of each company participating in
the deed in certain circumstances, including the winding up of that company. Structured Data Systems Pty Ltd and TABCORP
Online Pty Ltd were approved to become a party to the Deed of Cross Guarantee on 13 November 2000. In addition, as a result
of the class order issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, TABCORP Assets Pty Ltd and TABCORP
Participant Pty Ltd are relieved from the requirements to prepare financial statements.

The consclidated statement of financial performance and statement of financial position of all entities included in this class order
‘closed group' are set out at footnote (h).

These companies have entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 4 June 2001 with TABCORP Investments Pty Ltd which
provides that all parties to the deed will guarantee to each creditor payment in full of any debt of each company participating in
the deed in certain circumstances, including the winding up of that company. In addition, as a result of the class order issued
by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, Star City Holdings Limited, Star City Pty Ltd, Star City Entertainment
Pty Ltd, Sydney Harbour Casino Properties Pty Ltd, Sydney Harbour Apartments Pty Ltd, Star City Investments Pty Ltd and
Showboat Australia Pty Ltd are relieved from the requirements to prepare financial statements.

The consolidated statement of financial performance and statement of financial position of all entities included in this class order
‘closed group’ are set out at footnote {i).

These companies are relieved from the requirements to prepare financial statements as they are all small proprietary companies
as defined by the Corporations Act 2001.

These companies have provided a charge over their assets and undertakings and have entered into a guarantee and indemnity
agreement as explained in Note 39(b) and (c).

TABCORP Superannuation Pty Ltd, TABCORP Staff Superannuation Pty Ltd and Star City Superannuation Fund Pty Ltd are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of TABCORP Holdings Limited, and are not considered to be controlled entities in accordance with
section B0AA(4) of the Corporations Act 2001. Star City Superannuation Fund Pty Ltd was de-registered on 5 May 2003.

These companies were incorporated on 30 June 2003.

On 30 June 2003 Showboat Australia Pty Limited purchased the remaining 15% of this company.




o TABCORP |

2003 2002

$000 $000
NOTE 35 Controlled entities {continued)
(h) Financial information for class order closed group — entities denoted as (a) above
Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2003
Revenues from ordinary activities 1,363,821 1,427,190
Government taxes (460,552) (482,566)
Commissions and fees (406,927) {419,640)
Employee costs (56,008) {63,565)
Depreciation and amortisation (38,365) (36,494)
Borrowing costs (31,786) (28.909)
Other expenses from ordinary activities (61,286) (62.,608)
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 308,897 343,408
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities (70,974) (80,349)
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 237923 263,059
Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 32,221 4,501
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 237,923 263,059
Adjustment arising from adoption of new Accounting Standard AASB 1044 'Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ 80,408 -
Adjustment arising from adoption of revised Accounting Standard AASB 1028 ‘Employee Benefits’ (174) -
Dividends provided for or paid (239,628} (235,339)
Retained profits at the end of the financial year 110,750 32,221
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2003
Cash assets 78,548 88,472
Receivables 2,180 43,974
Inventories 3913 3,730
Other 4914 5,541
Total current assets 89,555 141,717
Receivables 1,108,672 1,106,998
Property, plant and equipment 127,251 138,926
Intangible assets - licences 597,304 597.424
Intangible assets — other 1,707 1,765
Deferred tax assets 8,872 8,666
Other 37,133 35,976
Total non-current assets 1,881,939 1,889,755
TOTAL ASSETS 1,971,494 2,031,472
Payables 79,042 91,114
Interest bearing liabilities 282,898 44,000
Current tax liabilities 8.334 24,572
Provisions 11,376 127,188
Other 125 76
Total current liabilities 381,775 286,850
Payables 14,407 122
Interest bearing liabilities 315,000 472,898
Deferred tax liabilities 6,140 9,298
Provisions 5,406 3,388
Other 250 229
Total non-current liabilities 341,203 435,935
TOTAL LIABILITIES 722,978 772,885
NET ASSETS 1,248,516 1,258,687
Contributed equity 1.137.766 1,226,366
Retained profits 110,750 32,221
TOTAL EQUITY 1,248,516 1,258,587
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; vestments By i Clesse Group: |
2003 2002
$'000 $'000

NOTE 35 Controlled entities (continued)

(i} Financial information for class order closed group — entities denoted as (b) above

Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2003

Revenues from ordinary activities 648,815 618,135

Government taxes (129,271) (127,025)

Commissions and fees (9,034) (8,989)

Employee costs (168,440) (173,519}

Depreciation and amortisation (66,844) (72,028)

Borrowing costs (20,843) (27,100)

Other expenses from ordinary activities (115,998) (92,487)

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 138,385 116,987

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities (48,683) (42,087)

Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 89,702 74,900

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 17,790 19,890

Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 89,702 74,900

Adjustment arising from adoption of new Accounting Standard AASB 1044 'Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ 39,000 -

Adjustment arising from adoption of revised Accounting Standard AASB 1028 ‘Employee Benefits’ (131) -

Dividends provided for or paid (75,000) (77,000)

Retained profits at the end of the financial year 71,361 17,790

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2003

Cash assets 40,241 38,371

Receivables 17.067 4579

Inventories 775 908

Other 20,227 15,890

Total current assets 78,310 53,748

Property, plant and equipment 631,961 663,387

fntangible assets - licences 233,897 236,481

Intangible assets — other 541,839 509,116

Deferred tax assets 24,096 13,250

Other 36,061 46,270

Total non-current assets 1,467,854 1,468,504

TOTAL ASSETS 1,546,164 1,528,252

Payables 88,866 29,669

Interest bearing liabilities 168,000 100,000

Current tax liabilities 26,565 3,680

Provisions 23,890 58,773

Other 75 215

Total current liabilities 307,396 192,337

Payables 1,103,672 1,103,998

Interest bearing liabilities - 160,000

Deferred tax liabilities 52,036 47,590

Provisions 11,044 5,672

Other 655 865

Total non-current liabilities 1,167,407 1.318.125

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,474,803 1,610,462

NET ASSETS 71,361 17,790

Contributed equity - -

Retained profits 71,361 17,790

TOTAL EQUITY 71,361 17,790
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NOTE 86 Staff costs

{a) Remuneration of directors

Prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1017 and Urgent Issues Group Abstract 14
and reported on the basis of gross cost to the entity of remuneration paid or payable, or otherwise
made available.

The numbers of directors of TABCORP Holdings Limited whose remuneration (including brokerage,
commission, bonuses, retirement payments and salaries), paid or payable directly or indirectly by
the parent entity or any related party, as shown in the following bands, were:

$110,000- $119,999 - )
$120,000 - $129,999 - 1
$130,000- $139,999 - 1
$140,000- $149,999 1 -
$150,000 - $159,999 1 -
$170,000 - $179,999 - 1
$180,000- $189,999 1 -
$200,000 — $209,999 2 _
$300,000 - $308,999 - 1
$340,000- $343,999 1 -
$410,000- $419,999 1 -
$680,000 - $689,999 - 1
$1,060,000 - $1,069,999 1 -
$1,540,000 - $1,549,999 1 -
$3,350,000 - $3,359,999¢ _ 1
$ $

The aggregate remuneration of the directors referred to in the above bands was 4,244,425 5,012,910

(i Prior year includes termination payment of $650,000.

The total of all remuneration paid or payable directly or indirectly, by the respective corporations of which they are director, or any

related party, to all the directors of each corporation in the economic entity was $4,271,891 (2002: $5,035,273). This amount includes

the value of insurance premiums paid for the benefit of directors.
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NOTE 36 Staff costs {continued)

(b) Remuneration of executives
Prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1034 and reported on the basis of gross cost to the entity of remuneration
paid or payable, or otherwise made available.

The numbers of executive officers domiciled in Australia who received, or were due to receive, directly or indirectly from the parent
entity, or from any related party, a total remuneration in connection with the management of affairs of the parent entity, or any of its
subsidiaries whether as executive officers or otherwise, as shown in the following bands, were:

| ¢ - TABCORP Heleings |

2003 2002 2003 2002
$210,000 - $219,999 - 1 - -
$220,000 - $229,999 1 1 1 -
$230,000 - $239,999 1 - - -
$240,000 - $249,999 - 2 - i
$250,000 - $259,999 - - -
$260,000 - $269,999 - 2 - -
$270,000 - $279,999 4 3 - -
$280,000 - $289,999 1 1 - 1
$290,000 - $299,999 - 2 - 1
$300,000 - $309,999 2 1 - -
$310,000 - $319,999 3 - 3 -
$320,000- $329,999 1 2 - -
$330,000 - $339,999 2 - - -
$350,000 - $359,999 1 1 - -
$360,000 - $369,999 3 2 - -
$370,000 - $379,999 - 1 - 1
$380,000 - $389,999 - 1 - -
$400,000 - $409,999 - 1 - -
$410,000 - $419,999 1 - 1 -
$480,000 - $489,999 2 - 1 -

$500,000 - $509,999 - 1 - 1
$580,000 - $589,999 —
$600,000 - $609,999 - 1

$650,000 - $659,999 - 1 - 1
$660,000 ~ $669,999 - 1

$670,000 - $679,999
$680,000 - $689,999

—

|-
|
[
-

$690,000 - $699.599 1 - 1 -
$910,000 - $919,699 1 - _ _
$940,000 - $949,999 — 1 - —
$1,060,000 - $1,069,299 1 - 1 -
$1,540,000 - $1,549,289 1 - 1 -
$3,350,000 - $3,359,299) - 1 - 1
$ $ $ $

The aggregate remuneration of the executives referred to in the
above bands was 12,965,199 13,786,950 5,955,632 7,019,566

Remuneration of executives includes executive directors of the parent entity who are already disclosed within ‘Remuneration of
directors’.

) Prior year includes termination payment of $650,000.
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2003 2002
$'000 $'000

NOTE 37 Interest in joint venture operation

TABCORP Holdings Limited and certain of its controlied entities (TABCORP Assets Pty Ltd,
TABCORP Manager Pty Ltd and TABCORP Participant Pty Ltd) conduct an unincorporated joint
venture operation with VicRacing Pty Ltd. TABCORP Holdings Limited and the abovenamed
controlled entities manage the joint venture whose principal activity is the organisation, conduct,
promotion and development of wagering and gaming within the state of Victoria. The economic
entity receives 75% of the product and expenses of the joint venture.

Assets employed in joint venture operations

Current assets

Cash assets 76,013 85,177
Receivables 1.024 2,889
Cther 580 453

77617 88,519
Total assets employed 77,617 88,519

NOTE 38 Related parties

(a) Directors
The following persons held the position of director of TABCORP Holdings Limited during all of the past two financial years, unless
otherwise stated:

M.B. Robinson

M.J. Slatter (appointed on 8 October 2002)
1.R. Wilson (retired on 31 August 2002)
A.G. Hodgsen

PG. Satre

D.J. Simpson (retired on 21 February 2003)
PH.Wade

R.FE. Warburton

WV Wilson

2003 2002 2003 2002

Number Number Number Number
(b} Directors’ shareholdings
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 4,463,500 4,710,500 3,000,000 3,000,000
Acquired from (shares)issued by {(options) the entity during the year 2,698,500 _ - 2,500,000 -
Disposed of (shares)/exercised (options) during the year (i (3,144,500) (247,000) (2,194,500) -
Shareholdings of retired directors {3.276,000) - - -
Balance at the end of the financial year 741,500 4,463,500 3,305,500 3,000,000

@ None of the current directors sold shares during the current year.
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NOTE 38 Related parties (continued)

(c) Directors’ loans

Director loans had been made by the economic entity to executive directors |.R. Wilson and D.J. Simpson. Interest, where applicable,
is charged at a rate to a maximum of 4% (2002: 5%) and totalled $Nil (2002: $0.053 million) during the year. The loans are to be
repaid following cessation of employment, and, where advanced to finance the acquisition of shares in the company, the dividends
received on those shares are applied towards loan repayment. The loans are secured by an equitable mortgage over the shares held
by the directors. |.R. Wilson repaid $2.352 million (2002: $0.315 million) and D.J. Simpson repaid $1.115 million (2002: $0.009 million)
of the balance outstanding on their loans during the year. In accordance with the terms of his service agreement, the balance owing
by I.LR. Wilson of $2.125 million is to be repaid by 31 August 2004. The amounts repaid during the year of $3.467 million

(2002: $0.324 million) have been included in ‘Other cash flows from investing activities’ within the statement of cash flows.

During the year, a non-recourse executive director loan of $6.075 million has been made by a director-related entity to executive
director M.J. Slatter. Interest, where applicable, is charged at a rate to @ maximum of 4% and totalled $0.118 million during the vyear.
The loan is to be repaid following cessation of employment, and, where advanced to finance the acquisition of shares in the
company, the dividends received on those shares are applied towards interest payable on the outstanding loan balance, a cash
payment to cover the personal income tax liability associated with the dividend and principal loan repayments. The effect of the
above was to reduce the loan balance by $0.004 million during the year. The loan is secured by an equitable mortgage over the
shares held.

2003 2002 2003 2002

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Loans to directors outstanding at year end:
Nen-current 17 6,071 5,692 6,071 5,692

(d) Director transactions

The directors of the economic entity, or their director-related entities, conduct transactions with entities within the economic entity
that occur within a normal employee, customer or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable than those with
which it is reasonable to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the director or director-related entity at arm’s length in
similar circumstances. These transactions include the following and have been quantified below where the transactions are
considered likely to be of interest to users of these financial statements:

(i) Mr M.B. Robinson is a partner in the legal firm of Allens Arthur Robinson. This firm rendered legal advice to the economic entity.
All dealings with the firm were in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and conditions. The amount
paid by the economic entity during the year was $1,574,584 (2002: $274,744). The majority of these costs relates to advice
obtained in connection with the proposed merger with Jupiters Limited. Mr M.B. Robinson is the Chairman of the Bionic Ear
Institute. The ecoriomic entity has made donations to the Institute during the year of $10,500 (2002: $Nil). Mr M.B. Robinson is
also a trustee of the Epworth Medical Foundation. The economic entity has made a donation to the Foundation of $5,000
(2002: $2,300).

(i} Mr PG. Satre is the Chairman of Harrah's Entertainment Inc. This company provides the economic entity with access to their
knowledge and experience in operating casinos via an agreement which commenced in January 2000 and currently runs until
January 2005. The fees payable by the economic entity to Harrah's Entertainment Inc. will be $5,300,000 per annum for the
duration of the extended term. All dealings with the company are in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial
terms and conditions.

{iii

Mr A.G. Hodgson is a director of HSBC Bank Australia Limited. The economic entity maintains operating accounts with this bank
in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and conditions.

(iv) Mr R.FE. Warburton is a director of Southcorp Limited. The economic entity purchases alcoholic beverages from this company
in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and conditions,

(v} Mr D.J. Simpson and Mr |.R. Wilson are directors of Eastsail Pty Ltd, which provided charter services to the economic entity in
the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and conditions. The amount paid by the economic entity was
$110,718 (2002: $8,478).
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NOTE 38 Related parties (continued)

(e) Transactions with related parties in the wholly-owned

group

In addition to those transactions disclosed in Note 2, the

parent entity entered into the following transactions during the

year with related parties in the wholly-owned group:

* loans were advanced and repayments received on short-
term intercompany accounts;

* loans were advanced between controlled entities and are
not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months; and

* management and service fees were received from certain
wholly-owned controlled entities,

These transactions were undertaken on commercial terms and
conditions. Certain loans advanced which are sourced from
debt capital are charged interest at a rate at or above the bank
bill rate plus net settlement payments on interest rate swaps
(refer Note 41(c}) and bank fees on facilities, with other loans
being interest free.

Amounts due to and receivable from related parties in the
wholly-owned group

Appropriate disclosure of these amounts is contained in the
respective notes to the financial statements.

Ownership interests
The ownership interests in related parties in the wholly-owned
group are disclosed in Note 35.

NOTE 39 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(f) Transactions with other related parties

The economic entity had one partly-owned (85%) controlled
entity, Sydney Casino Management Pty Ltd (SCM). The
remaining 15% was purchased by the economic entity on

30 June 2003 (refer note 40(a)). This entity acts as nominee for
the Showboat Leighton Partnership.

Star City Pty Ltd and Sydney Harbour Casino Properties Pty Ltd
entered into a Casino Complex Management Agreement with
SCM in previous years. Under this agreement, SCM provides
services to Star City Pty Ltd and Sydney Harbour Casino
Properties Pty Ltd in relation to planning, decorating, furnishing,
managing and equipping of the Star City Casino Complex.

SCM is paid a fee equal to the sum of (i) 1.5% of Casino
Revenue, (i) 6% of Casino Gross Operating Profit, {iii} 3.5% of
Non-Casino Revenue, and {iv) 10% of Non-Casino Complex
Gross Operating Profit, each fiscal year for services rendered
by SCM pursuant to the management agreement. Casino
Gross Operating Profit and Non-Casino Gross Operating Profit
are determined after deducting revenue-based management
fees. A management fee of $24.893 million was paid or
payable for the year (2002: $24.591 million).

SCM is also paid a supplemental management fee by Star City
Pty Ltd for expenses incurred by Showboat Australia Pty Ltd,
which are reimbursed by SCM. This fee is based on salary and
related costs incurred. The total supplemental fee paid or
payable for the year was $4.195 million (2002: $3.292 million).

(g} Ultimate controlling entity
The ultimate controlling entity of the economic entity is
TABCORP Holdings Limited.

Details of contingent liabilities and contingent assets where the
probability of future payments/receipts is not considered
remote are set out below as well as details of contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, which although considered
remote, the directors consider should be disclosed.

The directors are of the opinion that provisions are not required
in respect of these matters, as it is not probable that a future
sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is
not capable of reliable measurement.

Contingent liabilities

(a) Parent entity

As explained in Note 35(a), the parent entity has entered into a
Deed of Cross Guarantee in accordance with a class order
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission. The parent entity, and all the controlied entities
which are a party to the deed, have guaranteed the repayment
of all current and future creditors in the event any of these
companies are wound-up.

(b} Charges

) CCA

The controlled entities denoted (d) in Note 35 have provided
the NSW Casino Control Authority (CCA) with a fixed and
floating charge over all of the assets and undertakings of each
company 1o secure payment of all monies and the
performance of all obligations which they have to the CCA. The
charge has a value of $1.5 billion and ranks second behind the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia charge under its facility
agreement.

(i) Other

The controlled entity which is a participant in the joint venture
described in Note 1{r) has entered into a deed of cross charge
with its joint venture partner to cover the non-payment of a
called sum in the event of the joint venture incurring a loss.
The charge is over undistributed and future earnings of the
joint venture to the level of the unpaid call.

(c) Guarantee and Indemnity

The controlled entities denoted in Note 35(b) have entered into
a guarantee and indemnity agreement (Note 35(d)) in favour of
the CCA whereby all parties to the agreement are jointly and
severally liable for the performance of the obligations and
liabilities of each company participating in the agreement with
respect to agreements entered intc and guarantees given.
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NQTE 39 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Contingent liabilities (continued)

(d) Legal challenges

There are outstanding legal actions between controlled entities
and third parties as at 30 June 2003. The economic entity has
notified its insurance carrier of all fitigation, and believes that
any damages (other than exemplary damages) that may be
awarded against the economic entity, in addition to its costs
incurred in connection with the action, will be covered by its
insurance policies where such policies are in place. However,
given the nature of insurance, no assurance can be given that
any such claims are not likely to have a material adverse effect
on the economic entity. In the case of possible actions which,
due to the demise of an underwriter do not have insurance
cover, the economic entity considers that, on the balance of
probability, no material losses will arise. This position will be
monitored and in the event that a loss becomes probable, an
appropriate provision will be made.

(e) Banking facilities

A controlled entity has provided a bank guarantee to
WoarkCover NSW for the amount of $11.766 million (2002:
$5.500 million) which is reguired under the entity’s self-
insurance licence.

(f) Tax audit

A controlled entity has been audited by the Australian Taxation
Office {ATQO). The ATO has identified an issue which relates to
the deductibility of rent of $120 million prepaid in December
1994 in relation to the Star City Casino site. The primary tax in
dispute in relation to deductions claimed to date is
approximately $33 million.

Under current Australian Accounting Standards the current
profit impact of the primary tax in dispute would be
approximately $13 million, the balance having a Statement of
financial position impact only. On the basis cf external advice
and its assessment of the issue, TABCORP believes that the
position taken in the income tax returns which have been
lodged is correct.

(g) Undertakings - insurance deductible

Under the Casino Taxes Agreement, Star City is required to
take out insurance in the name of the Casino Control Authority
in respect of anticipated Weekly Duty and Community Benefit
Levy arising out of partial or total loss or destruction of the
Premises. The Agreement allows for a $1 million deductible for
each and every loss.

NOTE 4@ Events subsequent to reporting date

Since the events of 11 September 2001, Star City has only
managed to secure a 14-day loss deductible. Subsequent to
30 June 2003, TABCORP Holdings Limited has provided the
CCA with a Deed of Undertaking to fund the shortfall of the
difference between the current 14-day deductible and the

$1 million required under the Casino Taxes Agreement (refer
Note 40(b)). The directors believe this undertaking would not
exceed $3-4 million for any one loss and believe such an event
is remote,

(h) Jupiters Limited merger break costs

Under the terms of the Merger Implementation Agreement
with Jupiters Limited, the economic entity may be liable to pay
to Jupiters Limited break costs of $7.5 miillion as
compensation if the merger does not proceed in certain
circumstances. The economic entity considers such
circumstances to be remote. Refer note 39(k).

(i) Interest rate option agreements

Under the interest rate option agreements referred to in Note
41(d) below, should the merger with Jupiters Limited not
proceed, the agreements to enter into forward interest rate
swaps may not be required. To the extent that the agreements
are not entered into, the economic entity may be required to
pay costs associated with closing out these agreements. Any
amounts-required to be paid will depend on the level of
forward swap interest rates at that date.

Contingent assets

(j) Sale of land

During the vear, a controlled entity disposed of land owned at
50 Union Street, Pyrmont. Proceeds of $12.3 million were
received in February 2003. Part of the sale agreement includes
an additional amount which is dependent upon the purchaser
being able to seek an approved Development Application (DA)
from Planning NSW to develop to a specified net lettable rent
area. The additional payment cannot be reliably measured and
no such approval has been received to date.

(k) Jupiters Limited merger break costs

Under the terms of the Merger Implementation Agreement
with Jupiters Limited, Jupiters Limited may be liable to pay to
the economic entity break costs of $12.2 million as
compensation if the merger does not proceed in certain
circumstances. The economic entity considers such
circumstances to be remote. Refer Note 33(h).

(a) Showboat Leighton Partnership

Following the purchase of the remaining 15% of Sydney Casino
Management {SCM;} on 30 June 2003 from Leighton Property
Development Pty Limited, the Showboat Leighton Partnership
will be dissolved, subject to the approval of the New South
Wales Department of Gaming and Racing. Under the Sale
Agreement, once this approval has been granted, the rights of
SCM under the Casino Management Agreement (refer Note
38(f)) will be novated across to Showboat Australia Pty Limited.
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(b) Deed of Undertaking to Casino Control Authority
Subsequent to 30 June 2003, TABCORP Holdings has provided
a Deed of Undertaking as denoted in Note 39(g).

(c) Dividends )

Since 30 June 2003, the directors have declared a dividend of
34 cents per ordinary share. This has the effect of reducing
retained earnings and increasing current liabilities by
$124.2838 million (refer Note 5).




NOTE 4 T} Additional financial instruments disclosure

(a) Interest rate risk
The consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial
liabilities is set out below;

2003

Financial assets

Cash assets 7 0.2-4.25 34,606 - - - 22,400 57,006
Short-term deposits 7 460475 50,624 - - - - 50,624
Bank accepted bills 7 478-4.89 - 11,159 - - - 11,159
Receivables 8 - - - - - 9,762 8,762
LLoans pursuant to

employee share plan 10,17  upto4.00 - - ~ 2,890 28,787 31,877
Loans to executive directors 17 upto4.00 - - - 6,071 - 8,071
Loans — other 17 - - - - - 2,125 2,125
Total financial assets 85,230 11,159 - 8,961 63,074 168,424

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors and

accrued expenses 18, 24 - - - - - 167,831 167,831
Bank joans — unsecured 19,25 5.28-545 597,898 - - - - 597,898
Bank loans - secured 19, 25 7.946 168,000 - - - - 168,000
Total financial liabilities 765,898 - - - 167.831 933,729
Interest rate swaps fiil 41(c) (350,000) 350,000 -
2002

Financial assets

Cash assets 7 115425 33,350 528 - - 23,627 57,505
Short term deposits 7 460465 69,338 - - - - 69,338
Receivables 8 - - - - - 9,505 9,505
Loans pursuant to

employee share plan 10,177 upt05.00 - - - 6,638 27.075 33,713
Loans to executive directors 17 uptob.00 - - - 1,122 4,470 5,592
Total financial assets 102,688 528 - 7,760 64,677 175,653
Financial liabilities

Trade creditors and

accrued expenses 18, 24 - - - - - 117,857 117.857
Bank loans - unsecured 18,256 498574 516,838 - - - - 516,898
Bank loans - secured 19,25 7.94 (i) 260,000 - - - - 260,000
Dividend payable 22 - - - - - 118,408 119,408
Total financial liabilities 776,898 - - - 237,265 1,014,163
Interest rate swaps i} 47{c) (394,000} 44,000 350,000 -

) Interest bearing employee share loans are repayable from dividends with outstanding balances settled on cessation of employment.
i The effective interest rate incorporates the effect of interest rate swaps.
fii Notional principal amounts

(b) Net fair values
The carrying amount of the entity’s recognised financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their net fair value (refer Note 1(h}).
The exception to the above is the net fair value of interest rate swap contracts, being unrecognised financial instruments amounting

1o $10.9 million {2002: $15.9 million). This value represents the estimated cost of cancelling the instruments {net of transaction costs)
at balance date and is determined using independent market quotations and adopting conventional market valuation technigues.
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NOTE ‘ﬁL /ﬂ Addttional financial instruments disclosure (continued)

(c) Unrecognised financial instruments -

interest rate swaps

The entity has a policy of controliing exposure to interest rate
fluctuations by the use of interest rate swaps or caps,
accordingly a controlled entity has entered into interest rate
swap agreements that are used to convert the variable interest
rate of its long-term borrowings to medium-term fixed interest
rates. These swaps are in accordance with the objective of
hedging a portion of the interest rate risk in respect of its term
and revolving debt facilities.

At 30 June 2003, a controlled entity has forward rate swap
agreements which hedge a portion of the debt facilities
through to their maturity in June 2004.

The controlled entity will pay fixed interest rates ranging from
7.28% to 8.61% (2002: 7.28% to 8.61%) and receive the bank
bill swap rate calculated on the notional principal amount of
the contracts.

At 30 June 2003, the nctional principal amount of swaps in
place at each year end through 1o the maturity of the contracts
will be:

2003 2004
3560 _

$ million

The economic entity’s policy is not to recognise interest rate
swaps in the financial statements. Net settlement receipts and
payments are recogrised as an adjustment to interest expense
on an accruals basis over the term cof the swaps such that the
overall interest experise on term debt reflects the average long
term cost of funds achieved by entering into the swap
agreements.

{d) Unrecognised financial instruments -

interest rate options

During the year a controlled entity entered into options to enter
into forward interest rate swap agreements. These instruments
were entered into to provide the economic entity with the
certainty that the interest rate applicable to a portion of the
future debt associated with the proposed merger of Jupiters
Limited, will be able to be fixed within a known range of
interest rates. The interest rate options expire in

December 2003.

As at 30 June 2003 the unrecognised fair value of the interest
rate options is $1.2 million. The value represents the amount
that would be receivable on cancelling the instruments (net of
transaction costs) at balance date and is determined using
independent market quotations and adopting conventional
market valuation techniques.

At 30 June 2003 the notional principal amount of swaps to
which the options related, in place at 30 June 2003 and
through to the end of the contracts is:

Netfionsl Armeum s R Renge
$250 million 455% 10 5.05%
$350 million 4.74% to 5.245%
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{e) Credit risk exposures

The credit risk on financial assets which have been recognised
on the statement of financial position is the carrying amount,
net of any provision for doubtful debts. The economic entity is
not materially exposed to one individual debtor. The economic
entity minimises credit risk via adherence o a strict cash
rmanagement policy.

In relation to unrecognised financial liabilities, credit risk arises
from the potential failure of counterparties to mest their
obligations under the contract or arrangement. The economic
entity’s maximum credit risk exposure in relation to these

is in respect of the interest rate swap contracts and the
options to enter into interest rate swap contracts and is
detailed in Notes 41(b} and 41(d) above.

Credit risk in trade receivables is managed in the following
ways:

* the provision of cheque cashing facilities for casino gaming
patrons is subject to detailed policies and procedures
designed to minimise any potential loss, including the taking
up of bank opinions and the use of a central credit agency
which collates information from major casinos around the
waorld,

the provision of non-gaming credit is covered by a risk
assessment process for all customers using the Credit
Reference Association of Australia, bank opinions and trade
references.

The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the
value of any collateral or other security held, in the event other
entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the
financial instruments in question.




DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors declare that:

(@) the financial statements and associated notes of the
company and of the economic entity comply with the
accounting standards and Urgent Issues Group
Concensus Views;

{b) the financial statements and notes of the company and of
the economic entity give a true and fair view of the financial
position as at 30 June 2003 and performance of the
company and of the economic entity for the year then
ended; and

{¢) in the directors’ opinion:

(i} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable, and the companies
and parent entity who are party to the deed described
in Note 35(a) wili, as an economic entity, be able to
meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or
may become, subject by virtue of the Deed of Cross
Guarantee dated 8 June 1995 (as amended on
13 November 2000); and

{ii) the financial statements and notes of the company
and of the economic entity are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001,

Made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

/@J@

M.B. Robinson AO <.
Chairman

Melbourne, 13 August 2003

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO
MEMBERS OF TABCORP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Scope

The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the staterment of financial
position, statement of financial performance, statement of
cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements,
and the directors’ declaration for TABCORP Holdings Limited
{the company) and the consolidated entity, for the year ended
30 June 2003. The consolidated entity comprises both the
company and the entities it controlled during that year.

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a
financial report that gives a true and fair view of the financial
position and performance of the company, and that complies
with Accounting Standards, in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001. This includes respansibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and
error, and for the accounting policies and accounting
estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit Approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in
order to express an opinion on it to the members of the
company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable

assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material
misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors
such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing,
the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability
of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an
audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have
been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material
respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and other
mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view
which is consistent with our understanding of the company’s
and the consolidated entity's financial position, and of its
performance as represented by the results of its operations
and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these
procedures, which included:

* examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report, and

assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies
and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over financial reporting when determining the
nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not
designed to provide assurance on internal controls,

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance
of business transactions was accurately reflected in the
financial report. These and our other procedures did not
include consideration or judgment of the appropriateness or
reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by
the directors and management of the company.

Independence

We are independent of the company, and have met the
independence reqguirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. In addition to
our statutory audit work, we were engaged to undertake the
services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The provision of these services has not impaired our
independence.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of TABCORP Holdings
Limited Is in accordance with:

(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of
TABCORP Holdings Limited and the consolidated
entity at 30 June 2003 and of their performance for the
year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and
the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b} other mandatory professional reporting requirements in

Australia.

1l 4 Yo

Ernst & Young

Moy 8 RQelde,

Mary B Waldron
Partner

Melbourne, 13 August 2003
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FIVE YEAR REVIEW

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Wagering, Gaming & Star City revenue 1,900,681 1,933,062 1,812,959 1,595,831 1,066,165
EBITDA 525,946 543,824 478,464 421,287 254,748
PBIT 420,737 435,301 365,067 326,219 220,135
Profit after income tax 252,624 260,959 187,682 174,780 143,341
Profit after income tax (pre goodwill) 270,579 278,911 205,775 187.476 143,341
Dividend 244,923 235,339 189,901 174,639 130,884
Cash and deposits 118,782 126,843 123,634 91,019 84,816
Other current assets 39,691 35,574 29,880 30,459 9,958
Licences/Management Agreement Rights 1,081,845 1,033,734 1,038,529 1,043,332 597,472
Goodwill 292,902 311,052 329,846 346,094 -
Other non-current assets 866,374 906,475 980,186 1,060,303 199,396
Total assets 2,398,501 2,413,678 2,601,975 2,571,207 891,642
Current interest-bearing liabilities 450,898 144,000 229,052 196,871 38,000
Other current liabilities 238,196 291,283 252,123 287,267 211412
Non current interest-bearing liabilities 315,000 632,898 710,000 780,154 -
Other non-current liahilities 75,631 69,120 67,590 68,851 15,027
Total liabilities 1,079,625 1,137,301 1,258,765 1,333,143 264,439
Shareholders’ funds 1,319,876 1,276,377 1,243,210 1,238,064 627,203
Capital expenditure 56,436 47,230 46,672 67,715 97,101

cents cents cents cents cents
Earnings per share — pre goodwill 735 74.8 55.3 B3.7 471
Earnings per share — post goodwill 68.7 70.0 50.4 50.1 47.1
Dividend per share 67.0 63.0 51.0 47.0 43.0
Operating cash flow per share 90.7 100.0 65.7 60.5 39.1
Return on shareholders’ funds (post goodwill) 18.8% 19.0% 14.1% 15.6% 18.8%
Net assets per share $3.61 $3.42 $3.34 $3.33 $2.06
Operating revenue $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
Wagering 421,302 403,610 380,339 363,107 362,967
Gaming 848,137 817.569 846,349 794,348 713,188
Star City 631,242 611,873 586,271 438,376 -
Total 1,900,681 1,933,052 1,812,959 1,595,831 1,066,165

EBITDA - Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
PBIT - Profit before interest and tax
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AS AT 21 AUGUST 2003

Share capital
TABCORP has on issue 365,556,521 fully paid ordinary shares.

The company conducted an on market share buy-back
between 10 May 2002 and 17 December 2002, for which a
total of 11,278,081 shares were bought back and subsequently
cancelled for a total consideration of $128,729,792.87
(excluding brokerage calculated at 0.1%). The buy-back was
undertaken as part of TABCORP's policy to maximise returns
to shareholders and formed part of the company's efficient
capital management strategy. There is not currently any share
buy-back in respect of the company’s shares.

Substantial shareholders

The following substantial shareholder notices have been
lodged in accordance with section 671B of the Corporations
Act 2001:

Number of % of

Date of ordinary issued
Name interest shares? capital 2
Maple-Brown
Abbott Limited 31 July 2003  30,308972 829
Perpetual Trustees
Australia Limited 5 December 2002 30,073,434  8.16
UBS Nominees
Pty Ltd 16 June 2003 22,513,668 6.16

! as disclosed in last notice lodged.
2 the percentage set out in the notice is calculated on the total issued share
capital of the company at the date of change in interest.

Distribution of shareholdings

Number of % of
Number of Number of % of ordinary issued
shares held holders holders shares capital
1-1,000 43,753 62.91 30,842,336 8.44
1,001 - 5,000 25919 32.77 60,204,584 16.47
5,001 - 10,000 2,302 2.91 17,397,417 4.76
10,001 - 100,000 990 125 23,729,305 6.49
100,001 and over 119 015 233382879 6384
Total 79,083 100.00 365,556,521 100.00

Voting rights

All shares issued by TABCORP Holdings Limited carry one
vote per share. Part 4 of the Gaming and Betting Act 1994 and
Rules 134 to 142 of the company’s Constitution contain certain
restrictions in relation to shareholding interests. Failure to
comply with certain provisions of the Gaming and Betting Act
or the Constitution can result in suspension of voting rights.

Twenty largest shareholders*

Number of % of
ordinary issued

Name shares capital
J P Morgan Nominees
Australia Limited 39,796,277 10.89
National Nominees Limited 39,348,227 10.76
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 38,697,326 10.59
RBC Global Services Australia
Nominees Pty Limited 37.703,080 10.31
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 10,145,553 2.78
Commonwealth Custodial
Services Limited 8,050,048 2.20
Queensland Investment Corporation 7,220,987 1.98
ANZ Nominees Limited 5,367,929 1.47
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 5,131,953 1.40
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia)
Limited 4,769,851 1.30
AMP Life Limited 3,844,478 1.05
|IOOF Investment Management Ltd 1,733,254 0.47
Invia Custodian Pty Limited 1,683,315 0.46
NRMA Nominees Pty Limited 1,656,162 0.45
UBS Warburg Private Clients 1,605,140 0.44
Merrill Lynch {Austratia) Nominees
Pty Ltd 1,395,401 0.38
Australian United Investment
Co Limited 1,190,000 0.33
Perpetual Trustee Co Ltd (Hunter) 1,059,844 0.29
PSS Board 1,048,470 0.29
Government Superannuation Office 1,036,170 0.28
Total of top twenty shareholders 212,483,465 58.13

* On a grouped basis

Marketable Parcel

There were 114 shareholders holding less than a marketable
parcel ($500) based on a market price of $11.40 at the close
of trading on 21 August 2003.

Shareholding Restrictions

On 19 June 2002, Royal Assent was given 1o the Gaming
Legislation (Amendment) Act, enabling TABCORP's individual
shareholder restriction to be increased from 5% to 10%, and
removing the previous 40% foreign ownership restriction.
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Investors seeking information about their shareholding should
contact the company's Share Registry. Shareholders should
have their Shareholder Reference Number (SRN) available to
assist in responding to their enguiries.

TABCORP's Share Registry

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited

GPO Box 1736P, Melbourne Vic 3001
Telephone: 03 9615 3899

Toll Free: 1300 665 €671

Facsimile: 03 9615 9300

Facsimile: 03 8615 9744 (proxy forms only)
Email: registrars@asxperpetual.com.au
Website: www.asxperpetual.com.au

SHARE REGISTRY ON-LINE AT www.asxperpetual.com.au
The Share Registry's website allows shareholders to check
their current and previous holding balances. Shareholders can
also check and update their annual report election and Tax File
Number (TFN) or Australian Business Number (ABN). There
are also a number of forms that can be downloaded to advise
a change of address or change of direct credit details for
dividend payments.

GENERAL ENQUIRIES ABOUT TABCORP
If you would like more information about the company,
you are invited to contact:

TABCORP's Sharehoider Relations Manager
Telephone: 03 9868 2779

Facsimile: 03 9868 2726

Email: investor@tabcorp.com.au

Website: www.tabcorp.com.au

TABCORP ON THE WEB AT www.tabcorp.com.au

Investor information is available on TABCORP's website.
This website includes key Australian Stock Exchange
announcements, Annual and Half-Yearly Reports and general
company informatior:.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The company'’s shares are listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange under the code ‘TAH'. Trading information is
published in daily newspapers.

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS

The company's shares are traded in sponsored American
Depositary Receipts (ADR} form in the United States of
America. ADR holders receive all information sent to
shareholders and receive their dividends in US dollars.
Each ADR represents 10 TABCORP ordinary shares.
Enquiries about ADRs should be made to:

Anita Sung

Assistant Vice President

The Bank of New York — ADR Division

101 Barclay Street, New York 10286 USA

Telephone: +212 815 8161

Telephone: 1 888 BNY ADRs (shareholder relations, US residents)
Telephone: +1 610 312 5315 (shareholder relations, non US residents)
Facsimile: +212 571 3050

Website: www.adrbny.com

REMOVAL FROM THE ANNUAL REPORT MAILING LIST
Shareholders who do not wish to receive the Annual Report
or Half-Yearly Report should advise the company’s Share
Registry in writing. The last six Annual Reports are currently
available from the company’s website. This report and future
reports will be made available on the website shortly after
being mailed to shareholders.
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CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Shareholders shouid advise the Share Registry immediately in
writing as soon as there is a change to their address, or bank
account details if required for dividend payment purposes.
Broker sponsored shareholders should advise their
sponsoring broker.

DIRECT CREDIT OF DIVIDENDS

Dividend payments may be credited into a nominated
account with a financial institution in Australia. You should
advise the Share Registry in writing of your details. Recent’
dividend payments are detailed in the Directors’ Report.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (DRP)
TABCORP's DRP has previously been inoperative, however a
new DRP will commence operation for the next interim dividend.

TAX FILE NUMBER (TFN)YAUSTRALIAN BUSINESS
NUMBER {ABN})

The company is obliged to deduct tax at the top marginal
rate plus Medicare levy from any unfranked or partially
franked dividends paid to Australian resident shareholders
who have not supplied their TEN, ABN or exemption details.
For those shareholders who have not provided this
information and would like to do so, please contact the
company's Share Registry.

CONSOLIDATION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

If you have received more than one Annual Report for the
same shareholding, please contact the company’s Share
Registry to consolidate your details into a single shareholding.

PRIVACY

TABCORP respects the privacy of its stakeholders.
TABCORP’s Privacy Policy is available on our website at
www.tabcorp.com.au

INVESTMENT WARNING

Past performance of shares is not necessarily a guide to
future performance. The value of investments and any income
from them is not guaranteed and can fall as well as rise.
TABCORP strongly recommends investors seek independent
professional advice before making investment decisions.

KEY DATES

2003 Date
Annual General Meeting (at Star City, Sydney) 30 October

2004*

Half-year results announcement 19 February
Ex-dividend for interim dividend 25 February
Record date for interim dividend 2 March
Interim dividend payment 6 April

End of financial year 30 June
Full-year results announcement 12 August
Ex-dividend for final dividend 18 August
Record date for final dividend 24 August
Final dividend payment 30 September
Annual General Meeting 28 October

* These dates may change. See the company's website for updates.

DISCLOSING INFORMATION
TABCORP immediately informs the Australian Stock Exchange
of anything that may affect the company’s share price.




COMPANY DIRECTORY

Directors

M.B. Robinson AQ (Chairman)

M.J. Slatter (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer}
A.G. Hodgson (Deputy Chairman)

PG. Satre

PH. Wade

R.FE. Warburton

WV, Wilson

Company Secretary
PH. Caillard

Registered Office

TABCORP Holdings Limited

5 Bowen Crescent

Melbourne Vic 3004

Australia

Telephone: 03 9868 2100
Facsimile: 03 9868 2300

Email. investor@tabcorp.com.au

Website
www.tabcorp.com.au

Share Registry

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
Level 4

333 Collins Street

Melbourne Vic 3000

Australia

Toll Free: 1300 665 661

Telephone: 03 9615 9780

Website: www.asxperpetual.com.au

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young — External auditors
KPMG - Internal auditors

Stock Exchange Listing

TABCORP Holdings Limited shares are quoted on the
Australian Stock Exchange under the code 'TAH'.

The company's shares are traded in sponsored American
Depositary Receipt (ADR) form in the United States of
America.
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1ABLUNRE ROIaIngs Limitea

ABN 66 083 780 709

T A B C 0 R P All Registry communications to:
C/- ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited

A' 03 or Level 4, 333 Collins Street
T - Q 1o 7 Melbourne Vic 3000

A GPO Box 1736

2 I Melbourne Vic 3001

Telephone: 1300 665 661

Telephone: (03) 9615 9780

Facsimile: (03) 9615 9900

Email: registrars@asxperpetual.com.au

Website: www.asxperpetual.com.au

Dividend and Notice of Annual Genera! Meeting

Dear Shareholder,

Please find enclosed your dividend cheque or direct credit advice, and a Notice of
Meeting.

I am pleased to invite you to TABCORP's 2003 Annual General Meeting, which will
be held at the Grand Harbour Ballroom, Level 3, Star City Hotel, 80 Pyrmont Street,
Pyrmont, Sydney, at 10.00am on Thursday 30 October 2003. Enclosed is your
Notice of Meeting and Explanatory Notes which sets out the items for consideration
at the meeting.

If you are attending the Meeting, please bring this ietter with you to enable
prompt registration on your arrival.

If you are unable to attend the Meeting, you are encouraged to appoint a proxy to
vote on your behalf, which can be done by completing the enclosed proxy form. The
proxy form should be returned to the company's share registry either by facsimile on
(03) 9615 9744 or in the envelope provided and be received at least 48 hours before
the Meeting to be valid.

On the reverse of this letter is a map of the Star City Hotel and details regarding
parking and public transport options.

The Meeting will be webcast live on the company's website at www.tabcorp.com.au

May | also encourage you to use the online share registry facility available on the
company's website to conduct standard shareholding enguiries and transactions,
including electing not tc receive an annual report, electing to receive dividend
payments by direct credit, and changing your registered address.

Copies of the Notice of Meeting are available in large print to assist vision impaired
shareholders. Please contact the company's Shareholder Relations Manager by
telephone on (03) 9868 27789 to receive a copy.

I look forward to welcoming you to the Meeting.

Yours faithfully,

MICHAEL ROBINSON AO
Chairman




Star City is located on the foreshore of Sydney Harbour.

There are many ways that you can get to Star City. You can get here by taking the Metro Light Rail from
Central Railway Station or the Monorail from the city to Darling Harbour. There are also public bus and ferry
services that depart from Circular Quay, or take a short walk from Town Hall to Star City over the Pyrmont
Bridge.

When you arrive at Star City proceed to the Grand Harbour Ballroom, which is located on the third floor of
the Hotel tower.

By Public Bus Routes

The State Transit buses 443 and 888 regularly depart Circular Quay with stops including Town Hall before
arriving at Star City. For route and timetable information call 13 15 00.

By Metro Light Rail

Departs from Central Station via Darling Harbour to Star City every 10 to 15 minutes. For further information
call (02) 9552 2288.

By Monorail

The Sydney Monorail links the city, Darling Harbour and Chinatown. Harbourside is the closest station and is
only a seven minute walk to Star City. It operates every three to five minutes. For further information call
(02) 8584 5288.

By Car

The main access roads into Star City are Pyrmont Street and Pirrama Road. The Star City car park can be
entered using either Pirrama Road or Edward Street. There are also a number of other car parks located in
the area, please refer to the map below for these locations.

By Taxi
The taxi pick-up and drop-off point is located on our porte cochere (driveway), off Jones Bay Road.
By Ferry

Ferries operate from Circular Quay and stop at the wharf across from Star City. For route and timetable
information on State Transit's Darling Harbour ferry to Pyrmont Bay Wharf call 13 15 00.

r "“W*é@“@ﬂlﬁ”
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@< Metro Light Rail _
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Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of TABCORP Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) will be held at the Grand
Harbour Ballroom, Star City Hotel 80 Pyrmont Street, Pyrmont, Sydney on Thursday, 30 October 2003 at 10.00 a.m.

Item 1 - Financial Statements and Reports

Item 6 - Deferred Share Plan ' o S

To receive and consider the Financial Statements and the Reports of the
Directors and of the Auditor in respect of the year ended 30 June 2003,

ltem 2 - Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Company's Constitution:
{a) Mr A.G. Hodgson retires and being eligible offers himself for re-election.

(b} Mr R.EE. Warburton retires and being efigible offers himself for
re-glection.

Item 3 - Amendments to Constitution

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a special
resolution:

‘That, subject to receiving the written approval of the New South Wales
Casino Control Authority and with effect from the later of the passing of this
resolution and the receipt of that approval the Const|tut|on tabled at the
meeting and signed by the Chairman for the purpose of identification be
approved and adopted as the Constitution of the Company in substitution
for and to the exclusion of the existing Censtitution of the Company.’

{Refer explanatory memorandum annexed).

Item 4 - Remuneration of Directors

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

‘That the maximum aggregate amount out of which Directors’ fees may be
paid to all Directors by the Company and subsidiaries of the Company for
their services as Directors of the Company or of such subsidiaries, in respect
of each financial year of the Company commencing 1 July 2003, be increased
from a total of $1,200,000 per annum to a total of $1,500,000 per annum.’

(Refer explanatory memorandum annexed).

Item 5 - Long Term Performance Plan

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

‘That the Company hereby approves the implementation and
administration of the TABCORP Holdings Limited Long Term Performance
Plan for eligible executives of the Company in accordance with the Rules
of the TABCORP Holdings Limited Long Term Performance Plan, a copy of
which is tabled at the meeting and signed by the Chairman for the
purposes of identification.’

{(Refer explanatory memorandum annexed).

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSISTING VISION
IMPAIRED SHAREHOLDERS, A COPY OF
THIS NOTICE IN LARGE PRINT IS AVAILABLE
BY CALLING (03) 9868 2779. '

To consider and, i:f_'thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

‘That the Company hereby approves the implementation and administration
of the TABCORP Holdings Limited Deferred Share Plan for eligible
employees of the Company in accordance with the Rules of the ,TABCORP
Holdings Limited Deferred Share Plan, a copy of which is tabled at the *
meeting and signed by the Chairman for the purposes of identification.’

(Refer explanatory memorandum annexed).

-:Item 7 Partlclpatlon by the Managmg Dlrector and Chlef
Executive Officer in TABCORP employee share schemes

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

"That, subject to the passage of the resolutions proposed in ltems &5 and 6,
in accordance with ASX Listing ‘Rule 10.14, the Company is heréby
authorised to grant to the Managing Director and- Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Matthew Slatter,.any or all of the.following dyring. the three
year period following the Annual General Meeting on 30 October 2003

a. Performance Options over ordinary shares pursuant to the Company’s
Long Term Performance Plan;

b. Share Rights over ordinary shares pursuant to the Company's Long
Term Performance Plan; and

c. Fully paid ordinary shares {'Shares’) pursuant to the Company’s
Deferred Share Plan;

in guantities not exceeding those set out below: '

"Maximum number

Securities Plan

Performance Options Long Term Performance Plan 1,500,000
Share Rights Long Term Performance Plan 140,000
Shares Deferred Share Plan 190,000

(Refer explanatory memorandum annexed).

item 8 - Exclusion of issues under employee share schemes
from ASX 15% Cap

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

‘That, subject to the passage of the resolutions proposed in [tems 5 and 6,
for the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 7.2 Exception 9, the Company hereby
approves the issue of:

-a. Performance Options over ordinary shares pursuant to the Company's

Long Term Performance Plan;

b. Share Rights over ordinary shares pursuant to the Company's Long
Term Performance Plan; and

¢. Fully paid ordinary shares pursuant to the'Company’s Deferred Share
Plan,

during the three year period following the Annual General Meeting on
30 October 2003 as an exception to ASX Listing Rule 7.1.’

(Refer explanatory memorandum annexed).
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resolution: -

‘That for the purpose of Exception 7 in ASX Listing Rule 7.2, Exception 3 in
ASX Listing Rule 10.12 and for all other purposes, approval be given to the
terms of the TABCORP Holdings Limited Dividend Reinvestment Plan, a
copy of which is tabled at the meeting and signed by the Chairman for the
purposes of identification.’

By Order of the Board
PH. Caillard

Company Secretary
Dated: 30 September 2003

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM

Voting at the Meeting

1. The Company has determined that for the purpose of voting at the
meeting or adjourned meeting, shares will be taken tc be held by
those persons recorded ir the Company’s Register of Members as
at 7.00 p.m. (Eastern Standard Time) on Tuesday, 28 October 2003.

2. On a poll, ordinary shareholders have one vote for every fully paid
ordinary share held {subject to the restrictions on voting referred to
below).

Voting by Proxy

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint not
more than two proxies. If the shareholder appoints two proxies and
the appointment does not specify the proportion or number of the
shareholder’s votes each proxy may exercise, each proxy may exercise
half of the votes. An additional form of proxy will be supplied by the
Company on reguest.

2. In the case of joint shareholders, the form of proxy must be signed by
either one or both of the jnint shareholders personally or by attorney.
If you are signing as an attorney then the power of attorney must have
been noted by TABCORP's Share Registry or a certified copy must
accompany the proxy form.

3. i the shareholder is a corporation, the form of proxy may be executed
under its common seal, or under the hand of two directors of the
company or a director and a company secretary of the company.

If there is a sole director who is also the sole secretary, the form of
proxy may be signed by that person.

4. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

5. If the Chairman of the meeting is appointed as your proxy without a
direction as to how to vote, he will vote in support of the resolution.

6. To be effective, a form of proxy must be received by the Company at

the postal address shown below or at the Company's registered office,

5 Bowen Crescent, Melbourne, Victoria, 3004, or at the facsimile
number (03) 9615 9744, not less than 48 hours before the time for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting (as the case may be).

A Form of Proxy accompanies this Notice of Annual General Meeting.
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any votes cast on resolutions 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 by:
+ a Director of the Company; and
* an associate of a Director of the Company.

However, the Company need not disregard a vote if:

* it is cast by a person as proxy for a person who is entitled to vote,
in accordance with the directions on the proxy form; or

* it is cast by the person chairing the meeting as proxy for a person
who is entitled to vote, in accordance with a direction on the proxy
form to vote as the proxy decides {and the acknowledgement box on
the proxy form in relation to resolutions 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 is marked).

2. Part 4 of the Gaming and Betting Act 1994 (Vic) and Part 2 (Rules 134
to 141) of the Company's Constitution contain provisions regulating
the exercise of voting rights by persons with prohibited shareholding
interests.

3. Section 53 of the Gaming and Betting Act 1994 (Vic) sets out the
regulation of shareholding interests. The Minister has the power to
request information to determine whether that person has a prohibited
shareholding interest. If a person fails to furnish these details within
the time specified or, in the opinion of the Minister, the information is
false or misleading, the Minister can declare the voting rights of those
shares suspended.

For Lodgement of Proxy Form

Proxy forms may be lodged at the Company’s registered office or at the
following addresses:

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited  or  ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited

GPO Box 1736 Level 4
Melbourne Vic 3001 333 Collins Strest
Melbourne Vie 3000

or by facsimile: (03) 9615 9744,

EXPLANATORY NOTES

Resolution 3 - Amendments to Constitution

In connection with the proposed merger with Jupiters Limited (Jupiters’),
and following consultation with the Queensland Office of Gaming
Regulation (the 'QOGR"), the Board recommends that the Company amend
its Constitution by way of adopting a new Constitution to incorporate
certain provisions relating to the proposed merger with Jupiters, and to
make certain amendments resulting from changes to the Corporations Act
and the Gaming and Betting Act 1994 (Vic).

The proposed amendments fall into two categories. Those relating
to the proposed merger with Jupiters, and those which update existing
provisions in the Constitution so as to bring them into line with the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and the Gaming and Betting Act 1994 (Vic).

In light of the changes to various parts of the Constitution and the fact that
some of the amendments are of a non-substantive nature, the Board has
decided that it is more appropriate to adopt a new Constitution
incorporating the proposed amendments, rather than put forward a lengthy
resolution proposing each specific amendment. The changes proposed to
be made to the Constitution which your Board considers significant are set
out below. Shareholders may inspect a copy of the proposed Constitution
together with a copy marked up to show all changes &t the registered
office of the Company at Level 12, 5 Bowen Crescent, Melbourne during
normal business hours. Alternatively, shareholders may request a copy

of the Constitution from the Company Secretary by telephoning

+61 39868 2112 and a copy will be sent by mail at no cost.

The significant changes to the Constitution are as follows.
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the proposed merger with Jupiters. Jupiters shareholders will consider
the proposed merger, which is to be implemented by way of scheme of
arrangement under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), at a meeting of
Jupiters cordinary shareholders convened for 24 October 2003. The merger
with Jupiters is conditional on the Company obtaining the approvals
necessary from the Queensland State Government.

As at the date of this Notice of Meeting, the Queensland State
Government is still considering the Company’s application to obtain the
necessary regulatory approvals. It may be a condition of the grant of the
necessary approvals by the Queensland State Government, or a factor
which is taken into consideration by the Queensland State Government in
determining whether to grant the necessary approvais, that the proposed
amendments set out below are made to the Company’s Constitution.

These proposed amendments to the Constitution are intended to give

the Treasurer of Queensland, or such other person responsible for
administering the Casino Contro! Act 1982 (Qld) (the ‘Queensiand
Minister’), and (in some cases) certain other decision makers under
applicable gaming laws of Queensland, similar powers to those presently
conferred under the Company’s Constitution upon the New South Wales
Casino Control Authority (which were included in the Constitution following
the Company's acquisition of Star City Holdings Limited), as well as
conferring certain powers on the Queensland Minister which are presently
contained in the constitution of Jupiters.

The Board believes that it is in the best interests of the Company to amend
the Constitution in the manner described below to both assist in obtaining
the necessary approvals from the Queensland State Government and, if
the merger with Jupiters becomes effective, to protect the Company's
investment in Jupiters, since the inclusion of these provisions in the
Constitution will assist in ensuring that the Company remains a suitable
person to be concerned in or associated with the ownership, management
or operations of a casino in Queensland.

If passed, the proposed amendments to the Constitution in connection
with the merger of Jupiters will have the following effect:

1. Approval of Directors

As part of the Company's probity requirements, all Directors must receive
certain regulatory approvals before they are appointed to the position of
Director. It is proposed that the Constitution be amended by providing that
the Queensland Minister must approve the appointment of a person as a
Director of the Company prior to their appointment. The Constitution
already contains a similar provision, in that the New South Wales Casino
Control Authority must approve the appointment of a person as a Director
prior to their appointment.

2. Disposals and transfers of shares 3

Itis proposed that the Constitution be amended to provide that the
Company may be required to enforce the disposal of shares in itself held
by any person who, in accordance with the applicable gaming laws in
Queensland, is considered not to be, or has ceased to be, a suitable
person to be associated or connected with the ownership, administration
or management of the operations or business of the Company. Jupiters or
any subsidiary of Jupiters or a casino in Queensland. If the shareholder
fails to dispose of the shares, the Company will be able to dispose of the
shares on behalf of the shareholder at a fair market value, determined in
accordance with the Constitution, or the best price which the Company is
able to obtain. Until the relevant shares are sold, the dividend and voting
rights attaching to the shares are suspended.

The Constitution already contains similar provisions which give the New
South Wales Casino Control Authority the power to determine that a ‘close
associate’ of Star City Pty Ltd {the New South Wales casino licensee) who
has shares in the Company is not a suitable person to be concemned in or
associated with the operation or management of a casino, and to require
the shareholder to dispose of their shares in the Company.

breach of the Casino Control Act 1982 {Qld) or any other applicable gaming
law of Queensland, or the terms of a Queensiand casino licence or any
associated agreement between the Company and the State of
Queensland. A similar provision, relating to, amongst other things,
transfers which might be in breach of the New South Wales Casino Control
Act is already included in the Constitution.

3. Vacation of office of Director

Itis proposed that the Constitution be amended to provide that the office
of a Director will be vacated if a notice is issued under an applicable
gaming law of Queensland to the effect that the Director is not or has
ceased to be a suitable person to be asscciated or connected with the
ownership, administration or management of the operations or business of
the Company, Jupiters or a subsidiary of Jupiters or a casino in
Queensland.

4. Shareholding restrictions

The amendments to the Constitution will also result in the inclusion of

a provision to the effect that, without the prior written consent of the
Queensland Minister, a person’s voting power in the Company must not
exceed 10%. The Victorian Gaming and Betting Act presently provides that
a person's voting power in the Company must not exceed 10%. If a
shareholder fails to comply with this provision in the Constitution and fails
to dispose of shares upon being required by the Company to do so in
accordance with the Constitution, the Company may sell the shares on
behalf of the shareholder at a fair market value, determined in accordance
with the Constitution, or at the best price the Company is able to obtain.
Until the relevant shares are sold, the dividend and voting rights attaching
to the shares will be suspended. The Company's Constitution already
includes similar provisions, in that it provides that, without the prior written
consent of the New South Wales Casino Control Authority, a person’s
voting power in the Company must not exceed the limit contained in the
Gaming and Betting Act 1994 {Vic), and provides for the divestiture
mechanism referred to above whereby, if a shareholder does not comply
with the shareholding restriction provision, the Company may sell the shares
on the shareholder’s behalf if the shareholder fails to dispose of the shares.

5. Disposal of shares in certain subsidiaries

The proposed amendments will mean that the Company can only dispose
of its interest in TABCORP Participant Pty Ltd or TABCORP Investments
No.2 Pty Ltd (which are the wholly owned subsidiaries through which the
Company will hold its interest in Jupiters) to a person approved by the
Queensland Minister (and, in the case of TABCORP Participant Pty Ltd,

a person approved by the New South Wales Casino Control Authority).

6. Statutory declarations

The amendments will enable the Company to forward to the Queensland
Minister a copy of any statutory declaration which is given to the Company
by a shareholder pursuant to Rule 137 of the Constitution. A similar
provision is elready included in the Constitution in so far as it relates to the
New South Wales Casino Control Authority.

7. Auditor

To give the Queensland Minister additional comfort that the Company will
continue to properly prepare its accounts, the new Constitution provides
that no person, other than one of the four major accounting firms
operating in Australia from time to time, will be appointed as auditor of the
Company unless their appointment as auditor has first been approved in
writing by the Queensiand Minister. A similar provision is already included
in the Constitution in so far as it relates to the New South Wales Casino
Control Authority.

8. Entrenched provisions

To ensure that the Company continues to comply with each of the above
provisions, it is proposed that the Constitution be amended to provide that
the provisions which have been included at the request of the State of
Queensland cannot be varied without the consent of the Queensland
Minister.

As mentioned above, these provisions have been based closely on, and
are in addition to, existing provisions in the Company’s Constitution {which
was amended at the Annual General Meeting in November 1999 to confer
certain powers on the New South Wales Casino Control Autherity following
the acquisition by the Company of Star City Holdings Limited).
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result in the following amendments:

(a) Corporations Act: References in the Constitution to the Corporations
Law will be changed to the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

New South Wales Casino definitions: A number of definitions in the
Constitution referable to the Company's interest in the Star City Casino
in New South Wales are proposed to be amended to include reference
to 'New South Wales' at the start of the definitions, given that, upon
the merger with Jupiters becoming effective, the Company will have
casino operations in both New South Wales and Queensland.

b

(c) Capital reductions: An amendment is proposed so that the Company
may reduce its capital in any manner permitted by law. The
amendment reflects changes to the Corporations Law (now
Corporations Act) to the effect that not all reductions of capital which
are required to be approved by shareholders or, if shareholder approval
is required, require a special resolution.

=

Gaming and Betting Act, relevant interests and voting power: Certain
amendments are also proposed to update the Constitution so that the
definition of relevant interest’ and the concept of voting power in the
Constitution follows the amendments made to the Gaming and Betting
Act 1994 (Vic) {the amendments to the Gaming and Betting Act
bringing the concepts into line with the applicable provisions in the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)). The amendments result in certain
definitions and Rules in the Constitution being updated to refer to

the relevant sections of the Corporations Act (as opposed to the
corresponding provisions in the Corporations Law), and the update of
certain other provisions to take account of the move from the
‘entitlement’ concept to the 'voting power’ concept, including certain
Rules of a transitional nature which were previously included in the
Constitution at the Annual General Meeting in 2001 (to deal with the
transition associated with the amendments to the Gaming and Betting
Act 1984 (Vic) to move from the ‘entitiement’ concept in Chapter 6 of
the Corporations Act to the ‘voting power’ concept).

Approval of New South Wales Casino Control Authority

Rule 136 of the Company's Constitution provides that the Company must
obtain the prior written approval of the New South Wales Casino Control
Authority to amend certain Rules in the Constitution. Accordingly, this
resolution is expressed to be subject to receiving the written approval of
the New South Wales Casino Control Authority. The result is that if this
resolution is passed as a special resolution it will be of no effect unless,
and until, the change to the Constitution has been approved by the New
South Wales Casino Control Authority.

Resolution 4 - Remuneration of Directors

Itis proposed that the maximum aggregate sum which may be paid as
Non-Executive Directors’ fees be increased by $300,000 to $1,500,000 per
annum from the current amount of $1,200,000.

The proposed merger with Jupiters Limited will significantly increase the
size and diversity of the Company's operations, Following the merger with
Jupiters, the merged group will operate approximately 18,000 gaming
machines, with four casinos and hotel facilities in Queensland and New
South Wales, off-course wagering and sportsbetting operations in Victoria,
Keno operations on the east coast of Australia, gaming machine monitoring
operations in Victoria and Queensland, the AWA technology servicing business
and an international monitoring, gaming and totalisator sales business.

If the Company acquires all of the ordinary shares in Jupiters then it
intends to offer two Board seats to current members of the board of
Jupiters — Lawrence Willett and John Story. This will result in an increase
to the number of Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the Company.

The proposed increase in the maximum aggregate amount which may be
paid as Non-Executive Directors’ fees will accommodate the appointment
of these two additional Directors, and will also allow for adjustments to
fees to reflect movements in remuneration for Non-Executive Directors
of comparable companies over time. The Company will continue to have
regard to market practice in determining an appropriate level of
remuneration for its Directors and full disclosure will be made to
shareholders in each Annual Report.

4

fees will be adjusted to take into account this change.

Resolution 5 — Long Term Performance Plan

Resolution 5 seeks approval of the implementation and administration of
a long term executive incentive plan known as the 'TABCORP Holdings
Limited Long Term Performance Plan’ (the ‘Long Term Performance Plan’).

Background

As the Company enters a new phase of its growth, the Company is taking
a fresh approach to the reward of employees whose actions and decisions
have strategic and operaticnal importance to the Company. Under this new
approach, key employees will be provided with a total annual reward
package comprising a mix of base pay (consisting of salary and benefits),

a short term incentive component and a long term incentive compenent.
The long term incentive compeonent of the total annual reward package is
intended to be delivered under the new Long Term Performance Plan.

The implementation of a new Long Term Performance Plan for executives
of the Company is intended to replace the Long Term Incentive Plan that
was adopted following the corporatisation and listing of the Company in
August 1994, At that time, the Long Term Incentive Plan was the
appropriate vehicle for focusing executives on the share price growth of
the newly listed entity. However, the Company has determined that the
implementation of a new long term incentive vehicle for executives is
imperative in order to align reward with longer term Company performance
and to meet changing investor and market expectations.

Specifically, the new reward strategy, and the Long Term Performance Plan
as part of this, will:

* redefine and reinforce performance in the Company in support for its
strategic direction and objectives;

* act as a catalyst to strengthen the focus on performance; and

« allow the Company to keep in step with a changing competitive landscape,
particularly in relation to the attraction and retention of talented employees.

Overview of the Long Term Performance Plan

Allocations to senior executives under the Long Term Performance Plan

will be structured to deliver an average annual target reward value of up

to 25% of the total annual reward package. Allocations for other executives
will provide a more conservative reward outcome as a percentage of total
annual reward.

Performance Options and Share Rights

Reward under the Long Term Performance Plan will be delivered via a mix
of Performance Options and Share Rights. Performance Options will have
an exercise price based on the value of the underlying fully paid ordinary
shares at grant, and with vesting to the participant dependent on the
meeting of performance and time-based criteria. Share Rights will deliver
the whole value of fully paid ordinary shares to the participant again with
vesting being dependent on both performance and time-based criteria.

Why a mix of Performance Options and Share Rights?

Properly structured, the Board believes that Performance Options are still
the most effective instrument for rewarding executives for the growth in
shareholder value over the medium to longer term. Share Rights provide
an efficient mechanism to align employee and shareholder interests while
requiring less equity than options to provide a similar reward value to
participants. Generally speaking, it is intended that the reward package for
senior executives will have a greater emphasis on Performance Options,
while the reward package for other key employees will have a greater
emphasis on Share Rights.

Summary of the operation of the Long Term Performance Plan

Scope of Long Term Performance Plan

The Rules of the Leng Term Performance Plan set out broad parameters
as to the manner in which the Company may implement and administer
the plan. The administration of the Long Term Performance Plan will be
in accordance with these Rules and may be amended by the Board.

Performance Options and Share Rights will be granted on such terms and
conditions as the Board determines in its discretion, Set out below are the
terms and conditions which the Board intends to apply to offers to the
Company'’s eligible executives pursuant to the plan. Subject to the Rules
of the Long Term Performance Plan, the Board may at any time amend any
or all of the terms and conditions of offer under the plan.



determined by the Board from time to time. However, as mentioned
above, participation in the plan is intended as a component of annual
reward for executives whose performance is of strategic and operational
importance to the Company.

Grants of Performance Options and Share Rights

The number of Performance Options and Share Rights granted under the
Long Term Performance Plan will depend on:

* the target reward value of long term incentives as part of the total annual
reward package. As noted, for senior executives the average annual
target reward value of long term incentives will be up to 25% of their
total annual reward package;

* the mix between Performance Options and Share Rights as determined
by the Board; and

* a remuneration value at the time of grant attributed to Performance
Options and Shares Rights. A fair remuneration value has been derived
by modelling a range of projected share price growth scenarios for the
TABCORP stock and by taking into account vesting probabilities. It should
be noted that it is likely that the remuneration value calculated using this
methodology will differ from a value based on an option pricing model
used for expensing employee equity (which is discussed below).

Vesting conditions

Both Performance Options and Share Rights may vest over a 3-5 year
period (the "Test Period"), subject to the meeting of applicable performance
hurdles. This timeframe aligns with the timeframe for the Company’s long
term business strategy. and accords with the expectations of Australian
shareholder bodies. If performance hurdles have not been met by the end
of the Test Period, ordinarily Performance Options and Share Rights will
lapse. However, the Board does have the power to waive vesting conditions.

The performance hurdle to be attached to both Performance Options and
Share Rights measures:

‘TABCORP's total shareholder return (TSR) ranking against a peer group of
companies, being the one hundred largest ASX listed companies based on
market capitalisation and excluding property trusts, infrastructure groups
and mining companies measured from time of grant of the Performance
Options or Share Rights.’

TABCORP's TSR ranking as against peer companies based on the ASX

Top 100 has been chosen as the performance measure for Performance
Options and Share Rights as it directly aligns with the interests of
shareholders and reflects performance as measured against the Company’s
key strategic objective, which is to maximise total shareholder return as
compared with TSR for peer companies based on the ASX Top 100.

Vesting of Performance Options and Share Rights against the relative TSR
ranking measure will occur in the following manner:
If on Test Dates during the Test Period TABCORP's TSR ranking is:

* below the 50th percentile, 0% of Performance Options and Share Rights
will be exercisable;

* at the 50th percentile, 50% of Performance Options and Share Rights
will be exercisable;

* at or above the 75th percentile, 100% of Performance Options and Share
Rights will be exercisable;

¢ above the 50th percentile and below the 75th percentile, an additional
2% of Performance Options and Share Rights will become exercisable
for each 1 percentile increase above the 50th percentile.

This vesting schedule is depicted in the diagram below:
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at the 3rd enniversary of grant) and the final Test Date occurring at the
conclusion of the Test Period (that is, at the 5th anniversary of grant). Any
Performance Options and Share Rights that have not vested by the end of
the Test Period will lapse.

Performance Options and Share Rights may vest progressively. This
means that if on Test Dates during the Test Period TABCORP's relative TSR
ranking is higher than as measured on previous Test Dates during the Test
Pericd, a further number of Performance Options and Share Rights may
vest to participants in addition to the Performance Options and Share
Rights that may have already vested. The maximum number of
Performance Options and Share Rights that will have vested to participants
will accord with the highest measure of TABCORP’s relative TSR ranking
on Test Dates during the Test Period.

An example of the way in which Performance Options and Share Rights
may vest progressively over the Test Period is indicated in the table below:

Example:
Cumulative  Percentage
TSR Ranking percentage that vest at
Test Date at Test Date vested Test Date
First Test Date 50th percentile  50% vested  50% vest

{at 3rd anniversary
of grant)

Second Test Date 50% vested
(at 4th anniversary

of grant)

Third Test Date

(at 5th anniversary
of grant}

After Test Period
(after 5th anniversary
of grant)

45th percentile 0% vest (and none

lapse)

65th percentile  80% vested  30% vest (equal to
80% less 50%

already vested)

0% (that is, no further
Performance Options
or Share Rights may

vest after Test Period)

75th percentile  80% vested

Exercise and lapse of Performance Options and Share Rights

As mentioned above, Performance Options may be exercised upon
payment of an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
TABCORP shares at the date of grant. No consideration will be payable for
the exercise of-Share Rights.

Upon exercise of both Performance Options and Share Rights, participants
will acquire fully paid ordinary shares in TABCORP and wiill receive full
voting and dividend rights corresponding to the rights of all other holders
of ordinary shares in TABCORP

As mentioned above, Performance Options and Share Rights that have not
vested after the end of the Test Period will lapse.

Performance Options and Share Rights that have vested during the Test
Period will be exercisable until the 7th anniversary of their date of grant.
Following this time any vested Performance Options and Share Rights that
remain unexercised will lapse.

Upon termination of employment of participants (other than at the
discretion of the Board in special circumstances such as, but not limited
to, retrenchment, death, and permanent incapacity) all Performance
Options and Share Rights that have not vested will lapse immediately, In all
circumstances of termination of employment, all Performance Options and
Share Rights that have vested will be exercisable by the participants for a
period of 90 days following termination of employment, following which
they will lapse.

/ssues of shares

The Board will have discretion as to whether shares to be delivered upon
exercise of Performance Options and Share Rights will be purchased on
market or will be provided from a new issue of shares.

Limitations on aflocations under the Long Term Performance Plan

In accordance with current Board resolutions and good corporate
governance practices as articulated by Australian shareholder bodies,
allocations under the Long Term Performance Plan aggregated with all
outstanding employee equity under other TABCORP employee share
schemes (that is, all Performance Options and Share Rights issued
previously that have not vested or been exercised, and all shares subject to
restrictions) will be limited to 5% of TABCORP's total issued share capital.




charge upon request from the Company Secretary.

Expensing of Performance Options and Share Rights

In accordance with the International Accounting Standards Board Exposure

Draft ED2, the Company intends to expense the value of all securities

provided to employees under the Long Term Performance Plan. To

determine the value of Performance Options and Share Rights to be

expensed, the Company will use a methodology that is based on a

binomial mode! of pricing options. The valuation methodology will take

into account the following valuation parameters:

* the exercise price of the Performance Option;

* the life of the Performance Option or Share Right;

* the price of the TABCORP securities at the date of grant of the
Performance Option or Share Right;

*» the expected volatility of the share price;

* the dividend vield expected on the shares;

* the risk-free interest rate for the life of the Performance Option or Share
Right; and

* the performance hurdles that apply to the Performance Option or Share
Right.

Recommendation
The Directors recommend that shareholders vote in favour of Resolution 5.

Resolution 6 — Deferred Share Plan

Resolution 6 seeks approval of the implementation and administration of
an employee share plan known as the "TABCORP Holdings Limited
Deferred Share Plan’ (the ‘Deferred Share Plan’ or the ‘Plan’).

Background

The Board believes that it is for the benefit of the Company and of

shareholders for TABCORP employees to have a greater alignment of

interests with those of shareholders through the holding of TABCORP

shares. The implementation of a new Deferred Share Plan is intended

to encourage and enable employees to hold TABCORP shares, and

specifically:

* t0 enable a portion of the short term incentive earned by senior
employees to be delivered in the form of restricted TABCORP ordinary
shares; and

* 10 act as the vehicle to enable all permanent TABCORP employees to
acquire fully paid TABCORP shares, under terms and conditions set by
the Board, in a tax deferred manner as provided for under Australian
taxation rules for employee share schemes.

Scope of Deferred Share Plan

The Rules of the Deferred Share Plan set out broad parameters as to the
manner in which the Company may implement and administer the Plan.
The administration of the Deferred Share Plan will be in accordance with
these Rules and may be amended by the Board.

Shares acquired under the Plan will be on such terms and conditions as
the Board determines in its discretion. Set out below are the terms and
conditions which the Board intends to apply to offers to the Company's
eligible employees pursuant to the Plan. Subject to the Rules of the
Deferred Share Plan, the Board may at any time amend any or all of the
terms and conditions of offer under the Plan.

Summary of the operation of the Deferred Share Plan

TABCORP shares acquired under the Deferred Share Plan will be held in
the name of participants. However, under the Plan, participants will be
restricted from selling the shares for a period of three years, with the
restriction held in force via the operation of a holding lock placed on the
shares by TABCORP's share registry.

Under the Plan, shares will be acquired by participants at the market value
of the shares at the date the shares are registered in the name of the
participant. As holders of ordinary shares, Plan participants will have
access to full dividend and voting rights and will participate in any bonus
shares or rights issues available to all other holders of TABCORP ordinary
shares.

the Company’s policy on dealing in securities, which s entitled ‘Employee
Share Plans — Share Sale Guidelines',

Delivery of short term incentive as restricted shares under the Deferred
Share Plan

As explained in the explanatcry notes for Resolution 5 on the Long Term
Performance Plan, the Company is taking a new approach to the reward

of employees whose actions and decisions have strategic and operational
importance to the Company. Under this new approach, key employees will
be provided with a total annual reward package comprising a mix of base
pay (consisting of salary and benefits), a short term incentive component
and a long term incentive component. The short term incentive component
of the total annual reward package is intended to be delivered under a new
Short Term Performance Plan.

The Short Term Performance Plan is designed to reward key employees

for the achievement of individual, business unit and Company performance
over a 12 month performance period, as assessed using a balanced
scorecard of measures that align to, and are supportive of, the Company's
annual strategic objectives. Any awards provided under the Short Term
Performance Plan will also be funded according to the meeting of
Company and divisicnal profitability targets.

A portion of any award under the Short Term Performance Pian may be
voluntarily or compulsorily received in the form of restricted shares under
the Deferred Share Plan. The portion to be received compulsorily as
restricted shares will be determined by the Board from time to time. This
will ensure key employees have an ongoing stake in the share capital of
the Company, strengthening the alignment of the interests of key
employees with those of shareholders.

Acquisition of TABCORP shares via salary sacrifice under the Deferred
Share Plan

The new Deferred Share Plan is also intended to replace the existing
General Employee Share Plan which was implemented following the
corporatisation and listing of TABCORP in August 1994. The General
Employee Share Plan has promoted the holding of TABCORP shares by
general employees, thus aligning their interests with those of shareholders,
by providing them with an interest-free loan to acquire shares to be repaid
over a five year period. However, due to changing investor and market
expectations, the Company has determined that a loan-based employee
share scheme is no longer appropriate.

instead, to encourage employees to continue to own TABCORP shares,
participation in the new Deferred Share Plan will be offered to employees.
Under the new Plan employees will be able to purchase TABCORP shares
via the sacrifice of pre-tax salary dollars. The three year restriction imposed
on shares under the Plan will allow tax to be deferred for this period of
time, &s provided for under Australian tax rules for employee share schemes.

Other terms and conditions

Termination of employment

Where participants terminate employment at a time prior to the end of the
three year restriction period, shares will be released to participants upon
termination.

Issues of shares

The Board will have discretion as to whether shares to be delivered under
the Deferred Share Plan will be purchased on-market or will be provided
from a new issue of shares. However, it is generally intended that shares
under the Deferred Share Plan will be purchased on-market given that
shares delivered under the Plan will be provided in lieu of short term
incentive payments or salary entitlements.

Limitations on allocations under the Deferred Share Plan

In accordance with current Board resolutions and good corporate
governance practices as articulated by Australian shareholder bodies,
allocations under the Deferred Share Plan aggregated with all outstanding
employee equity under other TABCORP employee share schemes (that is,
all Perfarmance Options and Share Rights issued under the Long Term
Performance Plan as described in the explanatory notes for Resolution 5
that have not vested or been exercised, and all shares issued previously
under the Deferred Share Plan and other plans and subject to restrictions)
will be limited to 5% of TABCORP's total issued share capital.



Draft EDZ, the Company intends to expense the value of all securities
provided to employees under the Deferred Share Plan. The value of shares
to be expensed will be in accordance with the valuation guidelines
provided by the exposure draft.

Plan rules

A copy of the Plan Rules will be made available to shareholders free of
charge upon request from the Company Secretary.

Recommendation

The Directors recommend that shareholders vote in favour of Resolution 6.

Resolution 7 - Participation by the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer in TABCORP employee share schemes

Resolution 7 seeks approval of awards to Matthew Slatter, the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (‘Chief Executive
Officer’), under the Company’s Long Term Performance Plan and Deferred
Share Plan. These plans are described in this Notice of Meeting in the
explanatory notes for Resolution 5 and Resolution 6.

Pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 10.14, shareholder approval is required to
allow a Director of the Company to acquire securities under an employee
share scheme. The Chief Executive Officer is the only Director for whom
the Company is seeking shareholder approval to acquire securities under
the Long Term Performance Plan and Deferred Share Plan to be adopted.
No other Director of TABCORP may participate in these plans. The Chief
Executive Officer's participation in these plans is in addition to the options
granted to him at the time he commenced employment with the Company.

The decision to provide the Chief Executive Officer with awards under the
Long Term Performance Plan and Deferred Share Plan arises as part of
TABCORP's new approach to rewarding key employees in order to support
the achievement of strategic Company objectives.

Along with other employees in the Company whose performance is of
strategic and operational importance to the Company, the Chief Executive
Officer will be provided with a total annual reward package comprising a
mix of base pay (consisting of salary and benefits), a short term incentive
component and a long term incentive component. Similar to other senior
employees, the long term incentive component is intended to be delivered
as a mix of Performance Options and Share Rights under the Company's
Long Term Performance Plan, and the short term incentive component is

. intended to be delivered, in part, as restricted Shares under the Company's
Deferred Share Plan.

In determining the target value of the long term and short term
components of the Chief Executive Officer’s total annual reward package,
TABCORP has sought the advice of external remuneration consultants in
relation to market competitive levels of remuneration for the Chief
Executive Officer role that are appropriate for companies of similar size
and complexity to TABCORP

Participation in the Long Term Performance Plan

Participation by the Chief Executive Officer in the Long Term Performance
Plan will be in accordance with the Rules of the plan and the terms and
conditions as described under the explanatory notes for Resolution & in
this Notice of Meeting.

The maximum number of Performance Options and Share Rights granted
to the Chief Executive Officer under the Long Term Performance Plan for
which TABCORP is seeking approval is based on an estimate of awards to
be delivered over the next three years that takes into account the following
parameters:

* the target reward value of long term incentive as part of the Chief
Executive Officer’s total annual reward package. It is intended by the
Board that the average annual target reward value of long term incentive
delivered to the Chief Executive Officer will be approximately 230% of his
total annual reward package;

* the mix between Performance Options and Share Rights as determined
by the Board. It is intended by the Board that Performance Options will
constitute the major proportion of the Chief Executive Officer’s long term
incentive; and

Dy Modeiing a range ot projecied snhare price growtn scenarios 1or ine
TABCORP stock and by taking into account vesting probabilities. It
should be noted that it is likely that the remuneration value calculated
using this methodology will differ from a value based on an option
pricing model used for expensing employee equity.

Performance Options will be issued for no consideration but will have an
exercise price based on the value of the underlying fully paid ordinary
shares at grant, and with vesting to the participant dependent on the
meeting of performance and time-based criteria. Share Rights will deliver
fully paid ordinary shares to the participant with no consideration payable,
again with vesting being dependent on both performance and time-based
criteria.

As explained in the explanatory notes for Resolution 5, both Performance
Options and Share Rights may vest over a 3-5 year period, subject to the
meeting of applicable performance hurdles. Please refer to the explanatory
notes for Resolution 5 for an explanation of these hurdles.

Participation in the Deferred Share Plan

Participation by the Chief Executive Officer in the Deferred Share Plan will
be in accordance with the Rules of the Plan and the terms and conditions
as described under the explanatory notes for Resolution 8 in this notice of
meeting.

The maximum number of restricted Shares to be awarded to the Chief
Executive Officer under the Deferred Share Plan (for which the Company is
seeking approval under Resolution 6) is based on an estimate of TABCORP
shares to be delivered over the next three years under the Short Term
Performance Plan. The participation by the Chief Executive Officer in the
Short Term Performance Plan will replace his participation in the current
TABCORP short term incentive scheme.

As explained in the explanatory notes for Resolution 6, the Short Term
Performance Plan is designed to reward key employees for the
achievement of individual, business unit and Company performance over
the short term, as assessed using & balanced scorecard of measures that
align to and are supportive of the Company’s annual strategic objectives.
Any award provided under the Short Term Performance Plan will also be
funded according to the meeting of Company and divisional profitability
targets.

A portion of any award under the Short Term Performance Plan may be
voluntarily or compulsorily received in the form of restricted shares under
the Deferred Share Plan. The portion to be received compulsorily as
restricted shares will be determined by the Board from time to time. This
will promote key employees to have an ongoing stake in the share capital
of the Company, strengthening the alignment of key employees’ interests
with those of shareholders.

The actual number of securities to be provided to the Chief Executive
Officer under the Deferred Share Plan will take into account the following
parameters:

* the actual reward value of the short term incentive earned under the
Short Term Performance Plan over the next three years. It is intended by
the Board that the Chief Executive Officer’s target reward value of short
term incentive under the Short Term Performance Plan will be
approximately 20% of his total annual reward package;

* the proportions of the short term incentive awards earned that are to be

compulsorily delivered as restricted shares under the Deferred Share
Plan, as determined by the Board;

* the market value of the TABCORP shares at the time of grant; and

* an allowance for the Chief Executive Officer to elect to receive the entire
short term incentive payment in the form of restricted shares.

The shares acquired by the Chief Executive Officer will be acquired at the
market value of the shares at the date the shares are registered in the
name of the Chief Executive Officer,

Allocations to the Chief Executive Officer in Financial Year ending
30 June 2004

[t is the intention of the Board to grant the foliowing approximate number
of Performance Options and Share Rights and to issue the following
approximate number of Shares to the Chief Executive Officer in the period
up to 30 June 2004.




Share Rights
Shares

Long Term Performance Plan

Deferred:Share Plan 50,000

These allocations are based.on the delivery of long term incentive to

the Chief Executivé Officer in the period up to 30 June 2004 as a mix
comprising 75% Performance Options and 25% Share Rights. It is the
intention’of the Board to review the appropriate mix for the Chief Executive
Officer each vear. r S

Expensing of securities provided to the Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the International Accounting Standards Board Exposure
Draft ED2, the Company intends to expense the value of all securities
provided to the Chief Executive Cfficer under the Long Term Performance
Plan and;the Beferred Share Plan. The value of Performance Options,

Share Rrghts‘ and shares to be expenseq will be in accordance with the
valuatrori‘ qrdelrnes provided by the exposure draft. To determine the value
of Performance Options and Share Rights to be expensed, the Company
will use a methodology that js based on the binomial model of pricing
options. This is described in further detail in the explanatory notes to
Resolution 6.

Statement in relation to approved issue of securities

Details of any securities issued to Directors under the Long Term
Performance Plan or the Deferred Share Plan will be published in each
TABCORP Annual Report relating to the period-in which-the:securities-have .
been issuedtogether with-a statemenithat-apprevaldordhe-lssucavas .
obtained under ASX Listing Fiule 10.14. i ¢

If additional Directors-becorme entitled de-participatedn-aither.the Long
Term Performance Plan,of the Deferred Share.Rlan after.this. Annual 4 g
Generat Mesting, sharehblder approval-under ASX mstrng Hule 10 14 wrll n‘
required, be obtained ‘gefor ?éreabfe to pammp‘ate R

s e

Recommendation
The Directors recommend that shareholders vote in favour of Resolution 7.
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Resolutlon‘B - Exclusron-of ISSUGS under TABCORP employee
share'schemes from ASX:15% €ap =’ " Lo

Resolutidn g seeks'approval 1aFissues 8f séctrities under the 6oan;>any s
Long Term Performance Plan and Deferred Share Plan, for the purposes of
ASX Listing Rule 7.2 Exception 9 tverthe mext thige years. X = 7 N

ASX Listing Rule 7.1 ‘imposes a cap on the number of securities that a
company may issue within'a 12 fonth period without shareholder .,
approval. The cap is 15% of the ¢ompany’s capital at the beginning of the
12 month period,.Listing Rule 7 2 contains a number. of exceptions to- ..
Listing Rule 7.7, allowmg certain gssues of securmes to be excluded from
calculations &f the number.of securities issued in the 12 month pericd.
Passage ofResolution 8 would bnng issues of:

. Performance Optlons over ordmary shares pursuant to the Company s
Long, Term,Performance Plan

¢ Share Rrghts over ordrnary shares pursuant to the Company’sLong Term
Performance Plan; and

« Fully gaid drdinary sﬁares’phir'édant to the Compiny's Deferred Share
Plan, ‘ R ‘ ’

in the néxt three Vears within orie of the’exdeptions contained in Lisfing” ¥
Rule 7.2, meaning that those issues would not count towards the, L|strng
Rule 7.1 15% cap. - :

.

BTN l,_

As the Long Term Performanee Plan.and Deferred Share Plan have not yet -
commenced opera’uon “no securities have yet been rssued underthem. = +==

The explanatory notes for Resolutions & and 6 summanse the Long Term
Performance Plan.and.Deferred Share Plan... « .

%‘TABCORP
" ,

20,000 31
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Rexnvestment Plan and estabhshed a new Drwdend Rernvestment Plan
{'DRP) which will commence operation for the next interim d|V|dend
scheduled for March 2004. Informétion regardrng the DRP and the forms
required to be submitted by shareholders to participate in the DRP will have
been received by shareholders in early October.

As set out above in the explanatory notes to Resolution 8, under ASX Listing
Rule 7.1, subject to certain exceptlons a company may not igsue new
shares eguivalent inember 15.moré than 15% of its issued shares,m any
rolling 12 month period without the prior approval of its shareholders. One of

.Ihe exceptions, being Exception 7 in ASX Listing Rule 7.2, provrdes that ASX
Listing Rule 7.1 does not apply to an issue of shares under a dividend
reinvestment plan (excluding an issue to the plan's underwriters) provided
that the plan's terms are approved by shareholders.

Under ASX Listing Rule 10.11, subject to certain exceptions, a company may
not issue new shares to a related party of the company (which includes a
director of the company, the parents, spouse or children of a director and
any company controlled by one or more of them) without the prior approval
of its shareholders. One of the exceptions, being Exception 3 in ASX Listing
Rule 10.12, provides that the prohibition in ASX Listing Rufe 10.11 does not
apply to an issue of shares under a dividend reinvestment plan (excluding an
issue to the plan's underwriters) provided that the plan’'s terms are approved
by sharehoiders.

“ Accordingly, the approval of sharehididers to the terms of the DRP (contained

- ~inAhe DRP Rules) is being sought S@-{ha{ future issues of shares under the

DRP*Will be exefhpt fram ASX Listmg Rulgs 7. ;l and 10,11 (excludmg any
. lssues to any undemrﬁer of’ the DRP). Sef out belew is a.summfary of the
DRP Rules.

Participation in thé DRP is d;ﬁtional and is generaiﬁ\/ open to all Folders of

~ Shares'inthe Company; ‘except that a-shareholder havmg a registered

address or berng residentin a country “Sthei'than Australia may not be able
to participate in the DRP because of legal requirements applicable in that
countyy. The Board may also refuse to permit any shareholder to participate
-f,.amongst other things, the shareholder’s participation'may, breach a
provision of the Company’s Constitution or' may be contrary'to any law, or

if a shareholder elects to participate in respect of a number &f TABCORP
shares which is less than 100 (or slich other number determined by the Board).

A shareholder may pamcrpate in the DRP in respect of some or all of their shares.

The Board will determine with respect to the operation-of.the DRP for any
dividend whether to issue new shares or to cause a transfer of existing
.-shares to a participant, or to effect a combination of both. If the Board
: decides to cause a transfer of eX|st|ng shares to participants, the shares may
.be acquired on ASX in any manner the Board considers appropriate.

Shares allotted or Eransferred to participants under the DRP will be acquired
at the arithmetic a¥erage (rounded to the nearest cent) of the daily volume

' weighted dverage fharket price of shares sold in the ordinary course of
“trading on ASX over ten trading days starting on {and including) the second

: busmess day following the record date in respect of the relevant dividend,

Ny éss a dlscount (if any) set by the Board from time to time. The discount may

! not exceed 2.5%.

~The dr’vidlendwpayable-on shares which are subject to the DRP (after
deducting any withholdings, such as withholding tax) will be credited to a
'DRP account’ ‘maintained on behalf of the participant and then applied on
the'participant’s behalf in subscribing for or acquiring additional shares in

- the Company: At.the time of each dividend payment, the maximum whole

number of additional TABCORP shares that can be acquired by each
—participant-will be ascer‘talned b\/ d|V|d|ng the amount in the participant’s
*DRP account by the relevant price determined under the DRP Rules. Any
balance remainingin a participant’s DRP account after TABCORP shares
have been. allotted .or acquired will be carried forward in the participant's
DRP account and added to the next dividend entitlement. No interest will
accrue in respect of any balance in a DRP account.

No brokérage, cormmission of other transaction costs will be payable by
participants on shares acquired under the DRP Shares allotted under the
DRP*will, from the date of allotment, rank equally in all respects with all
other TABCORP shares. The Company will apply for quotation on ASX of
shares allotted under the DRP

The DRP-may be varied, suspended or terminated by the Board at any time.

A copy of the Rules of the DRP will be made available to shareholders free
of charge upon request from the Company Secretary.
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FOLD  1/We being a member/members of TABCORP Holdings Limited and entitled to attend and vote hereby appoint

"""" X OR Write here the name of the person
n the Chairman {excluding the registered securityholder)

of the Meeting A .
you are appointing if this person is
(mark box) someong %ther than the Chairman of
the Meeting
or failing the person named, or if no person is named, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy to act generally at the meeting on my/our
behalf and to vote in accordance with the instructions set out below Sor if no directions have been given, as the proxy sees fit) at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held at 10.00am on Thursday, 30 Octcber 2003 or at any adjournment of that meeting. Where more than one
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IMPORTANT FOR ITEMS 4, §, 6, 7 and 8 BELOW

If the Chairman of the Meeting is to be your proxy and you have not directed your proxy how to vote on Items 4, 5,6, 7
and 8 below, please place a mark in this box. By marking this box you acknowledge that the Chairman of the Meeting may exercise
your proxy even if he has an interest in the outcome of that item and votes cast by him, other than as proxyholder, would be
disregarded because of that interest. If you do not mark this box, and you have not directed your proxy how to vote, the
Chairman of the Meeting will not cast your votes on Items 4, §, 6, 7 and 8 and your votes will not be counted in
computing the required majority if a poll is called on this Item. The Chairman of the Meeting intends to vote undirected
proxies in favour of ltems 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 and all items of business.

Should you desire to direct your proxy how to vote on any resolution please insert in the appropriate box below.
For  Against Abstain* For  Against Abstain*

Item 2. Re-Election of Directors

(8) To re-elect Mr A.G.Hodgson Item 6. Deferred Share Plan

item 7. Participation 8{ the Managing

- Director and Chief Executive
{b) To re-elect Mr R F.E. Warburton Officer in TABCORP employee
share schemes
item 3. Amendments to Constitution Item 8. Exclusion of issues under
FOLD emgz!oyee share schemes from
ASX15%Cap e ey p—
Jtem 4. Remuneration of Directors ltem 9. Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Item 5. Long Term Performance Plan If the Chairman of the meeting is to be your proxy, you should be aware that he

intends to vote undirected proxies in favour of all items of business.

* If you mark the Abstain box for a particular ltem, you are directing your proxy not to vote on your behalf on a show of hands or on a poll and your votes will not be
counted in computing the required majority on a poll.

El SIGNATURE OF SECURITYHOLDERS. THIS MUST BE COMPLETED
Securityholder 1 {Individual) Joint Securityholder 2 (Individual) Joint Securityholder 3 (Individual)

Sole Director and Sole Company Secretary  Director/Company Secretary (Delete one) Director

This form must be signed by the securityholder. If a joint holding, either securityholder may sign. If signed by the securityholder's atlomey, the power of aliorney must have
been previously noted by the regisiry or a cerlified copy attached to this form. |f executed by a company, the form must be executed in accordance with the securityholder's
constitution and the Comorations Act 2001 (Cwith).

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited advises that Chapter 2C of the Corporations Act 2001 requires information about you as a securityholder (including your name, address
and details of the securities you hold) to be included in the public register of the enfity in which you hold securities. This information must continue to be included in the public
register if you cease to be a securityholder. These statutory obligations are not altered by the Privacy Amendment (Private Sector) Act 2000. Informalion is collected to
administer your security holding and if some or all of the information is not collected then it might not be possible to administer your security holding. ASX Perpetual
Registrars privacy policy is available on its website (www.asxperpetual.com.au). TAH PRX042
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Summary of the Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The TABCORP Holdings Limited Dividend Reinvestment Plan ("DRP") allows shareholders in TABCORP Holdings Limited
("TABCORP" or "the company") to reinvest all or part of the dividends payable on their TABCORP fully paid ordinary shares
in additional fully paid ordinary shares in the company.

Participation in the DRP is subject to the Rules of the DRP. A copy of the Rules of the DRP is available from the company's
website at www.tabcorp.com.au, or you may contact the company’s share registry to request a copy of the Rules free of
charge.

Who can participate in the DRP?

Participation in the DRP is entirely optional. The DRP will generally be available for all holders of TABCORP shares, except
that a shareholder having a registered address or being resident in a country other than Australia may not be able to
participate in the DRP because of legal requirements applicable in that country.

How does the DRP work?

Dividends otherwise payable on ordinary shares which are subject to the DRP will be applied on the participating
shareholder's behalf to acquire additional ordinary shares in the company. The company may in its discretion either allot new
shares or cause existing shares to be acquired on-market for transfer to shareholders who participate in the DRP. Initially,
the company intends to operate the DRP by issuing new TABCORP shares to participating shareholders, and the details set
out below proceed on this basis.

If any withholding tax is payable in respect of the dividend or there is any other amount which the company must retain (for
example, if a shareholder does not quote a tax file number), these amounts will be deducted from the dividend and the
balance will be applied in subscribing for shares. Shares allotted under the DRP will rank equally in all respects with existing
ordinary shares and will be quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange.

At what price will new shares be issued under the DRP?

The new shares will be issued at a price equal to the average (rounded to the nearest cent) of the daily volume weighted
average market price of TABCORP shares sold in the ordinary course of trading on the Australian Stock Exchange over a
period of ten business days beginning on the second business day after the relevant dividend record date, less such discount
(if any) set by the Board from time to time {such discount not to exceed 2.5%). The Board has determined that an initial
discount of 2.5% will apply for the time being.

Determination of entitlement

The dividend payable on a participant's TABCORP shares which are subject to the DRP will be credited to a '‘DRP account'
and that amount (less any withholdings as described above) will be applied in subscribing for the maximum whole number of
fully paid ordinary shares in the company that may be allotted at the price described above. Any balances remaining in a
participant's DRP account after the allotment of shares under the DRP will be carried forward and added to the next dividend
entitlement. No interest will accrue in respect of any balance in a participant's DRP account.

What is the cost of participation?

No brokerage, commission, stamp duty or other transaction costs will be payable by participating shareholders in respect of
shares issued under the DRP.

If | want to participate in the DRP do all my shares have to participate?
No. A shareholder can elect to participate in the DRP in respect of all shares registered in their name or a specified number

of shares registered in their name. If a shareholder elects to participate in the DRP in respect of a specified number of shares
only, the dividend on the shares which do not participate in the DRP will be paid in cash in the normal way.




What do | have to do to participate in the DRP?

Eligible shareholders may elect to participate in the DRP in respeci of all or a specified number only of their shares at any
time by completing an election form and returning it to the company's share registry.

Shareholders may also elect to vary the level of participation or withdraw from the DRP at any time by completing an election
form and returning it to the company. Participation in the DRP will commence with the first dividend payment after receipt of
the election form provided that it is received by the company before the record date for the dividend. Similarly, an election by
a shareholder to vary the level of participation orﬂvf ithdraw from fhe DRP wil| only be effectiver in relatlon to a forthcommg
dividend if an election form is received by the company before the record date for the dividend:

If the share registry receives an election form that does not indicate the level of participaﬁon in ”thé;DRP, it will be'deemed to
be an application for full participation.

What happens if | sell some of my shares?

If a shareholder has elected to participate in the DRP in respect of a specified number only of the shares registered in the
name of the shareholder and subsequently sells-a pargel. of shares,Ahose shafes WhICh do not partlmpate in the DRP will be

deemed to have been sold first. U TR S S TV S SN A
What happens if | acquire more shares? - - - : : -

If a shareholder has elected to participate in the DRP in respect of all of the shares registered in their name, ‘all additional
shares acquired in the future will be deemed to participate in the DRP. If a shareholder has elected to participate in the DRP
in respect of a specified number only of the shares registered in their name, all shares subsequently acquired by the
shareholder, whether under the DRP or otherwise, will not participate in the DRP. A new election form increasing the level of
participation will need to be completed and provided to the company before these shares can participate in the DRP.

Do | get a statement?
Participants in the DRP will be sent a statement after each dividend payment, detailing their participation in the DRP.
What happens if | have more than one shareholding?

You will need to lodge a separate DRP election form for each registered shareholding. You may W|sh to contact the
company's share registry to consolidate your details into a single shareholding.

How does the DRP affect my tax position?

The company does not, and cannot, provide taxation advice to shareholders and does not accept any responsibility for any
interpretation of, or application by, shareholders of the general information set out below. The company suggests participants
seek independent professional advice concerning their taxation position.

Under current Australian income tax legislation, dividends reinvested under the DRP will be assessable for income tax in the
same manner as cash dividends.

For Capital Gains Tax purposes, shares issued under the DRP will have a cost base equal to the amount of the cash
dividend entitlement which is reinvested. Shareholders may be subject to tax on disposal of the shares dependmg on the sale
proceeds received and the cost base of the shares.

How do | get more information?

The terms and conditions of the DRP are detailed more fully in the Rules of the DRP and participation in the DRP is subject
to these Rules. A copy of the Rules of the DRP is available from the company’s website at www.tabcorp.com.au, or you
may contact the company’'s share registry to receive a copy of the Rules free of charge. If you wish to enquire about the
DRP, please contact the company’s share registry.

TABCORRP share registry
ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
GPO Box 1736, Melbourne Vic 3001

Telephone: 1300 665 661
03 9615 9780
Facsimile: 03 9615 9900
Email: registrars@asxperpetual.com.au
Website: www.asxperpetual.com.au

October 2003 (effective March 2004)
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TABCORP Holdings Limited
Dividend Reinvestment Plan

TABCORP HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN RULES

1. Definitions
In these Rules, unless the context otherwise requires:
Board means the board of directors of TABCORP.
Constitution means the constitution of TABCORP from time to time.
DRP means the Dividend Reinvestment Plan established under these Rules as varied from
time to time. 4
Holding means a registered holding of Shares in respect of a Shareholder.
Notice of Election has the meaning given to it in clause 3.1.
Notice of Variation means a notice to increase or decrease the number of a Participant's
Plan Shares, or to terminate participation in the DRP, in the form that the Board from time
to time approves.
Participant means a Shareholder some or all of whose Shares are participating in the
DRP.
Plan Shares means the Shares comprised in a particular Holding which are designated
(subject to these Rules) by a Participant as Shares the dividend on which is to be applied
in subscribing for or acguiring Shares under the DRP.
Price means the price at which Shares will be allotted or acquired under the DRP as
calculated in accordance with clause 5.
Record Date has the meaning given to it in the Australian Stock Exchange Limited Listing
Rules.
Rules means the rules of the DRP as varied from time to time.
Shares means fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of TABCORP.
Shareholder means a registered holder of Shares within the meaning of the Constitution of
TABCORP.
TABCORP means TABCORP Holdings Limited (ABN 66 063 780 709).
2, Participation in the DRP
2.1 Participation in the DRP is subject to these Rules.
2.2 Participation is optional and open to each Shareholder uniess excluded under these Rules.
2.3 A Shareholder who is subject to the laws of a country or place other than Australia may not

participate in the DRP until the Board, in its absolute discretion, is satisfied that such
participation will not constitute a breach of the laws of that country or place, whether or not
that Shareholder has received an invitation to participate in the DRP or has completed a
Notice of Election.
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The Board may on any occasion determine that the right to participate in the DRP is not
available to a Shareholder having a registered address or being resident in a country or
place where, in the absence of a prospectus, disclosure document, registration statement
or other prerequisite, the offer of a right of election, or participation, would or might be
unlawful.

If, in the reasonable opinion of the Board, the issue of Shares under the DRP to, or the
acquisition of Shares under the DRP by, a Participant or the holding of those Shares by a
Participant may breach a provision of the Constitution or be contrary to the law of any
country, may prejudice the effective operation of the DRP or is otherwise in the sole
opinion of the Board undesirable or impractical, the Board may:

(a) decline to issue or transfer those Shares;
(b) reduce the issue or transfer of those Shares on a proportionate basis; or
(c) reduce or suspend the participation of that Participant in the DRP.

The Board may, in its discretion, refuse to permit any Shareholder to participate in the DRP
where that Shareholder elects to participate in respect of a number of Shares which is less
than 100 or such other number as the Board may determine.

Application to participate

Application to participate in the DRP must be made on the form prescribed by the Board
from time to time (Notice of Election). Upon receipt by TABCORP of a duly completed
and executed Notice of Election, participation will, subject to these Rules, commence from
the next Record Date for determining entitiements to payment of a dividend in respect of
Shares.

Degree of participation

4.1

42

4.3

4.4

Participation in the DRP may be either full or partial. A Shareholder must (subject to
clause 4.4) specify in the Notice of Election the extent to which the Shareholder wishes to
participate in the DRP.

Under full participation, all Shares registered from time to time in the Participant's name,
including Shares issued pursuant to the DRP, will be subject to the DRP.

Under partial participation, only that number of Shares as specified in the Notice of Election
by the Shareholder will be subject to the DRP. However, if at the relevant Record Date the
number of Shares held by the Participant is less than the specified number of Shares, then
the provisions of the DRP in respect of that dividend payment will apply fo the lesser
number of Shares. Where a Shareholder is a partial Participant, all Shares subsequently
acquired by the Shareholder, whether under the DRP or otherwise, will only participate in
the DRP to the extent that the Shareholder alters the participation level in accordance with
clause 10.

If a Notice of Election does not indicate the level of participation in the DRP, it will be
deemed to be an application for full participation.
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4.5 If a Notice of Election purports to nominate a Holding for both full participation and partial
participation at the same time, the Notice of Election will be invalid and of no effect
whatsoever.

5. Operation of the DRP

5.1 Each dividend which is payable to a Participant in respect of Plan Shares and which is
available for payment to the Participant will be applied by TABCORP on the Participant's
behalf in acquiring or subscribing for additional Shares.

5.2 The Board in its absolute discretion will determine with respect to the operation of the DRP
for any dividend whether to issue new Shares or to cause the transfer of Shares to a
Participant, or to apply a combination of both options, to satisfy the obligations of
TABCORP under these Rules.

5.3 If the Board determines to cause the transfer of Shares to Participants, the Shares may be
acquired in the market in such manner as the Board considers appropriate.

54 TABCORP will establish and maintain a DRP account for each Participant. TABCORP will,
in respect of each dividend payable to a Participant:

(a) determine the amount of the dividend payable in respect of the Plan Shares;

(b) determine the withholding payments (if any) deductible by TABCORP in respect of
the dividend payable on the Plan Shares, and any other sum TABCORP is entitled
to retain in respect of the Plan Shares;

(c) credit the amount in clause 5.4(a) and debit any amount in clause 5.4(b) to the
Participant’'s DRP account;

(d) determine the maximum whole number of additional Shares which may be
acquired under the DRP at the Price by using the amount in the Participant's DRP
account;

(e) on behalf and in the name of the Participant, subscribe for or cauée the transfer of
that number of additional Shares determined under clause 5.4{d) and debit the
Participant's DRP account with the total of the subscription price or the acquisition
amount (as the case may be) for the additional Shares;

(f) allot the additional Shares to the Participant (if applicable), and add the number of
Shares allotted or acquired to the total number of Shares comprised in the relevant
Holding; and

(9) retain in the Participant's DRP account, without interest, any cash balance
remaining.

55 The Shares will be transferred or allotted under the DRP at the Price which will be the

arithmetic average (rounded to the nearest cent) of the daily volume weighted average
market price of all Shares sold in the ordinary course of trading on the Australian Stock
Exchange Limited automated trading system during the ten trading day period starting on
(and including) the second business day after the record date in respect of the relevant
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dividend and ending on (and including) the eleventh business day after that record date,
less any discount (not exceeding 2.5%) determined by the Board from time to time.

The daily volume weighted average market price referred to above will be calculated by the
Board, or another suitable person nominated by the Board, by reference to information the
Board approves from time to time. The determination of the Price by the Board or some
other person nominated by the Board will be binding on all Participants.

Shares allotted under the DRP

6.1

6.2

6.3

Shares allotted under the DRP will be allotted in accordance with the Australian Stock
Exchange Limited Listing Rules and, from the date of allotment, will rank equally in all
respects with existing Shares.

Shares allotted under the DRP will be allotted on, or as soon as practicable after, the
relevant dividend payment date and will be registered on the register where the
Participant's holding of Shares is currently registered. If the Participant holds Shares on
more than one register (one of which is TABCORP's principal share register), the Shares
allotted under the DRP will be registered on the principal share register unless and until the
Participant requests otherwise.

If a Participant holds shares in certificated form, a share certificate will be issued for the
total number of Shares allotted or acquired under the DRP in respect of each dividend on
those Shares. If a Participant holds Shares in uncertificated form, a statement showing the
total number of Shares allotted or acquired in respect of each dividend on those Shares will
be issued. The certificate or statement will be forwarded to Participants as soon as
practicable after aliotment or acquisition.

DRP statements

On, or as soon as practicable after, each dividend payment date, TABCORP will send to
each Participant a statement setting out:

(a) the number of the Participant’s Plan Shares as at the relevant Record Date;

(b) the amount of dividend payable to the Participant (less any amounts referred to in
clause 5.4(b}) in respect of the Participant’s Plan Shares;

(c) the amount in the Participant's DRP account immediately prior to the payment of
the relevant dividend;

(d) the number of Shares transferred or allotted to the Participant under the DRP and
the Price of those Shares;

(e) the cash balance (if any) retained in the Participant’'s DRP account after deduction
of the amount payable on subscription for the additional Shares; and

(f) the number of Shares comprised in the Holding after transfer and/or allotment.
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Stock exchange listing

TABCORP will apply for Shares allotted under the DRP to be listed for quotation on the
official list of the Australian Stock Exchange Limited as soon as practicable after the date of
allotment.

Costs to Participants

10.

No brokerage, commission or other transaction costs will be payable by Participants in
respect of Shares transferred or aliotted under the DRP and no stamp duty or other duties
will be payable under present law in respect of Shares transferred or allotted under the
DRP.

Variation or termination of participation

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Subject to clause 13, a Participant may at any time give a Notice of Variation to TABCORP:

(a) to increase or decrease the number of the Participant's Shares participating in the
DRP; or

(b) to terminate the Participant's participation in the DRP.
The alteration or termination takes effect from the next Record Date.

If a Participant increases the level of participation in the DRP to full participation, all of the
Participant's Shares as at the date of the Notice of Variation and all Shares subsequently
acquired by the Participant (including Shares transferred or allotted under the DRP) will
participate in the DRP.

If a Participant increases or decreases the level of participation in the DRP to below full
participation, only that number of Shares specified in the Notice of Variation will participate
in the DRP and no Shares subsequently acquired by the Participant (including Shares
transferred or allotted under the DRP) will participate in the DRP.

If a Participant dies, participation in the DRP will be terminated upon receipt by TABCORP
of written notice of the death. If a Participant is declared bankrupt or is wound up,
participation in the DRP will be terminated upon receipt by TABCORP of a notification of
bankruptcy or winding up from the Participant or the Participant's trustee in bankruptcy or
liquidator, as the case may be. The death, bankruptcy or winding up of one or more joint
holders will not automatically terminate participation.

Upon termination of participation for whatever reason, TABCORP will forward, unless
otherwise directed, to the Participant or the Participant's legal representative:

(a) a statement of the Participant’s DRP account made to the date of termination; and

(b} the cash balance (if any) shown in the Participant's DRP account as at the date of
termination.
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Reduction or termination of participation where no notice is given

1.3

12.

Where all of a Participant’s Shares are subject to the DRP and the Participant disposes of
some of those Shares then, unless the Participant advises TABCORP otherwise, the
remaining Shares held by the Participant will continue to participate in the DRP.

Where some of a Participant’s Shares are subject to the DRP and the Participant disposes
of part of that Holding, then unless the Participant advises TABCORP otherwise, the
Shares disposed of will, to the extent possible, be deemed to be Shares other than Plan
Shares. If the number of Shares disposed of exceeds the number of the Participant's
Shares which are not Plan Shares, the disposal will be deemed to include all of the
Participant's Shares which are not Plan Shares, and the balance (if any) of the Shares
disposed of will be attributed to Plan Shares.

Where a Participant disposes of all Shares without giving TABCORP natice of termination
of participation, the Participant will be deemed to have terminated participation in the DRP
on the last date on which TABCORP registered a transfer or instrument of disposal of the
Participant's Holding.

Variation, suspension and termination

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.

The DRP may be varied, suspended or terminated by the Board at any time. The variation,
suspension or termination will take effect upon the date specified by the Board.

The Board may give written notice of any such variation, suspension or termination as it
considers appropriate. A variation, suspension or termination of the DRP will not be
invalidated by an accidental omission to give notice of the variation, suspension or
termination to a Shareholder or the non-receipt of any notice by any Shareholder and will
not give rise to any liability on the part of, or right or action against, the Board or
TABCORP.

Any suspension of the DRP will continue until such time as the Board resolves either to
recommence or terminate the DRP. if the DRP is recommenced then elections as to
participation in respect of the previously suspended DRP will be valid and have full force
and effect in accordance with these Rules for the purposes of the recommenced DRP.

In the event of termination of the DRP, TABCORP will forward to each Participant a
statement of the Participant's DRP account as at the date of termination, and the cash
balance (if any) shown in the Participant's DRP account at that date.

Application and notices

13.1

13.2

Applications and notices to TABCORP must be in writing and in such form prescribed by
the Board from time to time (or in such other form as the Board may accept).

Applications and notices will be effective upon receipt by TABCORP subject to:
(a) these Ruies;

(b) in the case of applications to participate, acceptance by TABCORP; and
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(c) receipt by TABCORP before the relevant Record Date for determining entitlements
to dividends.

Applications or notices received on or after the relevant Record Date will not be effective in
respect of that dividend payment but will be effective from the next relevant Record Date.

General

14.1
14.2

14.3

14.4
14.5

14.6

14.7

End.

The DRP will commence on the date determined by the Board.

Each Holding which a Shareholder has from time to time will be regarded as separate for
the purposes of the DRP and the DRP will operate as if each such Holding were held by a
separate person, unless the Board determines otherwise. Consequently, a separate
Notice of Election must be delivered to TABCORP in relation to each Holding which a
Shareholder wishes to nominate for full or partial DRP participation, and the Shareholder
will be treated as a separate Participant in respect of each Holding nominated for
participation (and a reference to Shares held or acquired by a Shareholder or Participant is
a reference to Shares held or acquired in respect or on account of the relevant Holding).

Any dividend payable on Shares which a Participant has nominated as participating in the
DRP and which dividend TABCORP is entitled to retain as a result of a charge in favour of
TABCORP in accordance with the Constitution of TABCORP or other requirement of law
will not be available for the purpose of participating in the DRP.

These Rules will be binding upon each person who is or becomes a Shareholder.

Subject to the Constitution of TABCORP, the Board may implement the DRP in the manner
as the Board thinks fit, and may settle any difficulty which may arise either generally or in a
particular case in connection with the DRP as the Board thinks fit. Without prejudice to the
general powers of the Board under the Constitution and these Rules, the Board may settle
in the manner as the Board thinks fit any difficulty, anomaly or dispute which may arise in
connection with, or by reason of, the operation of the DRP, whether generally or in relation
to any Shareholder or Holding or any Share or Shares and the determination of the Board 4
will be conclusive and binding on all Shareholders and other persons to whom the
determination relates.

Neither TABCORP nor any officer of TABCORP will be liable or responsible to any
Participant for any loss or alleged loss or disadvantage suffered or incurred by a Participant
as a result, directly or indirectly, of the establishment or operation of the DRP or
participation in the DRP or in relation to any advice given with respect to participation in the
DRP.

The DRP, its operation and these Rules will be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Victoria, Australia.
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All Registry communications to:

C/- ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
GPO Box 1736, Melbourne, Vic. 3001
Telephone: 1300 665 661

(03) 9615 9780

Facsimile: (03) 8615 9900

ASX Code: TAH

Email; registrars@asxperpetual.com.au
Website: www.asxperpetual.com.au

&TABCORP
AV

TABCQRP Holdings Limited
AEN 66 063 780 709

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS FORM IN BLACK INK USING CAPITAL LETTERS. PHOTOCOPIES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

This form is only to be completed where the securityholder wishes to have their dividend payments reinvested under the rules of the
Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP).

IIWe being the above named registered holder of ordinary shares wish to participate in the Company's DRP as indicated below. [/We
authorise the application of dividends payable on the number of my/our ordinary shares participating in the DRP to acquire further ordinary
shares in the Company at the price determined under, and subject to, the rules of the DRP. I/We hereby agree to be bound by the rules of
the DRP. I/We acknowledge that l/iwe may vary or terminate my/our participation in the DRP, in accordance with the rules of the DRP. This
will cancel any earlier dividend reinvestment plan instructions and take priority over any direct credit instructions.

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited advises that Chapter 2C of the Corporations Act 2001 requires information about you as a securityholder
(including your name, address and details of the securities you hold) to be included in the public register of the entity in which you hold
securities. This information must continue to be included in the public register if you cease to be a securityholder. These statutory obligations
are not altered by the Privacy Amendment (Private Sector) Act 2000. Information is collected to administer your security holding and if some
or all of the information is not collected then it might not be possible to administer your security holding. ASX Perpetual Registrars privacy
policy is available on its website at www.asxperpetual.com.au

Degree of Participation (cross appropriate Box):-

FULL PARTICIPATION - Including any further acquisitions.

or

PARTIAL PARTICIPATION - Please specify the number of ordinary shares
to participate in the DRP.

kel

THIS MUST BE COMPLETED:" . "1 + 7
Joint Securityholder 3 (Individual)

[YHOLDERS -

- SIGNATURE OF SECURF:
Securityholder 1 (Individual)

Joint Securityholder 2 (Individual)

el WL el

Qwreiandlocmdadl s aleh LR B R SN SY AL B TR TS

i
i1
H

Director Director/Company Secretary (Delete one) Sole Director and Sole Secretary
This form should be signed by the securityholder. If
a joint holding, all securityholders should sign. If
signed by the securityholder's attorney, the power
of attorney must have been previously noted by the
registry or a certified copy attached to this form. if
executed by a company, the form must be
executed in accordance with the securityholder's
constitution and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwith).

Date
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